


fass=a s

R TR ] L T T I A R e N T P R A o e

HFCL TNFOTEL LIMITED ~e—

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Mr. Mahendra Nahata {Chairman}
Mr. B.K. Bansal

Mr. Rajesh Kandwal

Mr. MLP. Shukia

Mr. 5.Lakshmanan

Drr. Ranjeet Mal Kastia

Mr. K. B. Lal

Chief Exerutive Officer
Mr. Surendra Lunia

Company Secretary & Manager
Mr. Kapil Bhalla

Audit Committee

M, 5. Lakshimanan (Chairman)
Mr. Mahendra Nahata

Mr. B K, Bansal

Me M. P. Shukla

Share Transfer & Investors’ Grievance Committea

Dr. Ranjeet Mal Kastia {Chairman}
Mr K. B. Lal
Mr. M P Shukla

Remunezation Committee

Mr. 5. Lakshmanan {Chairman}
bir. MLF. Shukla

Dr. Ranjeet Mal Kasda

Project Managament Review Committes
M. M. P Shukla {Chairman)

Mr. Mahendra Nahata

Mr. E. K. Bansal

Mpr. 5. {.akshmanan

W KB Lal

Auditors

M /s S.R.Batliboi & Associates, Charlered Accountants
M /s Al Kalshrestha & Co., Charlered Accountants

interral Auditors
Maximus Management Advisory Services
Private Limitad

Compliance Officer

blr. Kapil Bhalla

Banks & Financial Institntions_
I0EGI Bank Lid.

LIC nf India

State Bank of Patiala

Oriental Bank of Commerce
ING Vwsya Bank Ltd.

Punjab Natinnal Bank

IIDFC Bank L.

ECICE Bank Lid.

Registered Office
B-71, Indusirial Focal Point,
Fhase VII, Mohali, Punjab - 160 055

Registrar & Share Trans{er Agents

Cameo Corporate Services L.

Unit:- HECL [mfotz! Lid.

“Subramaniam Building”, Mo.i,

Club House Road, Anna Sakal, Chennai- 600 002,
Tel: Ddd- 28460390 (5- lines)

Fax: 044 - 284460124

E-rnail: cameo@ramenindia.com

Contents Page No,
(L4 T OO OO 2 4
Directors” Report. .. VR 3 - 10
Management Discussion and ABANYSIS (s e 11 14
Corporate SOVEINANEE REPOEL cr e ieeet et se sttt evee e eereeesesssaeresetseees e eeeee et oess v - 27
AUIEOTST BEDOIL ct ettt e e e ee et ee e e e ries et s B - 30
Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account with Scheizhes oo seees e a1l - A8
Aunditors” Report on Consolidated ACCOURES woreecieesse oo oo coereseee oo el - A2
Consolidated Accounts .o e e e eaas S 63 - 108
Attendance SHp and Froxy PO e s sssss s e 109




HFCL INFOTEL LEMITED

Details of Directors retiring by rotation and seeking re-appoiniment

{in Pursuance of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement}

Mzme

Mr, Mahendra Nahala Mr. M.P.Shukla
Divecior Identification Number OnG32998 0052577
Date of Birth 19.05.1959 18.06.1532
Data of Appointment 29042003 29.04.2003
Qualification B Com(Hous) B.E. {Electrival}

Eupertise n specific functional
areas

Ower all Management

Mr. Nabata has over 26 years of businwss
experience to his eredit. He is the promoter
and Managing Director of Himachal
Futuristic Communications Limiled
(MFCL}.

Over all Managemenk

Mr. M. P. Shukla is an Electriral Engineer
with spociatizatiun in Communication
Enginecring. He is fellow member of the
Enstitute of Llectronics &
Telecommunication Engineers (India).
i, Shukta has been the Chairman and
Mavaging Director of Mahanagar
Teleptwone Nigam Lid,

Directurships in other Fublic
Companies

l. Himachal Fuhiristic
Communications Limited
(Managing Director

HTIL Limited

I=d

1. Himachal Puburiskie
Cognunications Limited
{Chaleman)

2. LIFCE Satellike Comunaunications
Limited

)

HTL Limited

Chairmanship / Membership of
Committees of the Board of Public
Companies of which he is a Director

1. HFCT Infotei Ltd
-hembear
<hfember

Audit Comunities

PMEC™

1. HECY infotel Limited

Audit Conuniztes -Member
Remunembon Cogunittee  -bember
STIGY Commitiee ~bember
PRI -Chairmian

2. Mimachal Fuiurishc
Communications Limited

Ancdit Committes =Chairmman
Eemunerabun Cowunilipe  -Chairman

STIGY Committes -Chairman

3. HFCL Satellite
Communications Limited

Audit Committes -tfember
4.  HTL Limited
Avcdit Committes -Member

#5hare Transfer & Tnvestor Grievance Committes (STIG)
**Projeck Management Review Committes (PMEC)
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 2+
Annual Report on the business and cperations of your
Company tagether with the Audited Accounts for the
year anded 31¢ March, 2009,

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

The sionmarized Financial Reaylts for the year ended 31
March, 2009 are as under; -

{8s. b neiflions)

Particulars For the For the
year ended Iyear ended
March 31,5 March 31,

20049 2008
[neome From 2.235.71 2483 43
Omerations/Services
Cither [ncome 13.85 10.93
Total Income ) 2,249,356 2,480.78
Total Expenditura 2,034,234 2,238,415
‘Operating Profit before 19i1z] T 26734
Finance Cost, Depreciation
and Lass / {Gain} on sale /
discard of Fixed Assets
Biminutionin valee of 717.67 -
Investmenis
{Gain} oo sale of Fixed Assets_ {337.23) -
Lass on inpaired Fixed Assets 15530 17.49
Finance Charges 675249 635,12
Forelgn Exchange (Gain) / Logs 108,76 150.63)
Depreciation ¢/ Amactization 99174 193s.80

Profit (Loss) before Prinr (2,021.403 1 (1,399,535
Period Expendituie and
Tax from ocdinary activities

Frior Period Expenditure (Net) 20 66 18.60

Profit /{Loss) before (214207 ] {1L,418.34)

Tax from ordinary sctivities

Fringz Benefit Tax 5-.23 ) T2
Net Profit f {Loss) from 2047331 (1,425.24)
ordinary activilies

Extracrdinary itema - -

Net Profit / {Loss) for (L117.30) | (1,425.35)
lhe period

{Loss) / l’rﬁﬁt meglﬁ forward '[9,151_.[}2.} {?‘,?_2:5-.6'?}—
from previcus year
Loss f (I'tolit) carried &y the

{(11,183.85} | 19,151.00)

Dalance Sheel

PERFORMANCE

Totlowing the trend of past few yoars, fixedline phones
rarket went down in terms of number of customens as
well as reverue. The downward trend of falling fixedline
revenue has affected your company and thewefore, during
the year under review, there is 3 drop in the telecom

sErvice revenue by 10% from Hs. 2488 42 inillion ta Ry
2233.7% million. Consequently, the Operaling Profils
leam teleeom services before finance cost, depreciation,
and lass on sald ¢ discarded fixed assets is reduced (o

Ks. 191,12 million compared to Lhe previous year's figure

of Ks. 261.34 millon,

Various expenses optimization initiatives taken by the
company coupled with reduction in direct variable
expenses, has led to a reduction of operating expenses
by Rs. 180.01 million from Rs. 2236.45 million in BY
ZM7-08.

The Broadband DS customer hase af 63,902 (pravious
year 52,316) witnessed a growth of about 324, during
the year. Continuing the growth irend in COMA mobile
custormer hase, your company has achieved 2 Browth of
Over 28% and reachad 0 a custumer base of 288,740,

The Department of Telecommunications (DoT) bas
permitied the Company o offer GSM Services in Punjab
Telecon Circle under the existing Unified Acress Service
License (UASLY for which the Company pald Rs [517.50
million as one time license fos in December 2007,
However, the Company's applivation for Pan Indiz
TASLs to provide GSM services was rejected by RoTon
grounds of nsufficient Net worth, The Company made
several roprescntations to the Dol for reconsides bon
of its applications and subsequently it filed a writ
petition before the Hon'ble High Court of Delby seeking
its intervention in the matter. Therealter, 0T has vida
its letter daled 27" June, 2008 olicred the Company
LIASLs in sume cireles as per the choice of the Comsany
and Company without prejudice to its claieg fur Pan
frdia UAST s, has submikted its choice vt cicche in which
i intends ie avail UASL, The matter is abill ander
cousideraton of Dol

DIVIDEND

The Company has accumulated losses and vour
Divectors, therefore, are nol in a positton in recommend
any dividand for the financial vear 2008 - {9,

TRAMNSFER TO RESERVES

Druring the year under review, no amount tras been
transferted to rescrves but the Company has udilized
General Reserve of Rs 104.44 wmillion to set off the carried
forward accumulated losses.

MATERIAT CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL
YEAR AND THE DATE OF GEPORT

Listing and trading approval of equity shares: Bluring
the period, the Listing and trading permission Lo

RN T
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43,26,00250 equity starzs of Bs 10/ -each issucd pravsiank
to the Scheme of Amalganation and 8,30,70,083 equity
Shares of Bs.10/- vach allotted to Finsncial Institutions
and Banks pursuant to the CDR Package has been
granted by The RBombay Stock Exchange Limited and
Madras Stock Exchange Limited.

Restructuring of Habilities: Corporate Deb: Restructuring
{CDR" Cell vide its letter no CDRE (JCT) No 138 7 2009- 10
dlated May 20, 2009 has approved the revised restructurine
package which inler- alla providas : oy

i) Conversion of intersst on simple interesl basis from
fuly 1, 2008 to October 31, 2009 in Term Loan, wich
would not carry any interesi and the same zhail be
repaid in 16 equal monthiy inst taliments
comanencing from Decermber 1, 2009, 2nd

i) Re-scheduling of principle instaliments [rom August
1, 2008 tn November 1. 2009 to be repaid (rom
Dzcember 1, 2009 to March 1 2011

Surkber, to enable the company o inducl strategic
invesior, for long erm sustainability of Lhe buziness,
the Company's proposal for restruchuring of iis debt
and paid up capital is under considerativa of tae lenders
through the CDR mechanism.

Change of Registered Office of the Company: To
facilitate better coardinatiocn with the Investor
comnmunity and the Lenders, the Board of Direclors
s meeting held on May 03, 2069 proposed the shifting
of tha rn:"u,terﬁﬂ office of the Lommm from Maohali in
the Siate of Puniab to Mumbai in the SEate of
Maharashtra, The Consent of the Sharchelders of the
Comaany was ebuained by way ul 7os tal Ballo:
condusied in accordance with Jeclion 1324 of the
Companiss Act, 1956 read with Companies {Passing of
Kesolution by Postal Ballot) Rules, 2001, The resudt of
the Pustal bailo: was declared oo june 18, 2009 at 4\}“
P 0 at the repisterzd office of the Jomsany, The
Lutnp ANY 15 in process of obiaind Loy e cousent order
of Comoany Law Board, Mot Reglon Bench, Mew
Dielhi in ihis regard.

Dimination in the value of Investments n ITE In v
ai the declining business prospects coupled with
negative net worth of the Invesiment Trust uf [ndm
Limited (571, during this year, the Coinpany Sas writte
off its entire nvestment made in equity shares runcl
Oyutionally Fully Convertible Debeninres {OFCDs) of
FT1 aggregating tu Ra. 717.6 miilion.
CONSERVATION OF ENERCY, TECHMOLOGY

ABSORBTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE HARMINGS
AND OUTLGO

Your Company does not cary on any manufaciuring
activity and accordingly, the provision fo (urnish

information as per Section 217(1) {e} of the Companies
Act, 1238 velating to Conservation af Energy 15 aot
applicabte. During the year under report, Campany has
act spent any ameuni on Research anil Deoveloprnent
and lechnology Absorption.

During the vear, there were no foreiga exchange
earnings, however foreign exchange outgowas Rs. 318411
million on aceount of travel, finance and other expenses.

SHARE CAPITAL

Bombay btork Exchange Lisniied (B5E) vide Uts latter no.
BST Mo, DOS/AMALSRCG/TRDA102/2009-1 dated
Way 34, ?[1119 and INotice Neo. 20080514 -12 isseed on May
14, 2009 granted listing and trading permission ir. respect
of £3,2000,2530 equity shares, [sgued ursuant o Fhee
scheme of amalgamation, w.ef Mag 15, 2009 Sirpilarty,
sadras Stock Exchange Limited (MSE] has also granted
the trading 2nd listing permission vide I8 letier RV
MSE /T PSK /238 132709 dated Tune 13,2008, whick is
affective from june 132, 2009

BSE, vide Notice No. 20080605 issued oo June 3, 20H3
had granted listing and trading permission in resoect ol
4,30.70,088 equity shares, whicly is ellective from june &,
2009 and a similar approval has been received Foom M3
vice its ietier No. MSE/ LD/ PSK/ 738/ 148/ 09 dated [ulw
2, 2004, which is effective from July 2, 2008,

Further, in terms ol Lhe {i) restraciuring package

approved by CIR cell (i} interprative ietter ssued oy
SERL vide letker no. CFLU/DIL/IG/SM /15105719 dlated
April 24, 2009 on the fssue price of equity shares and
(i) "in-principle’ approval recelved from BSE anz MSE
under clause 24(a) of the listing agresmoent, the company.

in the Share [ransfer aud Investor Grievance (5T1G
Committee meeting held o July 08, 2005, has allptead
8,67 43,114 oquity shares of Rs 18/ - eack at par to
Financial InsHiution and Banks :gainst Ehe share

application mouey, which was places 2 convarswar of
QOUFCDs along with premiom in fzrms ol zhe
pastructuring package appeoved by CD?. Allpize-wise
details of Lhe aforesaid equity shares are a5 doiow:

Name of the Bank ¢ M. of shares | Face Value
Financial [nstitution altotted © (s, fshare)
[udustrial Development 573,54 531 )
Bank of India Limited _ )

Life Trsurance LOF 72,200 Lip
LJTDD"”[EIU!‘I of Iraia

dncntal Bank of fcmmor’e 4 A5, 06,054 10
ING Vysya Bank I irneilad 13,45,838 14
Stute Bank of Patiaia 34 20,188 H
Tatal 867 43,16




Pursuant to the compliance of post-aliotment

" requirements of the aforesaid equity shares, the
Corpany has applied to BSE and MSE for the listing &
trading approval.

Consequent to the aforesaid allobment, the equity share
capital of the company now stands increased to
Rs.612,26,02,680/- comprising of 61,22,60,265 Equity
Shares of Rs. 10/- each; Preference Share Capital remains
Rs. 65,000,00,000/ - comprising of 6300000 - Curnulative
Redeemable Preference Shares (CRPS) of Ks. 100/- eacly
held by M/s Himachal Futuristic Communicztions
Limiled {Holding Company?}.

DIRECTORS

Life Insurance Corporation of India has nomjnated M,
Rajesh Kandwal as Director on the Board of the Company
wef Qctober 30, 2008 in place of Mr. 5. Lakshmanan.

Wr. 5. Lakshmanan was appointed as Additonal Director
on the Board of the Company w.e.f. October 30, 2008 o
hold effice till the date of ensuing Annual General
Meeting of the Company. The Company is in receipt of
a nntice in writing trom 2 member of the Company
u/is 237 of the Compantes Acl, 1336 signifying his
intention b0 propose the appointment of Mr S
Lakshruanan as a Director of the Company.

In accordance with clause 104 of the Articles of
Association of the Company and the provisions of Lhe
Companies Act, 1956, Mr. M. P, Shukta and Mr. Mahendsa
Nahata are liable o retire by rotation in the ensuing
Annual General Mesting and being eligible affer
themselves for re-appoiniment.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The details of employees drawing remuneration in
excess of the monetary ceiling in accordance with Lhe
provisions of Section 217 {2A) of the Companies Act,
1956, road with Companies (Particulars of Smplovees)
Rules, 1975, during the fnancial vear 2008-09, is annesid
o this report as Annexure "A°

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To terms of provisions of Section 217 1244} of the
Companies Act, 1936, your Divectors confinm as under: -

(1) that in the preparation of the annual accounts for
Lthe financial year ended March 31, 2009, the
applicable accounting slandards have bean fotlowed
along with proper explanations relabBuyr b material
dapartures;

(iiy that the Directors have selected appropriate
accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made changes wherever required, disclosed the
same in the financial statements wherever applicable
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and made judgmenls and estimnates that were
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2009 and of the logs of the Company for
the said period;

{iii} that proper and sufficienl care has been taken for
the rraintenance of adequate accounling records in
acenrdance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 for sateguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities and

{iv} that the Directues have prepared the accounts for
the financial year ended March 31, 2009 on a going,
concern basis,

SUBSIDIARY

During the year under review, CBSL Cable Networks
Limited {Formerly Comnect Broadband Services Liméted)
has ceased to b a subsidiary of vour company w.ef.
April 16, 2008 pursuant to the sale of entive 90,50,000
equity shares helt by the company in CBSL Cable
Networks Lid. to Digicable Networks {India) Private
Limited at par vide Share Purchase Agreement dated
March 26, 2008

The Company incorperated a subsidiary in the name
and style of “Infatel Tower Infrastructure Private
Limited” for the purpose of ereating infrastructure for
telecom operations, manpower outsourcing and trading
activilies refated to telecommunication oporations, The
company has subsceibed to 9,980 equity shares in Infolel
Tower Infrastructie Pei Ui, at par.

[nformeation on subsidiary eompany as reqguired tmder
Section 212 of the Comparues Act, 1956 is provided in
Annexure ko this report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with the Accounting Standard {AS-21) —
Consolidated Financial Statement read with Accounting
Standard {AS-23} on Accounting for Investments in
Assoclates, your Directors have pleasure in presenting
the Consolidated Financial Statements, which form part
of the Arnoal Report & Accounts.

FIXED DEMQSITS

The Company has not accepied / renewed any depesits
from the public wader section 384 of the Companies
Act, 1956 during the vear. The Company had
discontinued the Non Banking Finance Company
(MBFC) business in BY 2003-04 and transferred the
cutstanding amounts to an Escrow Account maintained
with Orienlal Bank of Commerce. In respeect of the
request received from depositors from time to time, ihe
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Campany has been duly maling payment of the amount
of deposits vut of the said Escrow account. Cerlain
amounts of deposit which were winclaimed for a period
of seven years have been transferred to Investor
Fducatios and Proteciion Fund (TEFF) under section 205¢
of the Campanies Act, 1956 aut of said Dscrow Accousit.
The unclaimed amourt as at March 31, 2009 was Rs. 16.63
lars.

AUDITORS & AUDITORS RETORT

M5 S.E. Batliboi & Assodates, Chartered Accountants
and M/s Atul Eulshrestha & Co., Chartered Accounlants,
the Statutory Auditors of Lthe Conpany . reiire at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and are eliuribie for
Fe-appointment,

The Stalutory auditars of the Company have submitted
its report on the Accounts of the Company tor the
financial year ended March 31, 2009, which 13 self-
cxplanatory.

AUDITORS QUALIFICATIONS / OBSTRVATIONS
AN MANAGEMENT'S EXPLANATIONS

1. Para 3(a) Note 1303 of Schedule 23 of consofidaled
Jinancial skatements aad Note 16(h) of Schedule 23 of
fingncial statements wherein the Compeiy Rt chfrined
ait advartee of Bs. 1,517 500,000 fram a me-sharcholder
company / promuter to fund the entry fee for namg
alternte technology under existing Unified Access
Service Licestse (LIASL) fr Punjab Service Aven during
Mo 31 2008 g Rs. 11 7,U00L000 for operiiions durfitg
the yrar. The termes ned conditions twitl respect fo teptizre.
imberesi, right aind obligativn 2ic. are yet to be fil urlized
henc cos are unable to commmd o the carvying saiue
i #heveby i impact on the prafit and less for B gear,
Onner qudil repurt on the finameml siabonits for the ey
ended Adarch 31, 2008 10as modified accordingly.

The terms and conditinns of above mentioned
ardvances are under discussion with such non-
sharcholder company and upon Rnatization of the
terns and condifions subject to the approval of the
securcd Lenders of the Company, the impac, it any,
will he considered in the profit and joss accound.

20 Para 3ty Mote 3@l of Schedule 23 of consolidated financial
stutpntents aond Note Fab of Seredule 23 o finaneial
staternents wherein the Company s giocn effect fo
ristericturimye of secired loons pursuent to U repiged
restricturing package approved by Corporete Debt
Restructuring Cell {"COR”) vide their lotier . CDR
{eI P Mo 1 38/2008- 10 dated May 20, 2003 {"COR fetier’
Ve haoe velied ipon the CDR Lettor and Hie cotfirmation
From: tie lenders s awiiied.”

0 the request of the Company, COR Cell has
approved jhe amendments in the oxisting
restructuzing scheme in the CDR Empowered
Commitiee weeling held on January 31, 2009 and
issued its approval tetter dated March 4, 2009. CTR.

el

6.

Cell has also requested ali lenders of the Company
to take necessary action in the matter. The Company
has given effect 1o the aforesaid ammendments i the
restructuring package in the books of the Company
and has requesled the Banks and Financial
fnstitution to provide their loan confirmation post
amendment in the restructuring package. In absence
ol the confirmation Fom the Banks and Financial
tnslitution the amount of loans including interest
outstanding as on March 31, 2008 cannot be rross
verified. While the necessary coafirmation fram
tenders i3 awaited, [DBL, vide its letter dated May
20, 2009 hag enclorsed the approval granted by the
C R

Para 5(f): Subfict [ matter stated i paragraph 3 above
ensequentind offeck whereny ix nol nacertainable

The observalion of the Auditors in their report is
self uxpianatory. Since the terms and condibon of
aforesaid sdvances are under discussion and yet to
be finalized, the consequential effect in the profit
and loss account is not asearlainable.

Para {ix) {a) of Annexura: There hate baat delays n
many coses [ orespect of depesit of serpice b amnd
withfolding o

The delavs in deposil of service tax and withholding
tax wore on actount of ternporaty cash flow
snismatel however the dues have beert paid i fuil
subsequentiy along with applicable interest.

2arn (xp of Annexure: The arcunnilated losses of the
Cantpany nsal March 31, 2009 are iore Hran Sifty percent
“Sts ot vt es st Dk date. The Cempany has incurred
w it loss of R, 881,292,738 andd Rs. 155,157 544 during
thu year nnd inmnacdintely preveding firancial year before
corsidering inferest provision an yield hsis uf Rs.
&6,6002, 844, Ry, 112 980,372 respectively.

The management acknowledpges the ervsion of net
warth as stated by the Auditers. The cash loss m the
cwrrent vear and cash profit in the previous year are
matters of fact flowing from the audiked financial
staternents. The iosses are due to declining market
of the fixed line business and the company has
therefore decided to leverags its recently obtained
abiiity of providing GSht mobile services for
fonprovament in performance.

Para (xi} of Annexure: The Company bus delyed 1
payprnt af principal wid eterest due do o firunci
Tstitiition and banks. D to the delays the Compty has
puitds] Rs. 3.043,605 as penal fnferest fo francial institution

il Bks.

Thers have been delays in paymenis of interesl to
Firancal lnstifutions and Banks due to mismalch
of cash tlnw. However the Cempany has made
payment of penal interest for such delays. Further,
an the request af the Company, the CDR Cell has
inter-alia approved conversion of interest on Lerm
secured Joans for the period July 1, 2008 to October



31, 2009 into Funded [nterest Term Loan and
reschedulement of principle repayment installments
from Avugust 1, 2008 to November 1, 2001,

7. Para(xvii} of Annexure: The Company has used Shore
fermt lomis amd adwonces of Rs. 2745449433 for purchase
of intapgihles and fosses

The acrumulated [psses and the entry fee have been
funded from the shott term funds as Company’s net
worth has been eroded due to accumulated loszes
being more than the aggregate of paid up share
capital and free reserves. The Company is exploring
the possibililies of inducting a strategic investor
far the long term sustainability of the business. &
proposal for restructuring of the Company's delits
and equity capital te facilitatz this is under
consideration of the secured Lenders of the
Company.

CORPORATE COVERMANCE

Corporate Covernance and Management Discussion and
Analysis Reports as well as Corporate Guvermanes
Compliance Certificate are being presented as Anncxure
to this report.

HUMAX RESOURCE {TIR) DEVELOPMENT

The Company’'s HR policies and processes are
cantinwously aimed at intellectual growth and
arientation to effectively moblvate the emplayves at all
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levels in the drive for growth and expansion of the
organization’s  business,
programmes for learning and development are drawn

Repular innovative
up in order to create an encourarine work environment
for empowering the employees at all fevels and
maintaining well structured reward and recognition
mechanism. The Company encourages its employees
iv strengthen their entrepreneurial skills in order to
enhance the organization's productivity and creativity.
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I"LACE @ New Daelhi
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956
RELATING TG SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

1.§ Mame of the Company

2| Financial Year sodded on

fa} Number and Face Value
{b} Extent of Holding

year ervded on Maren 31, 2009

tha vear ended on March 31, 2009

they concern the members of the Company
period encled March 31, 2008

the perind ended March 31, 2008

3. | Shares of the Subsidiary held by the Company on the above date

4§ Mot agpregate of profits/(losses) of the subsidiary for the abowve
finandal year so far as they concern members of the Company (Rs.)
{(a) dealt within the accounts of the Hotding Company For the .4

{b) nof dealt within the accounts of the Hojding Company for [

5.} The net aggrerates of profits or (Insses) of the Subsidiary Company
fer its previous financial vear since it becamne o subsidiary so far as

{(a) dealt with in the accownls of the Holding Company for Lhe MNoA

(b) not deait with in the accounts of the Holding Company for N

Infolel Tower Infrastruciuee Privale Limiled
31.03.2009

S50 eopuity shares of Bs.10/- each
L% (rounded off)

G

T e
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
REPORT

OVERVIEW

HECL Infotel Ltd (“Infotel” or “the Company™) is a
Unified Access Scrvices Licensee in Punjab Telecom
Circle comprising of state of Punjah, Union Territory of
Chandigarh and Panchkula fownin the state of [ laryana.
The Company had commenced its operations in
September 2000 a5 a fixed line service provider under
the brand name "CONNECT". Subsequently, the
Company had launched Broadband and CDMA Mobile
services. In September 2007, the Company had
undertaken expansion of its CDMA mabile services
covering key cilies / towns in Punjab, under the brand
name of “PING”. As at March 31, 2009, the Company
had 550,502 telephony customers, ncluding Fxedline -
182,860 custormers, CDMA mobile - 298,740 customers
and Broadband - 88,902 customers.

The Company with its extensive optic fiber cable
network of aver 3800 kms, nrovides services in over 150
cities / towns covering 52 of the 33 Short Distance
Charging Areas {"SD2CA™) of Pujab Telecon Clrcle, as
defined by the Department of Telecommunicalions,
Government of Tndia.

Key Businegss and Finarcial highlights for the financial
¥edr arel

W With a growth of 31.70% during FY 20058-09, the
Hroadband customer base has been increased fo
8,502

< During FY 2008-09 CDMA mobile customer bass
has gome up by 28 34% taking the base to 2,98,740

#  There has been a drop of 16.853% in the Fixed Voice
Subscriber Baze which stands at 1,82, %60 az
on March 3%, 2000,

% During FY 208-09, the Ceompany generated gross
revepue of Rs. 2249.56 million, which iz lower by
10.01% as compared to previgus vear,

This resulted, in a drop in Operating Protit (EBIDTA}
ta 191.12 million i.e. a drap by 28.37% as compared
tw the previous year,

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE

»
!

The Telecommunication Services sector operales in a
licensed and regutatad enviropmeant. The sector can be
classified in terms of segments for which the
Goverrunent of India 1G0O1) izsues Heenses:

4 Access Operators - Ofering Fixed Line and Mobile
Services.

4 National Lang Distance Operators - inter-linking
access operators.

% international Long Distance Operators — cunnecting
the domestic operators (access and mational long
distance) with gperators in other conntries

-,
L

Olher Value-added Services Providers - Internet
Access Services including Inbernet Telephony, YSAT
based services, Radio Paging Services, Public Mobile
Kadio Trunking Services, Glabal Molsile Personal
Conununications Services through Sateflite.

The GOl is empowered to decide on the pobicies that
govem the Telecommumicalion Services Sector and issuc
licenses fo the private sector players. The Governrent
plays these rales through the Department of
Telecommunications (DOTY and the Telecom
Commission, both functioning under the Miniskey of
Commanjcations and Information Technology.

The Telecommunications Ragulatory Authority of Tndia
{TRAR), an autanemous body with quasi-judicial powers
to regolate the Telecommunicstions Services was
established in carly 1997, The Act governing the
establishment and role of TRAI was amended in 2000,
pursuant fa which TRAI's powers to adjudicate disputes
have been vested in the Telezom Disputes Settiement
Appellate Tribunal {TDSAT), )

KEY INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENTS
Greowth & Market Trends
Teltecom Services - industry Scenarie

India, which already boasts of the second-largasi telecom
user base i the world affter China and ahead of the US,
now has 42977 million telecom subseribers as at March
31, 2009 (300.49 million Previous year end March 2008),
in both the wireless and wireline segments, with a
rrowth of 43.01% during FY 2008-09. OF the [otal
customer base, Wireless base has increase from 261.08
million as at end March 31 2008 to 3%1.76 million as at
flarch 3%, 2009 (growth of over 50,

Druring 2008-2009, Indian Telecom Services sector
continued its growtn trajgciory, mainly driven by
intense competition and aguressive pricing of mobile
connection. The mobile segment continued to grow at &
very high rate in comparison o e Fixed-line sepment.

The growlh of Wirefine subscribers has been more or
less stagnated over last fow years, In fact dudng FY 2008-
19, there has been a drop of 3.68% in VWireline customer
base of 37.96 mitlion as on end Magch 2009, The customer
Lase of Wireline has been overshadowed by the growth
irn mohile services mainly due to cunvenience of use of
mobile handset with leatures like telephone directory
and SME coupted with cheaper or more affordable tarifis.,

Broadband sarvices could nei emulate the growth that
isseen by Indian Mobile sector. The Broadband customer
base as at end March 3{, 2009 was 6.22 million.
Gowvernment has announced several policies tustimulate
the growth of Broadband in the counfry. As a result of
these measures the broadband customer grow from a
meager (.18 million as on March 2003 Lo about 622
million as at March 2009 at an anmeal CAGR of 141%.
With the increase in 70 penatration in future, it is atso

8 i et
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estimated that internet and broad-band subscribers will
increase [0 40 million and 20 million, respectively, by
EY 21t

Tursuant o the grant of UASL to provide GSM services
te the new licensees during FY 2007-08 and the
subsequent allocation of Spectrum to most of the
licensees, many new players are expected o launch their
services during the vear 2009-10, which would further
boost the growth of mobile phones in India.

Telecom sactor {s therefore expected to continue to uTow
mainly or account of the following factors:

7

s Need for increased coverage by network operators
— reaching out to unfepped rural markets.

@ Higher affordability theough reduced tariffs and
affordable handsets

*  Consistent growth of I1' Services and {1’ cnabled
Services Sector

# Continuous growth and increased competition in
the barking, insurance and hospitality sectors

< Increasing operations of the Multinational
Corporations in India and expansion of overseas
vperations of Indian Comoanies thereby
necessitating integratbion with the rlobal economy

#  Growing need by the Companies o organize thelr
aperations using ERFs and sxpansion of their
networks for SCM, CEM

The Telecom Industry has witnessed a trend of voice
traffic shifting from Fixed line natworks to Mobile
nebworks due to the below mentioned reasons:

*+  Higher penetration of mobile telaphony in view of
increased competition and lower tariffs leading to
substitztion of landlines in favour of Mobiles and
voice fraffic moving oato the mobile network.

a
Ll

Convenience of mobility and the enhanced
functionality of handsets which are personalized
and easy to navigate. Rapidly changing
consienption patterns are also having an impact on
usage, Personzl nature of the device supporting the
increased ‘individualism” of our society,

4 Lower reiff for mobile voice calls as a result ok

+ Falling equipment prices and increased
capacities

o More advanced mobile network and now 3G

¢ Intensifying competition among mobile
cperators

» Infrasiructure sharing among operators
& Tariff for CUG & Short duration calls

+  On-net calls being extremety aftprdabte, users are
replacing their fixed line phones with a second
mobile from the same operator.

(2

4  Hiyher density of the mobile telephany with cheap
5TD rates resulting in a tremendous drop in the
walk-in traffic at FCO locations.

Coing forward, i.uciusﬁ'}' estimates that:

4 The Indian fixed-line market will see growth from
broadband and Enlemet acoess seciors, which will
topether grow st the rate af 22% Lo reach 85 55 hillion
by 2013

%+ The fixed-tine subscriber base will remain at 37
millian coneections in 2013, while the broadband
subscriber base will increase by 26% to reach 16
niillien subscribars

&« The number of fixed lines will continue fo decrease
slightly ontil 2012, but will start picking up again
in 2013 as carrgiers will focus more on fixed
broadband, bundling voice lines free with it

4+ Revenue from broadband services will significantly
contribute to the overall growth of fixed-Hne
services in India, with a growth of 25% from 2008 to
2013

4 Wireless broadband services will also grow
significantty from 2010, by expanding broadband
coverage fo areas previously not covered by ropper
telephone Hnes

Regulatory Develvpments / Chanpes

During the current year undar review regulatory
authorities Le, Telecorn Regulatory Authority of India
{TRAT) and Departraent of Telecomenunicalions (Do),
undertook certain palicy measures. The fllowing are
the key regulatory changes and developments
undertaken by e TRAL and Dol

#  TRAI has done away with the Sccess Deficit Charge
(ALY woe f April 01, 2008, TRAL has recommended
the continued support tu BSNL through Universal
Service Obligation Fund (UISOF) instead of ADC
ADRC on the iIncoming international cells adse was
reduced to Rs.0.30 per minute for the period
01.0L2005 to 30.02.2008. ADC paid in the Borm of
percentage of Adjusted Gross Revenue (ACR)” has
been done away w.e.f, lst April, 2008 and ADC
charges on the rural revenue of operators had also
teen abglished in vrder to motvate penetration of
telecom services in rural areas.

% The DoT has decided to implement the lock-in
perind clause that there shall ke a lock-in period for
gale of equity of a person whaose share capital is 10%
or morz in the UAS licenzes company on the effeckive
date of UAS licence and whose net-worth has been
taken inte consideraticn for determining the
cligibility for grant of TUAS licence, Hil the
completion of three years from the effective date of
the UAS licence or tll fulfillment of all the rollout
obligations, whichever is earlier. In case of issue of
fresh equity, within the lock-in period, the
declaralion of dividend and special dividend shall
be barred.



% Press nole was Issued by D30T wherein after the
payment of requisite enlry fee (as prescribed for
obtaining new UJAS lLicence} the licensees were
allowed to use alternative technology (CDMA/
GSM) under the same license. Further, under the
apen policy, DT has issued new UAS Licenses
during the year.

# The DoT issued guidelines for sharing of

infrastructure; except the sharing of spactrum

sharing of other infrastruciure is permitted viz,

Tower, Node efc.

+  Telecom Regulatory Authority of india (TRATD has
issued draft regulabtions for introduction of mobile
number portability (MNP The guidelines have
highlighted subscribers’ eligibility for porting -
switching operatars withoub chanping number - as
well as the rights, obligations and duties of operators
- both donors and recipients

% Telecom Remulatory Authority of India (TRAD) has
recdeced local termination charges by 33% to 20 paisa
from 3] paisa per minute Termination charge for
incoming international calls would be 44 paisc per
minute agains: the existing charge al 30 paise per
minute.

@ Government has arcented the elecom regutator's
propoesal {e allow comipanies w offer mobile phone
services withoul owning network infrasteucturs or
spectrum that would pave the way for forcign and
Indian companies to set up mobile virtual nelwork
operators (MVINCQ} in [ndia which can soll out
wireless telecom setvices by renting spectrum and
networks from existing telecom comnpandes,

Data Services

For Dhata services broadband holds a very promising
future with number of subscribers profected to reach
around 20 mn by 2010,

To increase the penectration of broadband services, the
Covornmen: had announced a Broadband Policy in 2004,
which encoueaged the private service providers to
spread the optcal fiber broadband network ta the cural
areas,

#  Giving a high priarity to the gwners of copper lcop
in view of the fact that they would be eritical as kay
drivers in the Broadband service market using DSL.

o Giving freedom to the Access providers for entering
info commercial arrangements for utilization of
available copper loop for the expansion of
bruadband sarvices.

#  Allowingr the Cable TV network to be used as
franchisee network of the service provider for
provisioning Broadband services.

# Encourage the VSAT and DTH services for
penetration of Broadband and Internet sarvices
especially being suitable means for serving the
remote and inaccessible areas.

HECL INFOTEL LIMITED

Future Perspeciive

-,

% DBroadband subscriber base is expected fo touch 10-
12 miHion by 2602-14,

7 Broadband is expected o become a dominant
internet access media and by 2009-10 about 73% of
the internet subscribers are expecied Lo be on
broadbacnd, especially in view of the ever increasing
PC penetration and PC based aducation system
spreading across the schools atl over India.

DL will continue to have an edge aver all other
delivery mechanisms for the next 4-5 years and any
incumbent wire line operator will have an edge over
slandalone broadband service providers.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS
Coporfunities

During the year, the Company further expanded the
reach of its wire line voice services to smaller towns
andd currently bas presence in over 150 towns of Punjab,
In the Mobile voice segment, the Company expanded
its wireless nelwork footprint to the whobe of the Punjab
Circle so that fiil mobile services can be offered to
subscribers in Pusjaly.

Foliowing rapid decline in equipment prices, Broadband
Internet Access has emerged as a viable valus-addHion
Lol and growth driver {for the wire line telephony
sagment. The Company has already deploved broadband
network equipment in most of the areas served oy the
Company's wire line services.

It is felt that the largest growth driver in telecom market
des in Mobiie. Realizing that mobile service is the largest
growth oppoctunity and to corner a large pie in the
growing felecom market, managoment belioves that
waunch of {3550 mobile services in Punjab with 2 tie up
with an pperator naving audltiple circle footpring would
be the nwst fuceative proposibon, if the right {fioancial
support is made available,

The Company believes that the aforesald expansion
would provide economies of seale and improve the
Company's financial position sigalficantly. The
proposed expansion would assist the Company to
increase the top line growih and thereby, combat
patential revenue stagnation and profitability pressures
arising out of decline in larifis and competition, The
proposed expansion will also enable the Company to
offer attractive "on-nel” calling tarilfs wilhin Lhe
community of interest, a service facet deployed by other
operatars with mulli-circle aperations. Overall, Lhe
Company expects the expansion to improve the assel
utilization and overalt profitability significanty.

Threats

The competitive intensity in Punjab is high with seven
nporatars affering their services. All the seven imerators
offer mobile telephony scrvices. Four of these offer fixed
ling services as well

Hlirh level of competition causes pressure on new
customer acquisilions, relention of existing cusiomers
and fariffs.
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The Company derives substantial part of ifs earnings
from wire line {vopper based network) services. This
market segiment is expecied o grow al a much sloveer
pace compared to mobile services segment.

Outlook

The Company foresees high degres of competiition in
the years to come, especially in the mobile telephony
segment. The Company during the financial year 2007-
08 had expanded the wireless nebwork footprint ko most
parts of Punjab. In terms of subscriber base, all existing
inobile operators are showing a healthy growth paktern
and none of the major operators bolds sway over the
market.

Theugh the overall market for fixed line services — the
Company’s largest service stream - has witnessed a
slower srowth, the Manapement believas that the
Company will sustain a healthy growth on account of
fnllowing lactors:

W The planned expansion of wireless services into Pan
Punjab, at low incremental capital cost and fow
incremental operating cost will help imprave the
overajl asset utflization and profitability ratios.

o With the right to offer G3M mobile services under
the UASL the Company expects its subscriber base
to grow [nster as the mobiie telephony sepment is
growing significantly faster than the [ixediine
segment,

T With equipment becoming cheaper in recent fmes,
the Company has started offering very affordsble
taritf packages for broadband internct access
services. Increasing demand for high-speed Internor
access would be a key driver for the Company’s
copper based wire line service,

RISKS & CONCERNS

As is the case with any infrastructure project, the
Company is also exposed to a number of risks. Some
key risks have been mentioned below:

1. Financing Wisks

The Company has made substaniial investments in
laying the core network infrastructure and launch of
sepvices in Punjab ciccle. However, to attract new
customers, and to offer new [/ better services, the
Company needs o contineally make further tnvestment
in the expansion / us gradation of its network.

A5 iz the case for any other capital-intensive
infrastructuure  business, the deployment  of
tefecammunication services in{rastructurs enlails
significant capital expenditure, a substantial portion of
which needs to be incurred before the realization of
adequate revenues. The operating cash flows of the
Company would net be adequate to fund the incremaental
capital expenditure and working capital requirermnents.

Thus, the Company's operaling resulis and financial
condition depends, among other things, on timely tying

up with stralegic investor bo bring external funding af
competitive raies to fond these requiresnents. Purther,
the envisaged fund requisrement might also escalafc
upward due o variety of factors viz., slower uptake ol
services, stiff competition, change in regulatory
scenario, technological up gradation requirements and
uelays in planned capital expenditure.

2. Market and Competition Risk

The Company faces compelition from other service:
providers in Punjab Cirgle. Most of the Company's
compelitors have significantly greater Financia
resources, well-established brand names, large and
existing ali-India customer base, potential to cros:
subsidize long-distance tariffs and intra-network tariffs

The revenues of the Company are sigonificantiy
dependent on the tariffs as also on the overall cconomic
scenario. Reduction in tarifis and 2 weak economic
seenarid would hamper revenue growth.

3. Regulatory Risks

I the ordinary course of business, the Company i
required to obtain various regulatory approvals, whict
mostly are recurring in nature viz., SACFA / WPC
approval for frequency allocation, testing approval fos
interconnection. with BSNL, TRAT apacoval fm
inierconneclion agreements and fariffs ete. The
Cnmpany's leng lerm plan for expansion of C5M mobile
services Pan India is subject to availability of resources

Afthargeh, the Company has obtained all such approvai:
in the past and would continue to apply for thesc
approvals pursuant to rolf out scheduwe, such approvals
may Aot be available in Hme or on favorable terms anc

conditions, whizh may result in fime delays and cos

overrun which could have an adverse effect on the
business and operations of the Company.

4. Risk of Rapid Technelogical Changes

The telecommunication services industry i
chararterized by rapid technological change. Given the
fast pace of technologleal innaevation in the
relecornmunication sector, the Company faces the rish
of its technology becoming obsolete and may need &
invest significantly large .amounis to upgrade it
netwrorks.

3. Dependence on Key Pecsonnel

The Company's business is dependent on a few kas
zenigr exeguiives. The loss of such key resources coule
have a material adverse effect oo the Company”
business, opecaling vesulls and ltnancial conditian,

INTERNAL CONTHEOL SYSTEM AND ITE
ADEQUACY

The company has a proper and adeguiate inlernal contro
syatent to ensure that all agsets are adequately anc
properly safeguarded and prolected against loss frow
wrrauthorized use or its disposttion and that bransaction;
are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The
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internal conirol Bs supplemented by anextensive internal
audit, review by the management and the auddit
committee and properly documented policies,
guidelines and procedures. The internal control is
designed to ensure that the financial and other records
are teliable for preparing financial statements and other
data, and for mainfaining accountability of assets.

The internal audit function is leoked after by an
independent firm of Chartered Accountants which
conducts audit, reviews, evaluates and submils its report
o the management and the Aadit Committee at regular
intervats.

The Internal Auditor Reports dealing with Internal
Control Systems are considered by the Audif Commilice
and appropriate actions are taker, wherever deemed
NECESSary.

The company makes detailed revenue budgets on
business area basis, products and departmenta. The aclual
perfermance is measured on monthly basis and a
detailed analysis of the variances in periodical reviews
before the Board is carried out to set right any material
devialions, In eddition a budgetary control on all capital
expendibire ensures that actual spending is in fine with
the capital budget.

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESLILTS GF OPERATIONS

It has been Company’s endeavor to expand the
operations geographically and also in terms of
providing new vahue added services. The Company has
its wire line services in 150 cities and towns in Purjab
and has also widened its wireless foutprint to cover the
whole af Fupjab by introducing the COMA moebile
services under the brand nanse of “Ping”. Due to the
sluggish market conditions in. fixed line segment and
delay in tie up of external funds, there has been a
negative growth of about 16.83% in the fixed line
subscriber base of the Company. However, the Mobile
Subscriber base wrew by 28.34% from 2,32,769 at the end
of March 2008 tn 2,935,740 at Ihe end of March 2006

The reverue from telecom service decreased from Rs.
2488.8 million in the previpus year to Rs.2235.7 million
during this year mainly because of decining ARPUs,
This impacied the Cherating Peofits, ie. Barnings Before
Interest. Deprecialion, Extra Ovdinary [terns and Tax
stoed af Xs 191.1 million as compared to the previous
vear's figure of K. 261.5 million

(Rs. trx milion)

Revenue at plance i5 23 follows:

FINANCIAL FERFORMANCE
Key Financial Tndicators
Telecom Business
{Ks. in million)

TY 200809 | FY 2007-08
22357 2488.8

FParameter

Revenue from
Telephony Service

EBIDTA 1911 261.3

On Grass Baais

{Rs. in million)

[IFCL INFOTEL LIMITED e

Parameter Y 20u8-G%4 FY 1007-08
{Gross Incame A2G.6 24598
Operating Profit 1011 2613
Loss atfer 'Fax 2147.3 14253

Parametier FY 2008-19 | FY 200708
Unified Access Services 1507.9 13290
Inlerret Services 339.2 464
Interconnect Lsage Charges 137.0 1414
Infrastructure Services hia 21.3
Other Tneome 13.9 1.0
Total 2249.6 24921

Major Expenses at a glance ate as follows:

(Ry. in million}

Parameter EY 2008-09 | FY 2007-08
Network Operations 1133.7 1138.3
Expendilure

FPersonoe] Cost 482.2 479.5
Sales & Markeling 1550 1931
Expenditure

Administration & 2876 4253
Other Expenditure

Finance Cost 8783 6351
Tatal - 2736.3 3935

Share Capital

During the period, the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE}
and Madras Stock Fechange (M3E) have granted Tisting
and trading permission’ in respect of (i} 43,20,00,250
equily issned pursuant fo the Amalgamation and {if}
8,20,70,0588 Equity Shares issued o Financial fnstitutions
and Banks un conversion of part of principle term debt
in term of the restructuring scheme approved through
CDE mechanism.

Further, in terms of the {i) restructuring package
approved by COR cell {iiy inlerprelive letter issued by
SEBI vide letter no. CFD/DIL/IC/SM/ 161206 /09 dated
April 24, 2009 on the issue price of equily shares and
(itl} “in-principle” approval received from BSE and MST
under ciause 24(a) of the listing agresment, the company,
in the Share Transfer and Investor Grievance (5TIG)
Committce meeting hetd on July 08, 2009, has allotied
4,67,43,116 equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each at par to
Financial Institution and Banks against the share
applicalion maoeey, which was placed on conversion of
OFCDs along with premium in terms of the
restructuring packapge approved by CDR. Pursuant to
the compliance of post-alledment reqetirements of the
aforesaid equity shares, the Company has applied to
BSE and MSE for the listing & trading approval.
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Consequent to the aforesaid atlotment, the equily share
capital of the company now stands increased io
Rs.612,26002,680/- comprising of 61,22,60,268 Equity
Shares of Rs. 10/- each; Preference Share Capital remains
R, 65,00,00,000 /- comprizing of 63,00,00¢ - Cumulative
Redeemable Preferenee Shares (CRPS)Y of Re. 100/- each
held by M/s Himachal Futuristic Communication
Limited {Holdics Company).

Secured Loans

The secured loans of the company have been incressed
from Rs. 6220.5 million on March 31, 2008 to Rs. 6566.0
million on March 31, 2009 maioly dee to the conversion
of inderest en term secured loans for the perind July 1,
2008 Lo October 31, 2009 inta Funded Interest Tarm Loan.

Unsecured Loans

The unsecured {oans have decreased from Rs. 1481.2
miltion on March 31, 2008 to Rs. 1388.5 miHion on Macch
31, 2069 mainly chae to the part repayment of Buyer Credit
Facility availed from The Export Import Bank of China.

Tixed Assels

During the year 2005-09, the net block has decreased
from Redblesd miflion o March 31, 2008 to Ra. £218.5
million on March 31, 2609, The Capital Work in Progress
is Bs 2.2 milliom on March 31, 2009 as compared o R
1224 mitlion on March 51, 2004,

Investmaonis

During the year under review, TBSL Cable Notworks
Limited (Tormorly Connect Broadband Services Limited)
has reased to be a subsidiary of the company w.e.f. Aprii
16, 2008 pursuant o e sale of enbire 90,50.000 equity
shares held by the company in CBSL Cable Networks
Liet. tn THyricablz Metworks (India) Private Limited at par
vide Share Purchase Avrrcement dated March 26, 2008,

During he year ended March 31, 2909 the Company
incorpotrated 3 subsidiary in the name and style of
“Infotel Tower [nfraztructure Private Limiled” [or the
purpose of creating infrastruchure for telecom operations,
manpower gulsourcing and lrading activities welated o
telecommunication operations and invested s 94,800
to subscribed to 9980 aquity shares at a fuce value of Rs
10 each fully paid up.

{Current Liabilities

The Current iabilities and Provisions of the company
stoed at Rs, 4082.2 million on March 31, 2009 as compared
t0 3858.4 million on March 31, 2008, This increase is on
account af advance centals for lease of Oplic Fiber under
IR basis at Rs 16698 million, increaze in advance by
Bs1¥ miiliion received from a non sharehelder, increase
in Expense pavable by ®a. 4177 million, increase in FUC
chatges payabie by Rs. 40,17 million, increase in

provisiom for intevest by Rs. 3131 million and increase
in other fiabilifes by Rs 2351 million.

Current Assets

The current assets of the company stood at Rs. 6944
millton as on March 31, 2002 as compared to s 734.0
million as on March 31, 2608, These mainly include cash
& bank balances:, loans and advances and sundry
Dehtocs.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN
RESOURCE

The company strongly believes that human capital is
the key resnurce in achieving company's growth arnd
business success. The year ended on March 31, 2009
witnessed employee strength of 598, with an average
age of employees being less than 32 wrs. The company
has a professionally qualified work force out of whick
more than 70% ate Engincers, MBA's, C.A / C5. etc. The
organization has laken a lob of initiatives for people
and erganizational development. Continuous inputs are
being designed and imparted to develoo functionai /
technical and behavioval campetencies of the emplnyees
For individial growtl and also o ensure business success
on susiainable basis.

Modern pav practices such as market-based
cnmpensation o ddentify meritorracy and pertormance
are basis of all compensation desigh and review in
cotnpany. Quarterly aporaisals encourage paople Lo
perform optinally and contribube in achieving business
goals,

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The report may conizins forward looking statements,
which may be identified by their use of words like "plan’,
‘expects’, ‘will’, ‘believes’, ‘estimates” or other words of
similar meanng. All statements that address
expectations or projections about the future, including
But not limited lo statement about the company’s
strategy for growth, product development, market
position, expendiures and flinancial results are forward
looking slalrments.

Forward-inoking statements are hased on certain
assumptions and expectations of future events. The
company cannot guaraniee that these assumptions and
expectations are accurate and will be realized. The
Company’s achial results, peclormance er achicvements
could thus differ materially from those prajacted in any
such forwarnd-looking statements. The company assumes
no responsibility o publicly amend, wodily or revise
any forward lovking sktements on the basis of any
subsequent developments, information and gvenls.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
FOR THE YEAR 2008-09

{As required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement
entered into with Stock Exchanges)

Corporate Guvernance is crucial to the very existence of
the Company as it builds confidence, frust and Fong term,
relation with its investors, customers and all other
stakeholders, encourages efficient use of resaurces and
ensufes accountability and transparency thereby leading
te overall growth of the business.

L. Company’s Philosophy and Principles on Corparate

v Execulive freedom to Lhe managament in onder to
drive the enterprise forwacd without any undue
resiraints,

% The freedom of Management be exercised within
the framework of effective accountability

The Corporate Governance in Lhe Company, based on
the principles and philesophy as mentioned above,
takes place at three interlinked levels io,

a) Strategic supervision by #Hw Board of Directors,

bl Variews Committees of the Board of Dirtectors.

¢} Reporting and disclosures.

1. Board of Directnrs

(A} Compaesitivn

The Board consists of Seven (7) Directors including Lwo
Nominee Directors nominated by the institutional
lenders namely, The Industria? Drevelopment Bank of
Indtia Limited and the Life Insurance Corporation of
India. All the board members possess adequate
experience and expertise. The Board oversees tha overall
business operations with the day-to-day affaivs being
managed by the Chief Execulive Officer in consnliation
with the senior Management team,

The non-executive directors and the independent
directors constitute more than 50% of the streagth of the
Board anel the Company has a non-cxecutive Chairman,

The non-executive directors with their diverse
knowledge, experience and expertise contribute their
independent judgment and views in the deliberations
and decisions of the Board.

None of the Directors are member in more than fen
Committees nor Chairman of more than five
Commiftecs accoss all the companies in which they are
directors.

The current composifion of the Board and the cafegory

Gevemnance uf the Direcfors s as under:
Phrilosophy S [Name of the | Dateof | Calegory | Noof | Cotnuei- | Commi
Pransparency, Accountability, Inkegrity, Fairness, No. | Director Appoint:  Oher |t e
Purposefulness, Trust, Communication and Quality ment L::::m &E?ﬁnw Gﬁ;::-;;
& constitute the Company’s Philosophy on Corporate —- - e i
b Governance with the ultimate aim of valne creation for a M Mahendra | Z0400 10FNED 22 g
aH. Nahas i T'En
iChairnan] :
Principies b |MinRRBes | B0L05 NED/D ¢ 5 1 o
Company has laid a strong foundation for making -EEE‘[T”WU{  Nomiwee) .
Corporate Governance as the way of life by -~ ! _ i
implementing a Corporate Guvernance Policy. The ¢ g'gﬂp‘:h AHHDB ':PE’_I[L v 4
Policy is based on highest standard of Corporate w:m:?mm e . .
Governance practices, whick apart from, fulfilling the TThes | peny 1T o
requiremenis of clause 49 of the listing agresment E,ai;;nmmf’* AHILIE] DA =
entered witke Stock Exchanges, lays stress on complete - - — " —
transparency, business ethics andl social obligations of " ;flt]’dp DULID) DD #o0
the Company. The Company s phitosophy on Corporate e f— — .- -
Governance is based on the following two core basic It "Tr KR Lal : 210208) NFEy/NIL) 2 - A
principles: g [DrRebjee: [ WtoX0| NED/NTL 2 |3 T
Wizl Kastia i i i

{C-Chatrar; NED-Nonr Executive Oirector; PD-Feqmoter
Divectar, [D-Independont Divector, NID . Non freliperidentt
Divector]

Note:

“ncludes Menthersinip / Chairmaiship in ol public Hmited
Crempanies whethar sied or not and excludes srivite
compartivs, Committess copsidered are Auelit Commitiee,
Remupneration Commnittee, Share Tramsfer & lavestors’
Grievance Cornmittee and Profect Managament Review
Cixmnribize,

M. 5 Lacshmenan has beern appointed as frtduperndens
Sdditional Director subsequent 1o b FestTHREIOn a5 nontines
Direvtor of LIC w.e . Gctober 30, 2008, 8. Rujesh Kandwal
hoas beer appuinted a3 Director (15 Nominge of LICh on the
Board of the Company in place of Mr. S, Laksiunarsi,

Na Director is relaked to any other Uirector on the Board
i termes of the definftion of ‘refative’ yiven under the
Companies Act, 1956,

(B) Attendance at the Board Meatings and Annual
General Meeiing

The Board meels at luast once in 2very quarier o review
and discuss the operating resufts amf other items of
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agenda. The Company Secretary while preparing the
Apenda, Notes on Agends and Minufes of the Meelings
15 respoosible for and is required Lo ensure adherence o
ail the applicable laws, rules and regulations including
the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Rules issued there
under and the Secretarial Standards recommended by
the Tnstitute of Company Secretaries of Indin.

Additionzl meelings of the board are held whenever
requived. During the period from Apsil (7%, 2008 1o March
31, 3009, the Board met fve Umes on the Lol ing dates
viz. May 31, 2008, lune 28, 08, July 331, 2008, October
30, 2008 and January 31, 2005,

The 81* Annual General Mecting of vour Company was
halkt on Seplember 30, 20G8.

Attendance at the Board Meelings held during the vear
2005-0% and at the last Annual Ceneral Meetng is as
undur:

Attendance of the DHrectors in the Financial Year 2008-
2000

5. [Name of the Direclor Board }leetinﬁi E
Mo, Held {Atten- Last!
during | ded AGHM
the atben-
tanure dad i
& (M Mahendra Mahata 3 2 Mo
I AT S Lakshmanan 3 1 Y H
¢ PMr R K Bansal 3 { Mo |
d Ve MP Shokda 3 2 No
e A K.B.Lal 3 4 Mo
o |Be ROM. Kastia 3 4 Yos E
v IMr Rajesh Kandwal 2 3 Nt

* There have been only two imectings since appointment
of &r. Kajesh Kandwal as Direclne w2, Doiober 30,
2008.

(C) Information Placed before the Board

T comnpliance with clause 49 of the LisbHng Agresment

pectaining o Corporate Governance, the following

mackers are regulardy placed befors the Board 1 addition
try the ofher matters which statutoriiy eequire Board’s
approval:

i Minuies of afl the Committes Yleetings:

b Quarterly Un-audited Financial Resulls of the
Company;

r. Annual Gperating Plans, Sudgets and updates
Lhersar;

d. Infenmation on recruitment, resignation and
remuperation of aill zenier efficials including
appointment of Chief Financia: Officer and
Clonpany Secretary:

[+

Shnw cause, demand, prosaoaticn oiices,
I
penalty notices ebe, whicdt are matesially tmportant;

[ Matedal defanlt in financial obligations, if any, fo
andd by the Company or subslantial non-payment
for goods sold or services rendered by the
Conmpany,

Non-comphiance of any regulatory and statutory
requirements ot listing requiremenls and
shareholders” service; :

%

h. Details of any joint venture or collaboration
agrecment;

i, Quarterly defails of loreign exchange exposures and
steps fakan by the management to limit the tisks of
adverse exchange rate movement, if materiai

. Legal Compliance reports and Certificates.
k. Accounhs of the subsidiary Compantes.
3 Ceommibees of the Board

The board has constituted various comimittess for the
smoovh and efficient opelations of Company's actvikes.
The Cemntilless mest at regular intervats 1o review
respeclive arcas of opetation. The draft minutes of the
procecdings of each Commiktee meeting are cirondaled
i the members of that Comynittes for thair conuments
and therealter, confinmed b the respective Committee
in irs next mieeting. The procecdings of all such
Commitles meetings are regularly placed before the
Board.

{41 Audit Commities

The Audil Comumittee comprises of the following
members:

b }.'L-*.__S Laxshmanan, Chairman
4 Mr Mabeodra Mahata
Az R K Ban:zal

L MW MLP Shukla

The Audil Committee of the Company is constituted in
linge with the provisions of Clause 49 of ihe Listing
Agrecment with Stock Exchangres read with Section 2614
of the Companies Act, 1956 and comprises of three
independent directors. The Commitles meets regulariy
and the Stalilory Auditors, the Internat Anditors, Chist
Fxeculive UHficer and other Senior Officers am invitees
to the meetings. The quorum for the Audit Committee
is tweo independent members. The broad terms of
reference, as stipulaked by the Soard to the Avdil
Commither are as {ollows:

+

P Cwverview of the company’s financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its {inancial
infurmabion o ensure that the financial statements
are correct, safficient and credible;

S Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-
appointment and, if requiced, the replacement of
removal of the statutory anditors ami fixation of
audit fees;

S Approval of payment to Stabztory Auditurs



< Reviewing, with the management, the annual
financial statemenis before submission fo the Board
for appraval, with particular reference to:

#.  Matters required to be included in the Divector's
Resporsibility Staterment io be included in Lhe Directors”
Report in terms of clause {ZAA) of section 217 of the
Companies Act, 1956

b.  Changes, if any, in seeounting policies and practices
LE (=] p P
and reasans for the same

¢ Major accounking cntries invoiving sstimates based
on the exercise of judgment by management

Significant adjustments made in the financial
statements arising out of audit findings

o

g Compliance with listing and other legal
requirements relating to fnancial statements

{  Dhsclosure of any related party transactions
i Chralifications in the drafe audit report,

© Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly
financial statements before submission b the Board
fur approval

2 Reviewing, with the management, performance of
statutory and Internal Auditors, adeguacy of the
ibernal control systems.

W Reviewing the adequacy of internai andir function,
if any, including the slruciure of the internal audis
department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the depariment, reporting structurs
coverage and frequency of internal audit,

% Dhscussion with the internal auditors on any
signiticant findings and follow up there on,

% Reviewing the findings of any interoal
inveshigations by Lhe internal auditors into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularcity or 2
failure of internal control systems of a muaterial
nakure and reporting the matter to the Goard.

* Diseussion with Stabutory auditors before e audit
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-sudit discussion fo ascertain any area
of concern.

*+ Loek into the reasons for substantial defaulis in e
payment to the depositors, debenlure liolders,
shareholders (in case of non payment of declared
dividends) and creditors.

The Audit Commiltes has been mandatorily authorized

to review following Information:

o Muanagement discussion and analvsis of financial
condiion and results of operations

4 Statement of significant related party fransactons,
submmitted by the management

“  Management letters S lellers of internal controd
weaknesses issued by the statubory audilors;

O,
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% Internal Audit Reports relating o internal control
wesknesses;

During the year under review, Five (8} Audit Commitbec

meetings ware held on the [ollowing dates:

May 31, 2008, fone 28, 2008, [idy 31, 2008, October 30,

2008 and January 31, 2009, The attendance at the Awdit

Committee Meatings was as under:

Attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings for the
FY 204519

5. I Mame of the Members MNo.ol No. of

Nao. Meellngs | Meelings
held durkngt Attended
the fenure

a W 5, Lakshmanan 3 1

b | br, Maherdra Nahata 5 3

¢ [ Mr R K. Bansal 3 4

d | Mr. M.P.Shukla 5 3

{B) Remuneration Commitice

The Remuncraticn Committee of the Compary
romprises of all non-executive directors and the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committes iz an
independent director.  The constitution of the
Remuneration Commirtee meets the requirements of
Clause 49 of the Listing Agveement. The Remuncration
Committee comprises of the follpwing members:

w0 MroS laksbrognan, Chaioman
v A M P Shkla
v Dr BoM Kastia

The Committes (s responsiile to gversee the following
mrlters:

d. Delermination of she remuneration packages {e
salary and perjuisites payable to the Managing and
other Executive Directors and o the Managzer under
Commpanies Act, 1958,

b, Determination of the amount of banus, stock option,
penston rights and compensaton paymanis to the
dManaring and other Executive Directors and o the
Mansger Under Companies Agt 19536,

The Comemitkee met fwice during the last finarcial year
Lo on [une 28, 2008 and Janoary 31, 2009, The aiteodance
al the Rememeration Committee Meetings was as undar:

Abtendance at the remunerabion Committee Meetings
for the 'Y 2008-09

Gt Name of Members MNo.of MNooof
M. Meetings | ¥leetings
held Attended
during the
tetiure
a Mre. 5 Lakshmanan 2 : 2
la Mr. b7 Shukla 2 2
c Pr. K. M. Kastia 2 3
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(C) Share Trauster and Investors’ Grievance
Commitice

There are two Commitkees viz, Share Transfer and
Investors' Grievance Committee (5T} & Share ‘Fransfer
In-house Commniitiee to lack into redressal of
sharehelders complaings in respect of franster /
trangmission / transposition split of shares, issue ol
duplicate share certificates and non-receipt of dividend
etc. and to ovorsee Lhe performance of Regisizar and
Share Trarsfer Agent and o recommend measures for
averall improvement in the quality of investor services
etc.

Board level Committee, which is ¥nown as the Share
Transfer and Investors” Grievance Committes (5TIG),
comsists of the following members:

o Pr. R Rastia, Chaioman
W Mr BB Lai
v MroNE P Shukla

.

@ Mr Kapil Bhalta, Company Secretary is the
Comoliance Qfficer.

this Comimnittee mests on need basis to approve the
share trausfers / transmission / issue of duplicate share
certificates etc. above 3,000 shares. In the case of requast
vecoived for inss of shaces, however, only STIG (s
cmpowered to issue the duplicate share certificates.

Pruring the year undet review, the STIG Comumittee met
twice on Clctober 3G, 2008 and March 31, 2005 apgd the
attendance at STIG meetngs was as under:

51 Mame of Member No.oi MNowt
MNo. Meetings | Meetings
held Ahended
during the
fenmurs
a . B AL KasghHa 2 2
2 W, KL Lal | 2 ?
ic dr bl P ahukia 2 2

The Board of Directors has constifuted anozher
Committee ramely ‘Share Transier In-House
Committes’ comprising of the following membwrs:

< M Surendra Lupia, Chief Exeeutive Officor

7 Mr. Vikash Agarwal, Viee President - Corporate
Finance

%o 0 Dinesh K Verma, Associate Vieo President -
Finance and Accounts

% M Kapil Bhalla. Company Secretary

The Share Transter In-tlouse Conumitles i smpowered
to approve fransfers [/ Wransmission [/ transposiion up
to 5000 no of shares and issue of duplicate share
covtificakes (in case of tom / mutilated share certifizates).
lhe Commiltee meets formightly, This Committee is
amotvered o jssue duplicate share certificates only in

the case of mutialed / toro / parfially burnt shares etc.
During the year-ended March 31, 2009, 23 no. of meetings
of n-House Share Transfer Committee were held.

Total suzmber of complaints received and replied to the
satistaction of shareholders during the year was 6. There
was no unresolved complaint as on Macch 31, 20019,

(T2 Project Management Review Committee (PMRC)

Project Management Review Commibtee compriscs of
the following members:

s Wi M. P.Shukla, Chairman

4 Mr. Mabendra Nahata

s+ Mir. R K. Bansal

o Nr S.Lakshmanan

e Mr KOB. Lal

scope of Revietwr of the Connmities includes:

o Review of the cost of project and means of finance.

w  Review of progress made in implementanion of the
projedt.

4+ Heview of all major contracts snd orders for supply
and service of plank aud machinery and other assets.

+  Review of and reconuvending the process of
orocuremant and encdering to be followed by the
Lompany.

W Reoview ot roll oot plan and its implementation.

o Review of terms of License Agreement with DoT
and amendmeniz thereto.

*» Raview of Interconnect Agreements with other
Telecom pperators.

* sunituring Key Performance Indicators, budgetary
variances and review of operations.

4 Weview of the Annual Budget before it is presented
to the Board for approval.

Porpers of the Commitfee;

W To investigate any activity within terms of
Beierence.

% Tor seek information from any vendor/ supplier.
s Tu seek information on the operations of the
Company,

During the year vnder review, the 'MR Comumittes
coassting of Board Members has not met as the issues
were discussed in the Board Meetings.

(E) Sitting fee paid o the Ditectors

A sitting fees of Rs. 3,030/ is paid to all the Non-
Exeoutive Directors for attending each meeting of the
Board and /or Commiltes thereal. The amount of sitting
tee paid to the directors durirg the FY 2008-09 is as under:
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5. | Name=of the DHrocs Eoard Andll | Remu | Frofect | STIG | Tall
N Slocting | Cocr fooemw | maremee § Come § Siding
mites [ imn ment  fomiltee | Fee

moete fcoman | Review | mocts Poopaid
ing | e | committee} ing
meek | meching

ing
a | Mahend=a Mahata A5.0:0 | E5800) MA il [aa 150,000
b | tde %k Bapsal 20.0M a0 ki til A |£5000H
r [ b SFakslisanan A M | o e Vi aun il R DAL
d {Me M. Shuikla 25,000 | 25.200 |LE, w0 Ml 10, GO A0, 000
& | Mr X.0Lat 1000 A A il 1, G0 | 3 Can
Blr B Restis 208 M fd,on il ;000 | 48,000
Vo Bapest Bancbwead 145, 0L A A “il MA [ 1e 0o

El
a

*Noother remuneration was paid to the Non-Executive
Directors axcept payment /reimbursement of actual
axpenses incurred travel, conveyance eic. for attending
the meetings.

4. General Body Meefings

The location and time of the last three Annual General
Meocotnes was as under:

Extraordinary General Meeting held during 2008-09: Nii
Annuat General Meeting held duding Iast throe FYs:

Yoar ACM| Location Dafe Time
No.

Aa0s-aia] 8% | B-Y1, Industrial Sorea, | 2900920008 [ 12400 Mooa
Phase-Y[I, Mohati
2002007 S § BT Industiial Area, | 29.55.2007 {1200 Moon
Plase-ViIL Mohali
207 20 a1 [ BFL {nclustriel Arew | 30.09.2008 | 12,00 Noon
Fhaze-vE, Mokali

Postal Ballnt

Mo resolution was required to be approved through
prstal bailot in e finaowial year under review inteoms
af the provisions of Section 192 A of the Compandes Acs,
2955 and the miles framed there under. Howaver in the
Board meeting held on May 03, 2009, the Snard decided
to shift the Registered Office of the Company from
Mohali in the State of Punjab to Mumbai in the state of
Maharashira. In ferms of the provisiens of Section 1924
of the Companies Act, 1858 the said special resolution
was required to be approved by the sharehoiders
through postal ballol and subseguently the result of the
nostal battot was declared on June 16, 2009 at the
registered office of the Company thereby declaring the
saitl reslution as passed with requisife majority,
Mo resolution on matters requiring postal baliot is
proposed to be placed at the turthcoming Annual General
Meeting for shareholders’ approval.
Special Resoluflons
< In the Aoneal General meeling held on Sepiember
29,2006 no spectal resolution was passed.
*  Inthe Extra ordinary Ceneral decting held on February
37, 2006, spedal resolubions were passed for: -
Approval fur issue of equity shares /preference shares |
equity shares through Global Depesitery Receipts
{GDEs) / Anercian Depository Receipts (ADRs}

—
_—

ii} Approval for Employee Stock Option Scheme

iii} Approval for alleration of Memorandum and
Articles of Association to increase the authorized
capital to Rs 1500 croves

2 In the Annual Cereral Meeling hebd on Septemiber

28, 2007, Special Resolution was passed for re-
appointment and Remuneration payable o M.
Surendrz Lunda, Manager under the Compandes Act,
1930 in termos of Sectionds) 195, 269, 385, 386, 387 and
358 read with Section 2{24) and schedule XHE of the
Companies Act, 1926,
In the last Anvual General Meeting held on
September 30, 2008, Special Regelution was passed
for approval for conversion of the Optionally Fully
Convartible Debentures ((QFCDS) into equity at par
conseguent to the revised Corporate Debt
Reskucturing (CDR) Package as spproved by the
CDR cell.

Dlisclosires

o

Helated Party Transactions
Disclosures on makerially significant relabed party
fransaclions Le. transactions of the Company with
Promoters, Directors, Management, Subsidiaries or
Eelatives ate. that may have potenbal conflict with
the interests of the Company at large.
[Lelated Party transaciions have been disclosed as a
part of Financial Statements as reguired under
Accounting Standard 18 - Disclosure on Related
Farty Transactions, fssued by the Institube of
Chartered SAccountanis of india.
Nene of the ransaclions with any of the related
pasties were in conflict with the interest of the
Cosnpany.

b. Code of Conduct

The Board in its meeting held on 17 March, 2003
fas adopted the Code of Conduct for members of
fhe Board and Sentor Management, The Code lays
down, in detail, the standarcds of business conduct,
ethics and governance.
A copy of the Code s posted on ibe Company’s
website, www. hilceonnectcom
Vhe Code has been circulated to all the memizers of
the Uoard and Senior Managemetil and they have
atfirmed compliance of the same. A declaration
staned by the Manager to this effect which forms
part of thiz report.
The Company has obtained from alt the members
of the Board and Senior Management an affirmation
thast they have complivd with the Code of Conduct
in finarwial year 2G08-019.

o, Risk Management

The Company has adeguale internal contvel systems
in place and exercises various risk-mitigating
measures, The Campany is in the process of laying
down a detailed formal framewoerk for risk
Assessment and risk management.
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d.

Non-Compliance by the Company, penalties, and
strictures impesed on the Company by Siock
Exchanges or SEB1 or any other statntory authotity
on any matter related to capital markets during the
last three years.

There has been no instance of non cempliance by
the Company or penalty or strictures imposed on
the Compary by the Stork Fxchanges or SEBI or
any statutory authorily on any matter refated to
capital markets during the lask three vears.

Secretanial Audif

A qualified practicing Company Secretary carries
out secretarial andit every quarter to reconcile the
total admitted capital with National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depasitary
Services {India} limited (C1S1) and the tatal issued
and listed capital. Tiwe secretarial audit report
canfirms that the total issued/paid up capital is in
agraement with the total number of shares in
physicai form and the total number in
dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDXSL.

Unde for Prevenfion of [nsider Trading Practices

In terms of the provisions of 3EBT (Prevention of
fnsider Trading Regulations), 2002, as amended, the
Company has formulated a “Code of Internal
procedure and conduct for prevention of insider
tracing”. The Cede [ays down the guidelines and
advises the designated employees on procedure to
be followed and disclosures ko be made while
dealivg in shares of the Company,

Whistle blower Policy

The company has adepted a Whistle slower policy
w2 f May 14, 2007 and Mr. 8. 5. Nijjar is designated
33 Chief Vigilance Officer {CVO) under the policy
and he will be responsible for carcving out a
romprehensive, neutral and fair investigation into
the matlers reported. The policy was circulated to
all the smoloyees of the Company and postad at
the Company website.

Means of Communication

A The Quarterty, Half Vearly and Annual resolts
are published in “The Financial Express” -
English daily and “Besh Sevalk” - vernacular
lenguage paper and forwarded to Stock
Exchanges immediately. Press releases are also
issued simultaneousty.

B The Compeany’s official website
www . hiclconnect.com contalns & separate
dedicated seetion ‘Investor Relations” where
shareholders information is availahle. The
Annual Repott of the Company is also available
on the wehsike in a user-fricodly and
dawnloadable form.

C. Al material information about the Company
is promptty sent through facsimile tir the Stock
Exchanges where the shares of the Company
are listed.

. Apnual Report Annual Repott containing, inter
alkz, Audited Annual Accounts, Consolidated
Financial Statements, Directars” Repart,
Anditors” Report and other important
infarmation is circulated to members and others
entitled theretn, Managemert Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A) Report forms part of the
Annual Reporl.

E. SEBIETHFAR: Annua! Report, Quarterly Results,
Shareholding Pattern, ate. of the Company were
also posted on the SES{ EDIFAR website
www sebiedifarnic.in.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms
part of the Annual Report.

Genaral Shareholder Information

a. Company Registration Datails: The Campany
is registared in the State of Punjab, India. The
Corporate ldentity Number (CIN} allotted to
the Company by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA) is LOCOOIPETMARTLCO26718,

b, 62" Agnual General Maeting

Date : Seplember 29, 2009
Time : 12:00 Noan,
Yenue : B-71, Indusirial Foeal Moint.

Phase VI Maohah
¢. Financial Year and Financial Calendar
Financial Year : 1" April to 31+ March
d. Financial Calendar ni the Company (Tentative}

| Results ‘o the Qtr ensding Last week of fuly, 2009
S0 Fune, 2069
Resuls for the Qtr vading Last week of Oct, 2009
30 Seslember, 2009

Resulz for the Qtr exding [_ask week of Ju, 2010
3¢ December, 2009

Regulés tor Bur vear ending Last week of une, 200
3T wiarch, A0
Annual Deneral Meeting I Septeinber, 2010

g,  Dates of Book Closure

The Company's Register of Members and Share
Transicr Bovks will remain closed before date
of Annual General Meeting and intimation of
the same shall be given (o stack exchanges and
oublished in news papers.

The financial year covers the period from
1+ April, 2008 to 31* March, 2009

£, Lividend payment date :

The Board has not recommended any dividend
fur the financial vear 2008-0%



Registered Office

The Registered Office of the Company is situaied at
E-71, Phase VI,

levdustrial Focal FPoint,

behall, Punjab-160 053

Tel.: 1172 - 50000 (EPABX)

Fax : 0272 - 50471275

e-mail: secretarind@ifeiconnect.com

Listing of Equity Shares on Stock Excharges
Company’s shares aze listed on:

-Bombay Stock Exchange and

-Miadras Stack Fxehange.

As al March 31, 2009, the post-merger subseribed,
tssued and paid up equity share capikal of the
Company consists ol 32,53,37,152 equity shares of
.10/~ each.

Qut af the above:

-L04,46,814 equity shares (37,16.000 equity shares
issued prior to amalgamation and 17,3081 equity
shares allotted pursuant iz conversion of warrants
tssued fo the shareliclders of I as per the Schems
of Amalramation’ are listed on the Bombay Stock
Exchange (B5E) and Macias Stock Fxchange (MSE),

-43,20,00,250-equily shares of Bs 19/- each allotted
tu the sharsholdsrs of the erstwhile HECE Infalel
Limited pursuant <o the scheme of armalgamation
were yeb to be listed on BSE and MSE il ".a[arcn 31,
2009, Listing and Trading permission in respect of
these 43,2000002350 equity shares, has been grapted
by BSE vide is lelter v BSE aw. DCS/ AMAL /
RCOG/ TED/ 102/2009-10 dated May 14, 2009 and
Notice number 20090514-12 isyued on Way 14, 2009
weef. May 15, 3009 Adso MSE has granted trading
and lishing permisaion vides their letter Mo, MSE/
LI/ PSE/ 7387134 /09 dated June 12, 2609 eifeciive
from June 12, 3006,

- B,30,70,088 ity shares of Rs. 10 gach allotted to
the Lenders viz, [ndnstrial Development Bank of
India (IDBI), Oriental Bank of Commerce (80), TNG
Vysya Hank on October 16, 2G04 pursuant to Hhe
restructuring package apuroved ander Corporats
Debt Restructuring (COR) mechanism, were et to
be lisied on BSE and MSE till March 31, 2004,

HSH vide its Notice Mo, 20090605 issued on fune (5,
2009 has granted iisling perndssion in respect of
these 8,30, 70468 Eguity Shares w.ed. June 08, 21}09
alse MS3E has vranted listing permission vide it
letter No, MSE/ . IJFI’H[\I"-H 148/09 dated July 2,
200% effective from July 2, 2009,

With the aforasaid listing, ail the 32,55,17,152 eqgnity
shares of the Company siand listed on Bombay Stock
Exchange limited {BSE) and Madras Slock Bxchange
Limited (MSE).

The requisite listing (ee has baen paid to the Stock
Exchanges wwhare shares of the Company are listed,
Listing fer s ot payable to Caloulta Stock Dxchange
as the Compuany had ompieted all the lormalites
for delisting however the Iixchange is withholding
delisting without assigning any reason.

LIVCL INFOTEL LIMITED

Issue of B,67,43,116 equity shazes

In terms of the {i} restructuring package approved
by CDR cell {ii} inderpretive letter issued by SEBR
vide letter no. CRFT/DILAIG/SMY 161406/09 dated
April 24, 200% on the issue price of equity shares
and (fii) ‘tn-principle’ approval received from BSE
and MSE under ciaase 24(a) of the listing agreement,
the company, in the Share Transfer and Invesioe
Grievance {3T1G) Committee meeling held an July
08, 2009, has allotted 8.67,43,116 equity shares of
Rs.10/- cach at par o Financial Institution and Banks
against the share apulication money, which was
placed on corversion of OFCDs along with
premium i terms of the restructuring package
approved by COR,

Pursuant to the compliance of post-aliotment
requirements of the aforesaid equity shares, the
Company has apphed to BSE and MSE for the listing
& trading approval for the aforesaid 8,67 43116
copuily shares.

i, Stock Code

% The Stock Code on the Bombay Stock Txchange
3UIt6
* The Stock Code on the Madras Stock Exchange
Led. - ITR

i+ Stock Price Data
The reported high and low closiog prices of the
Company's shares traded during the Fscal 2008-2009
on the Bombay Slock Exchangs are given below:

Munth High Low
Api8 2260 17.10
Way'Cd 2180 17.90
Tunn8 930 14.55
Jul'o8 , Ty 1250
Augty 19,85 15356
Sept'ds 1776 11.25
(08 12.23 i
MNov g #0560 5.505
Dec'0B 1280 &.00
JET R 14.24 R.ED
Feb'lo 337 7.51
bela 9 937 6.37

Parformance in comparison to BSE Sensex

Share Prices (High - Low)
FY 2008049

[alwa fRs.]
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HICL ENFOURL LEVTTED

k. Registrar & Share Transfer Agents Lumiu, Clief fxeculive Officer, Mr. Vikash Agarwal,
vices Lid. O L VI — Corporate Finance, Mr. Dinesh Verma, AVP-
M'{E." Camec:Corp(‘Jra’re Services Lid,, Chientai is Finance and Accounts and Mro Kapil Bhalla,
Reypistrar & Share 1 :‘an.sflm' Agent of the Campm}’ Company Secretury i authorized to approve
who handles all Securities I:m_usfe;- fw'm'k, both in transfers / transmissions / fssue of duplicate share
physical and demat segments including all aspects certficates in cases the number of shares involved
of Investor servicing relating 1o shares. is below 5,000 in number. In Lhe case the request is
. . . 1 0 i aalics ificate i
1. Registrar for Public Depasils rlcr:owed o issue of duplic i.hlst shares certificate in
liey of the losi share verlificate. a Board fevel
M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Lid, Chennat is Comuniftes krown as Share Transkor and Investors”
Registrar to handle all Public Deposit claims and to Grievange Committee (STHZ) is authorized. The
service the deposit holders, Share Transfer and Shareholders / Investors
Gy T for Sust Cricvance Committee meets at regular intervals o
. Share Transfer System . - :
™ ‘ ; ¥ consider share transfer and shareholder grievances.
Tradlmg o Eq‘ult‘y Bﬂar.ﬁ. ot t‘he t-ompany i 0. Distribution of Shareholding a5 on 317 March, 2009
permitted only in dematerialized form. Shares sent
For transter in physical form are registered and No. ok Rquity |_ Sharehaldzss Sh“"h?m“lg
an = . . I r
returned within a period of 21{twenty ane) days Shares Held No | % of total No. {% vf htal
from the date of receipt of the documents, provided T 1 10356 | sz4391| prledas0l 03266
all documents are valid and complete in all respects. 001 RO 1IR8 88510 e389280 | 00767
4 idiadines : . CT e S—— o
In accordance with SEBL muidedinegs, the Company OO0 - 2000 3374 14340 217030 | LAsET
- i ilika- yF L N AT P r H _
offers the facility of transfer-cum-dema: fo 20901 - 50030 4l 12035|  4250870| 00810
shareholders after sharz lransfers is affected In . 1 - [ -
R A00AT - 4000 I I R 2TIUAG 0.0303
physical furm. . i wgmi :
40001 - 3500 31 07164 4304390 Jamld
Wlthfa view [n expediiing the ﬁrocess {_Brf Shalre J00E- 100000 | U1 09813 9L967i0E 2173
N X = itboer oo Sha ranster T Fala =1 O0= 00 -
transicrs, a E.Dmm_lttc XIHOWT -t?lS.t & S5h l‘e_ 5 T00DRL - & Abovz | 117 05303 15199339730 © 959413
[n-House Commattes comprising Mr. Surendra : Mmoo
Tolal : 112552 1000000 | 3255171520 1HL0000
o. Sharcholding Pattern as ou 31 March 2012
1 | Categacy of sharcholiees NoonE o Toll M Lhare in Takal Fhaseanlding a5 Shares Pledued nr nlenwise
alage- 0 af shaoes Bealat 1 pereenbo: o lolad ownber v uzn e
halders i lnases o
i 254 LOF | AasAsOf | Numbsraf | As a0
il Ia+g-Cr ) Allaces = VHLAIV)
(o 1l CIfE iV v 40 (Vi v (TXH ;
A [ SHAREHULDING OF FROMOTER AN D
FROMOTER GROLP i
tlevoiax 5 .
BDIES COEFORAYVE 1" ST fut=ael BcH 111 Al AT 21 4TTa IS T ,\-l.._ﬂ!.
2 P EDHEIGN ! u I3 i n R £ c
TUIFAL SHARE SOLRING OF PROMGTER .
AND PROMOTER GROLE S48 = 1430 4100 1" AT I 2905000 | _stATTs nIueTd 203380800 i35
B[ PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING !
1 1 INSTITUTIONS : .
a | FIMANCIAL INITITUTION : 500k 2043 ; A N.A
i | FOREIGN INATITUTION A8 STORS 1 20040 . : ; LA N
SU% - TOTAL 1BHL T ) 1153 L ; WAL e
2 | NOR-INSTITUTIONS : I . :
2. | BONES CORTOTATE 33 AR IATEED 4641730 ATHT | 13723 i B oA
& | INDIVIDUALS - ! | .
I INDES LG AL SHARERL REEL] ETAT HIFLI IETE naL ‘ N A
I ' i 1140787 w1 E 2.342% P MNA LA
! :
BS. ! LAKE : : !
c. | ANY OTHER
CLEALING MESBERS 14 e MaA
HEMEID PNDIVIDED Ea3TLiES ay SEIERT MA
NOM RESIDENT 1D S 44 456l w
OVERSELS UL Y BLINE S i i, TR I b
o o : £l \ Aag? oA | LR
SEE - TUTAE B [ L1 B P AT 35134510 i hoA
TOTAL PHRLIC SHARIFIC 1Ry o 16030 Racee] 1353y g1t FII6HE) 0 A
TOTAL {A+1EH 125t AriELTLaL IE4ITRES ti 1 AL
C.| SHAKES HELD BY CUSTOUIANS AND ACAINST v 7 [ " 1
WINLCH DETOSITORY KECRIVIS HAvE BEEN ISAUTE i -
CIRAND UL EALFIE-(0 12350 SEFRITLRE IA1atEsE LCD 0I5HeA00 64312

€



Tap Ten Shareholders of the Company as on 21.03.2005
5. MNatte of the MNember ¥ of
No. 1 Slharcholder oiahares tutat
Share
huldings
2. Industrial devalopment Ba37ILI0 | 121391
Gank of India Led
b Droental Bank O Commerce p i i 23141
c. MK Interprses L1d TOLEHENIG 13028
d. Manty Hoazing Projects Lil ZOUKNE 3.8057
€. ING Vyaya Bank Limitad 7330 13314
f. Santosh Tndusteies Lid 1230002 23785
B Masitia Capiltal 15020005 28043
Services Led
o [ Awegust Trading TUDGIM0 13028
Frivate [imited
i Linear Commercial (RG] Linas
Frivate Limiloed
I Mordsons Holdings HULETEREY 19028
Private Limited
TOTAL i'?D:_}'?D{]_ﬂ_LB_ 32,4575
p-  Dematerialization of Sharoes
60L60% of the 1ssued Bguity Share Cupital is heid in
dematerialized form with Nationz] Securities
Depository Limited and Cantral Doposivary
Services (India) Limited as on March 31, 2009,
q. Unclzimed Dividends
‘The amouni of unpaid / unclaimed | Hvidend which
was declared and paid for the linancial year endad
darch 31, 2002 shall bz due for transfer f tho
nvestor Education and Protecton Hund (T=PE)
Account of the Central Government alter the expiry
of seven years, i.a, in July, 2009,
r. Qutstanding GDR/ADR or Warrants

45 on date there are no Global Deposiicry Receipis
(LDR), American Depository Receipts (ADR) or
wartants pending conversion and lkely to irapact
the eguity share capital of the Company.

Allotment of equity shares agains: shave
application money farising out of conversion of
7,551,178 Zero percent Secured Oplionaily Fully
Convertible Debentures along with premium in
term of restructuring package approved unday CDR
mechanism: The revised restructuring Fackage. as
approved on funz 24, 2005, stinulaizg ihas the
secared OPCDs, which was issued on {dckober 12,
2004, shall be converted inky shares al par, subject
to the applicable provisions of SEBI G belines and
uther refevant Acts durieyg Financiai year 20075 99,

There was No consensus as e the pricing at which
these OOCDs were to be converted o equeily.
Lenders were of view that the samez shali he
converted al parwhereas the comipary was of view
that the samie shall be converted into equity at a

LECL [MFOTEL LIMITED

price calcuiated as per SEBI formula. Pending
clarifications of the conversion pricing, the
company, parked the corvertilile amount (prinacple
amourd ol OFCHs along with premium in berms of
the raslructuring package approved under TR
mechanism) as "Adwvance against equity /share
application meney aceount’, wilh the consensus of
DFCD hoiders. During the year ended March 31,
2007 the Company had further transferred Rs.
3,250,374 te Advance against Equity Share
SApplivatize money, which pertained o differential
interest due to monthly vis-d-vis quarterly
compounding in respect of tarm lean from scheduled
bank. During lha vear ended March 31, 2008
company chiained additional confirmations from
lenders in raspoct to the conversion of Zero percent
Cptionally Tully Convertible Debenture (*OFCD
including premium acerwed HH March 33, 2006, and
accordingly reduced an amount of Ks 13,110,387
rom the OFCD premium and had taken back the
aquivalent amewmt to securitics praminm zccouut

Or. parablel, the Company requested SEU lor
inferpeetive letter under SEGT {lefonma! Goidance)
wohente 2003 for guidance, Based on puidance
racaived from SEBL vide ivs lotter no, STD/DILS
G866/ 08 dated April 74, 2006 and based
cn the diraction bsued by landor backed by an
independen: leual opinion sought by LR eell on
behalf of the tenderes, the Board of THrectors i its
meeting held on Moy 05, 2099 Jdezlegated the
autharidy 0 the Sharve Transfer and Investor
Crfevarces Commitles (3TIG) to examing, is212 and
ailot the shares, onee the ‘in-principle’ approval from
Bombay Stork Dxchange Limiled (BSE) was received.
BSE vide ibs latier no. DOS/ PREFY DMN / PRE/
522/09-10 dated fuly 1, 2009 granted the in-
veinciole” approval to the company - v krms of
clause 24{a; of the lsting agreement - for allotment
af #,67 45,116 equity shares of Rs. 107 each to be
issued at Par to the Financial Testitution and Sanks,
MSH alsoy granded a sihndlar approval oy the matter,
fn light of the abiove facts, the Share Transicr and
[rwaslors Grievance Committes in (53 meeling held
on fuly 08, 2009 allotted BAT, 43110 oquity shares to
Finaneial nstibution,/s and Banks. The Company has
iiled the fisting application wii 35E and VST and
tinal Listing approval i respect of #hese shares is
awaited.

1,667,761 Fero percent Unsecured Cutionally
Convertible Debantures: As per {he rovised CDR
package approved on June 24, 2009 the osecured
PGS issuad bo Eife lnsurance Corporation of India
and ata‘e Baok of Patiala shall ¢ redeemable at
war, afier the fdl settlement of 4
terders un March 31, 2016 Onexpiratice of starutory
limit within which the conversion option iz
permizsible, such debenlures have beer made as
Non Converlible Eebenfures,

5 o the sbyaared
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V.

HFCL INFOTEL LIMITEL

Head Office

Company’s Head (¥ilice is located al B-71,
industrial Focal Peins, Phase VIi, Mohali,
Punjab - 160 055

Address for Correspondence

Shareholders may correspond on all matlers
relating to transfer / dematerialization of
shares and any other query relating to shares
of the Company.

For Shares held in Physical form

Cameo Corporate Services Lid.

Unpit : HECL Infodel Limited

Subramaniam Building,

No.i, Club House Road

Anna %alai, Chennai-s0{) 002

Telephone Nos. : 044-2846 0390 (3 tines)

figr Shares/Debentures heid in Demat form
Shareholders would have to correspond wilh
the respective Depository Participants for
shares held in demat mode,

My, Kazpil Bhailla,

Company Secretary,

HFCL Indole! Limited

371, Industrial Focal Point , Phase-YIE,
Mobhahi- 160055, Ph.

E-mail: secrefarial@hfcleonnect.com
Compliance Officer Mr. Kapil Bhalla is the
Compliance Qfficer for complying with the
requirements of SEBI Reguiativns and the
Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges
in India. '

Website: hitp:// wwvhiclconpect com,

Exlent to which mandalory requiraments have
not been complied with:

Formulation of Risk assesiment
minimization is still under process,

and

Extenl to which non mandalory requirements
have been complied with:

i) Remuneration Committes has bean formed
and is functioning regularly as reporeed
parlier in this report.

ii} Whistle Blawer Policy has been furmulated

and is functioning from Mav T4, 2007

Shares / Convertible Instruments held by Non

Executive Directors NIL

DECLARATION

As provided under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement
with the Stock Exchange (s), it 15 hereby diclarad fhat all
the Board members and senior menagement parsennet
of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Crde
of conduct for the vear ended March 31, 220%

Flace: Mohal
[Date: July 31, 2009

Kapil Bhalla
Manager and
Company Secrefary

To,

The Board of Directass

HECL Infote! Limited

Compliance Ceriificate by Chief Executive Officer
{CEO) & Chief Financial Officer (CFO) under Corporate

Governance pursuant to the revised Clause 49 of Listing
Agreement.

CEQ/CFO CERTIFICATION

Fuly 31, 200%

Wea, Snremdra Lunia, CEQ and Vikaah aAgarwal,
VP —Corpetate Finance & CFO, certity to the Doard
that:

fs) We have reviewed the financial statemen's and the

(U

(it}

(bl

(d

Vikash Agarwal

cash flow statement for the vear and that to Lhe best
ol our knowledge and belief:

These statements do not contain any materiaily
unrue statement or omif any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading:

These statements together present & true and fair
view of the Company's affairs and are in rompliance
with the exisling Accounting Standards, applicahle
laws and regulalions.

There are, o best of pur knowledge and belisf, no
transactions entered inte by the Company during
the vear, which are frauduient, illegal or vivlative
ol the Company’s code of conduct.

Wo accept respoasibitity for establishing and
malalaining internal contrals and that we have
evalualed the effectiveness of the internal cantrol
systema of the Cumpany and we have disclosed to
the Auditors and the Andit Commitiec, deficiencios
in the design or operaiion of internat controls, if
any, of which we are aware and the steps we have
taken o1 propse to take 1o rectify these deficierdcies.

e have jndicated to the Auditors and the Awudid
Committes:

i}

{ig)

Sigaificant changes in internal cantrol during
the vear.

Significant changes in accounting policies
during the year and the same hava boen
disclosed in the notes o the financial
statemcnts; and

(iii) Theee are no significant frauds, which we

became aware, and the involvement of
managemaent or einployee having a significant
role in the company's internal control syslem
over finanacial reporling.

Surendry Lunia

VI-Corgorale Finance & CFOQ Chief Executive (ficer

AT SO




HECL INFOTEL LIMIYED

CERTIFICATE BY PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY

On compliance with the conditions of Cerporate Governance under clause 49 of the Listing Agreement(s)

To

The Members of

HECL fnfotel Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Covernance by HECL Infotel Limited, for the year ended
on 31+ March, 2009, as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with the Stock exchanges.
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Qur examination was
limited to procedures and impletnentation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions
of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinien on the financial statements of the
Company.

In pur cpinion and to best of our information and according to the axplanations given to us, subject to the laying dowi

-~ of detailed formal frameworls for risk assessment and minimization procedures by the Company in process, we certify
¢ that the Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned

Listimr Agreement.
We stato that such compliance is neither ah assurance as to the futire viabiliey of the Company not the efficiency nor
effectiveness with whick the management has conducted tiw affairs of the Company.

Yor &, Arora & Co.
Company Secretaries
Sdf-

Ajay Arora

Membership Ne. F-2191
C.P. No. 993

Flace : Chandigarh
Date  : July 29,2009

Fostal Ballot

Pursuant to Section 1924 of the Comparndes Acl, 1956 read with Coenpanies (Passing of the Reseliztions by Postal Batlot)
Rules. 2001, the Company had conducted a postal Ballot {or passing of Special Resolution in respect of shiffing of
Registered Office of the Company from bohali In the Sale of Punjab to Mumnbai in the State of Maharashiza

The Notice far the said Postal Ballot as approved in the Board Maeting held on May 03, 2009, was dispatched on May 13,
209 Lo all the memibers whose name(s} appeared on the Rewister of Members / List of beneficiaries as on May 08, 2009,
aliyr with postape prepaid business reply envelope. Postal Baliot forms received From members Gl June 15, 2009 &1
ZUHF pore were takert into accowund for determining the Postal Ballot resuits.

A3 par the scrutiny of the postal ballot torms conducted by My, Ajay K Arera, Scrutinizer appoinied for aforesaid FPostal
Ballat, 163 Postal Ballot forms were received till June 15, 2009, oul of which 138 Pastal altol forms were valid; a tolal of
32.85,05,006 vates were cast in favor of the aforesaid Special Resotution approving the shifting of Registered office of the
Company from Mohall in Lhe slate of Punjab 1o Mumbai in Hie state of Maharashira and no votes were cast agrativst
aforasasd resolution,

The resull of the aforesaid Postal Ballot was declared on June 18, 2009 at .00 p.m, at the repistered office gf the Company
by Mr. Kapit Bhalla, Marager and Company Secretary of the Company . The result of the Fostal Ballot was also published
in o2 Engiish Newspaper (Financial Expeess, all India edition) and one newspaper in vernacolar fanguage (Desh Sewak,
Pamjadt). The results were also posted on the Company's web sife,




i HFCL TNEFOTEL LIMLTED

To

The Members of HFCL INFOTEL LinIT

rd

W

it)

Anditors Report

We heve audiled the attechad Balance Shent of HFCL
(WELIEL LIMITED, as at Mz cch 31, 2009, and alse the
Frafit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for
the year ended on that date anpexed thereto Thess
fimancial siztements are the responsibilidy of fne
Company's managerment, respunsibility is to express
a opirion on these firanciat statements bagad on our

aved LE

We have conducted oure audit in accordance with tiz
auditing standards genecally acceptead i [adia. Thase
Standacds reauirs thut we plan and perfori e audit o
mintain reasooahle assucense abnui whesher Fue inancial
slatoments are free of material missiaroment,  An auedi
Hdas examining, on A st basis, eviease supposting
the amouets g discdosures in the firgruzial sEatommens.
An aucit also woiades assassing the accounting prinenles
used and significan: esilnates made by managsment, as
wall as evaluating the averall firamcia! staigmaent
prasentation, We helieve that our awdit providss a
teasonable hasis for our opinien.

As required by the Companies {auditers Beportr Order,
53 {as amonded} iszuer by the Central Goveranmint
Tndin in testns ol sub-sectinm ($4) of Seciton 23¥ of the
Companies Art, i056, we paclese io the Annaxure 4
srabrmens on e matiers sperified in paragraphs i ac 3
ot the sail Order.

withoul qualifying our opinicn, we draw aliechon to
teote He) of Schadule 22 to phe freancial statemints,
Company has iucwered a loess of Ba 2147285800 Juri
the year (accumutated Loss of Bs 11.193,880,270 res
inlo erosion of its net-worth, arad las a neE cudcen
of Rs 40821926879 {aller eonsidaring provision o
interest amouniicg ro Re 1,025,846 205 being Fhe difseene:
in the amount pald in compatizan ko the armount 3 crued
an yigld basis as por e COR schemal as of March 31
306, The Company has achieved protitability atb e
‘Tarmings betore interesl and deprecationSams ation’
lewel, and is atsn able 1o generate cash From opecations
dalring previous simancial year. Uhe abitily of the

—

Srmpany

{0 comtinue ws 4 GONT COICCTR IS signidicantly dependont
o s ability o successially alzange balanca Hincling

in kerms of the COR scheme and achisve Haanciai closun
to fund ils operating and capital [urding regueirzments
and lannck the alternate tochnology cperations as weell aa
lcrease subscriber growih. The management i3 10
process of armanging funds wnd i iz cnnfident of renetating
Fasit tlows and te fund Lhe operating asd capiicl
requirctents ot he Company i the event ol any dezlay
the arrangement of the balance dunding. Accosdingli, th
siatements hove been prepared On o gUing CONCRIT. D5k

Atienting & lwited tos

NMaie 16 (0 of Schediele 23 of Mo finapcicl siateireitl s i
Hie Coepany has obfoined aduance af  Ra LAIZS000
front q o sharehoider Comppanngf et b foued e oty
few for vising altermte Eecivmiug )y arder wxizling Llerefiead S hoovss
Setiier License (LLASL) for Purjulr Service Arat durag Murch
312008 end Rs 1ILODG.0M for operatinng during He

Tha Fevis ard cotditions wifh raspect b feure, biterest, right
ard oBligabigos o, are wet Lo e finalised fience e are rerthle !
caranent o e sereying zalite and Hrerely its fnrprct on Hi
prerit wrtd Toss S the pear, Oy andit repirrt on the Aranck
stateoenis for M gear gnded March 31, 2008 was ipdifia
accord inghy;

bl Nt 3 (w) of Schedude 23 gf the fimenctal statenents wirera
the Comptny fag given offect ko restructuring af secured o
gursiant ks tie revised restryclurily packige approved !
Carporate it Restrieturing Ceil FORR vide Her letter )
COHR (P No 138 7 2605-10 dated May 20, 20090°CO
Lopler's Wie haoe refied wpor e COR lebigr and B confirinth
froe the lenders Is A jieed.

& Cyrther top aur compnents [ annaxure referend to abov
we raport that

e have obtainod atl the information and axplanatior
wlich to the best of sur knowledge and belief we
nrcmssary for e purpoges of ol audit;

i

Tt our apininn, prager hooks of accowt sz required
law have been kept by the Company so Ay as appe:
From our exammination of thase books;

fi}

The hatance sheet, peod: and loss account and cash ik
skatomneni daalk with by rhis tepoct are in agreement W
e books of account

i in onT apinion, the bulance sheet, proit and loss acco
2 cash few stakemen dealt with by this seport com
with the accounting standards referred ko in sub-s2ct
(30 of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1936;

to; Om the basis of wrilten representadons received lom
dirsclors, a5 on March 31, 2005 and taken on ranoTil
the Roard of Diesriors, we teport Lhat pose b the divec
iz disqualifiod as o dach 31, 2009 from being, 1ppoin
a5 @ direstor in terms of clause (g) of aub-zeclion (X
section 274 of ihe Companigs Act, 1938

Supeck io nadber siaed o piragrapi 5 hoTe  cofsdjlc
vl awereaf fo ot decertitineble in oo opinion and fo
fosk of our ipfarmalion and according to lhe explanaii
sivEn to us, fhe said accaunts, givs the infgrmai
requited by the Uompantes Ack, 1253, in the manne
paquited and glve a frue dod Fair vigwr in cantoomiy |
ihe accounting prinvicies generally accepted in Indi:

in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of ak
of the Company as al parch 31, 2008,

i)
[ii} i the case of tha profit and foss secount, ol tha
for the year anded on thal date; and

i) in fhe case af the cash How siatement, of Lhe
fleaws for the vear ended on that date.

ATUL KUTSHRESTHA &1
Chasterad Accountants

3.R BATLIEGI & ASSCHIATES
Chartered Accouniants

per Anil Kumar Agga
fartner
bombership Mo, 91720

per Prashant Singhal
Parlner
fiembearship Rt 93283

Miace: Mewr Lelhi
Dats: june 30, 2009

Flace. Gurgaon
Date: Jurwe 30, 2009



HFCL [MFOTEL LIMITED
Aunnexure referxed o in paragraph 3 of sur report of even dale

Re: HFCIL IMFOTEL LIMITED

(i {a] The Company has mainkained proper records showing Bl patticulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed
FECR

(by The fixed assots are physicatly verified by the managemenl accoeding to @ phased programme designed to cover all the
items over a perind of three years which, in our vpinion. is reesonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
ature of ils assets. Pursuant o the programme, o portion of e fxed assels has been physically verified by the management
during te year and no material discrepancies bebwaen the book records and physical vetilicaiion have bean naticed.

fe) There was o subsiantial dizposal of fixed assets during the year except sale of towers a5 tully disqussed in 11 {c] of
schadule 23 to the financizi statements,

{ii} fa) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory of network maintenance consumables ab reasnrnable
intervals during the yeer.

(b) The procedures of hgsical verification of inventory Followed by the managerment are rrasanable and adequate in relation
to the size of *he Company and ihe nature of iis Dusingess.

{¢) The Company (3 majniaining proper records of inventoty and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verifivabion.

(it The Company has neither mranted nor taken any lvars. stoued or unsecured, to companies, fioms ot other parties covered L the
register maintained vnder sectior. 301 of the Act. Aceordingly, clauses (i) of the Companias (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003, az
amended by the Companies [Auditor's eport) (Amendment) Order, 2004 are nol applicable to the Company for the current year,

fiv] fn our opindon and eccording 2 e infarmation and explanations given to us. having regard o the explanation that cerfain
iteqs purchased ste of spocial nahire foe wheeh suitable alternasdive sources do ot exist for obtalning comparative quatations,
there is an adequate internal conlrol system commensurate with the size of the Compary and the ature af its business for the
purchase of invertecy, {ixed assels and tor the sale of goods and services,

Further, oo the busis of our sxamination of the books aad records of the Company, and according io the information and
explanations given o ug, we have neither come across for have been infonned of any comtinuing falute to correct major
weaknesses in the aforesaid internal contral system.

fvd {21 Arcording to the infooaation and explanations given to 1s there were no ransachons referced o in section 0T that are
required to be entered o the segister puaintziced under zection 301 of the Companies Act, 1936,

(vi} As mors fully discussed in Note 31 on Schedule 23, the Company had surrendered its WBFC licence w the Reseive Bank of lndia
{'RBI and foreclosed she fced deposils acd doposited the amount in an eserow account as wirectzd by the RBL The Company
has not accepted any deposits from the pulilic iy (he qeerent year within the meaning of Sections 3A and 3344 ol the Act ant
the rules framed -here under, Therefore, in our opinion, cause {vi) of Para 4 of the Companies tAuditae's Keport) Order, 2005
fas amended) is not applicablz to the Company for the curent year,

{vii} I our opinion. the Uompary has an infeenal andit systzm to make 1L commensurate with the size and natuze of its business.

{viii}We heve broadiy sovizwed the books of account maintained by the Compuny in tespect of sorvice: where, pursiant be the Rules
made by the Cantral Ginesiunenl of ndia, the maintenance of rost records has been preseribed, wnder deus Al of sub-eectian {1)
of Section 20% of the Act seed are of e opindon that prima facie, the prescribed acceunts and reeosds have aeen mace and
majntained. Hawsver, we are neither raquired @ nor have we carried out any deteiled examination o suck accounts and recoeds.

{tz) {a) Undisputed statutory <luss weluding provident fune, investor adinecation and protection fund, sipplovees” state nsurance,
aalez-tax, wealth k. customs Jdutyv, cess and otker material stabutary dues applicable o it nave gexerally been regularly
depositnd with tre approoriate authweiiles cxeept Hreve s besn delays Inowiany cases @ reapect of depostl of seroice fox and
mitithedding tex, The provisions relabing ko excise duly is not applicable to the Company.

{b) According to ke information and explanations given te us, no undisputed amounts payabie in respect vl provident fund.
investor cducation and protechan fund, employess’ slate insurancs, income-tax, wealth-rax, service tax, zales-tex, cusloms
duty, cess and other matenal undisputed statutory dues wore outstanding, at the year end, for 3 seried a5 mowe ihan six
menths from the date they becamaz payahle.

¢} According 1o the records of the Company, thers are ne dues cwislaeding of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tas, service K
. custorn duiy, excize dui- amd cess on account of any dispate, olher than the foilowing

Mame af the Mature af ducs Amnosint Amuunt MeiAmounl | Financiat [orun whisz dispute is perding
stakute {Rs.} Paild (23] A= Year
Incoma Tax Act, 1961 Toeire Lax L, Seed 37 - 10,364,937 2000-01 income Fis Apoebste Tabuoal

(x] The gorrmulaied dagses af the Coupany a5 ai Marcn 31, 2009, are wore B fifly percent of its aef wordl s ab fhai ate. The Company,
figs Invierved a vash loss af

R B81.292,798 and Rs (55,037.544 during the year and  tionediately preveding finmicial ymtr fefure conz
yield basts of Ra 63,500 849 Rs 212.050,372 respectizeiy.

wring vllerest propision on




HFCL {INFGTEL LIMETED

(xi) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explaaiions glven by the management, the Compeiy has
deiayed b payment of principgl apd inizeest due be @ firancial iesttution el bunls a3 presenrted befow. The Campany has not
defaulked in repayment of dees to deberinre holders.

Leoder Name Due Date Principal Amouri | Lnleresi Amb [ Tate af Tayment
In#s. In K=,

1GB, NG, SE0l OBC, LR | st Muy 08 10,083,335 41,922,150 July 30, 2008 / fuly- 33, 2003 F Suly 25, N8 F july 30, 2008
Taly 30, 2903

1031, WG, SBOF QO LIC | st June03 10,083,333 43,457,343 Aezust 29, I00R 4 Acgust 2%, 2008 4 Agust 29, 2008,
Aagest My, 2008/ August 35 2008

IDA1 TG, S0P, 0B LT | 138 July-8 13,083,333 12,192,817 Ockeber 10, 2005 fOctaber 8, 20038 /October 11, 1008
Oectober 11, 2604 7 Qoéobuer 17, 2003

Total 30,240,599 177,612, 35%

Crue fu the dalays chove, thy Cowpany kas peid Rs 3043640 us penal Interest to firancial institution aid banks.

{xii] According to the information and explanations given to ps and based on the docwmonls and records praduced Lo us, the
Company has not geatked 1oans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other
AeTuriHies.

fxiil! [ our opicdon, the Company is sot & chit find or a nidbi / oudoal benefit imd / society, Thewefore, the provisions of clause
it} ol the Companies [Auditars Reperti Order, 2603 (a8 emended) are not apalicable to the Company,

{xivi As intormed o us, the Jompany is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities. debentures and othet investments.
Aceoedingly, the provisions of clause Hxiv) of the Companies [Auditer's Report) Girder, 2003 {as amnaended) age not applicable
w the Company.

{xv) According to the informetion and sxplanations given bo us, the Company has ot given apy guasantze for loans teken by
achars frem bank or francia? instividons.

ixvi) Based vn the informalion and sxpisnations miven to us by the swrnagsment, Jhe oom loans wers applizd for the purposc for
widich Uiz loans were obtained.

ixwiil Acgording to the information and explanations giverr b us and on an ovaratl examinabon of the balance shwel and cash flow
statement of the Company, we cepurt that al ihe year end, the Campany has wsed short ferm logns and advances of Rs
2,745,049 433 for purchase af intangihles and jvsses

{xwitiy The Company has not mede any preterential allokment of shares to parties er comganies covered in the register maintaieed
under section 301 of the Companies Act 1856,

Ixix} The Cowpany did not nave zny cutstanding debentures during the yeac
[«x}  The Conpany has not taised any money by public ssue,

(xvi} Pased on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of epcrting the fue andd fir view of the financial stalements arud
as por the information and explanations given by lhe managemen:, w2 repoct thot no fraud an or by the Company has been
naticed ar reported durinyr the eoirse of pur auclit.

5.1, BATLIBOIL & ASSOCIATES ATUL KULSHRESTHA & CO.
Chartervw Accounlanis Charterad Acrountanls

par Prashanl Singha! per Anil Kumar Aggavwal
Tartner Mmrimies

dambesship o 13263 dembership No. 91720

Place: Suromaon I!laco: New Deihi

Date; June 38, 2009 Drake: Jstne 34, 2009

)



HFCL INFOTEL LIMITEDR
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2009

(Unless and otherwise atated, all amounts are in rupees)

HECL INFOTEL LIMITED

PARTICULARS SCHEDULE As AF As At
MNo. Narch 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders” Fund
Share Capital 1 2,905,171,520 3,905,171,220
Advance Againgt Share 2 Ba7,431,181 BA7, 431,181
Application Meney
Reserves and Surplus 3 08,566,508 173,004,664
6, 841,165,209 g,9415 b07, 305
Loan Funds e —_— e
Secured Loans 4 &,366,00%,737 6,290,457,234
Unsecured Loans 3 1,388,457,337 1,184,206,307
7,954 447,074 7.974,694,146
14,795,636,283 14,?10,301:511
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assecls &
Gruss Block 9.053,5548,326 3,311,129,.842
Less: Accunulazed Depreeiation (4,839,363,053) {4,394, 784,149)
Net Block 4,216,525,273 4,916,363,043

Capltal Waork-In-Progress (Includes Capital Advances for
Rs 4,053,028) (March 31, 2008 - Rs 893,564

Intangible Assets (Net) 7

Investments B

Current Assets, Loans and Advances
[nventary 9
Sundry Duebtors 10
Cash and Bank Balances 11
Dther Cureent Asscis 12
Loans and Advances 13

Less: Current Liabilities and Provisions 14
Current Liabililigs
Provisions

72,216,696

4,268,741,954
2,700,673,535
99,00

9,395,675
333,978.258
137,950,121

13,353,325
204,219,855
694,333,343

4,053,473,207
28,718,432

4,082,192,639

122,443,449

5,034,811,142

2,846,792,2581
B0E, 170,204

20,667,314
404,638,000
113,414,210

£.384,139
184,296,615

733,904,783

3.B33, 124,772
23,271,649

3 E3K,396,421

Nat Carrent Eiabilities 3,387 759,204 3,124,495,638

Profit and Loss Accound 11,183,680,270 9,151,022,825
14,795,636,253 14,720,301,511

Significant Accounting Paliciss 22 = B

Notes tn Acenunts 13

The Schedules teferred i above and the Notes to Acronnts form an integral part of Me Yalance Shaet

As per our regrort of even date,

For 5.R. BATLIBUL & ASSCCIATES  far ATUL KULSHRESTHA & CO. For and on behalf of the Koard

Chasteced Accountants Chartered Accountants

per Prashant Singhal per Anil Kumar Aggarwal Mzshendra Mahata M. 1, Shukla

Fartnar Partner Direetur Dhirector

Membership Mo, 933283 delembeyship Mo 91720

Piace : Gurgaon
Cate : fune 30, 2004

Surendra Lunia
Chiel Executivie CMficer

Place ; MNew Delhi
Dabe ; June 30, 20y

Place : New Delhi
Db fune 30, 2009

Vikash Agarwal
VI* - Finance

Eapil Zhalla
Company Secretary




" s HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED

HECL INFOTEL LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FDR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009
{Unless and otherwise stated, all amounts a=@ in rupees)

PARTICULARS SCHEDULE For the year ended For the year ended
Na Mareh 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
INCOME
Service Revenue 13 2,935,707.374 u,.485,827.969
Other Ingome 14 13,854,663 10,952,505
2,249,562,03% 3,499,750,474
Expendiiure — r————
Mebwork Operation Expenditure 17 1.133,672,179 1,138,467,401
Peczonnel Bupenditure 13 482,162,008 479,329,734
Sales and Macketing Expendlture 19 154,996,761 195,127.74
Administrative and Other Expenditure 20 287,611,099 423,320,078

e —irrtn
2,058,442,048

Opetating Profit for the Year pefore Finance

Charges, Depraciation, Amortization
an Sold § Discarded Fixed Assets
Dimdnution in value of [ovesiments
(Gain) on sale of Fixed Assets

Lags on Discarded Flwed Assets
Finance Charges

Poreign exchange Lods / {Gain)
Depreciation

Amortisation

and Loss ! (Gain}
141,119,588
717,470,900
(337,234,341}

23, Note 12 {a)
13, Note 11 {c}

Loss / {Profit) for the Year hefore Prinr

Year Dxpenditure and Tax
Frior Period Hxpensditure e

Loss / (Profit) for the Year before Tax

Provision [or Taxation
Fringe Benefit Tax
Loss / (Profit] for the Year

Loss / (Profit}, brought forward from previous year

{@as Transfer [rom Cencral Resarve

Loss / {Profity carried to the Batance Sheei

Loss / (Profit) per share

{cquity shares, pat vaine of Re 10 each)

Basic {in Rs)
Criluted (in Rs)

155,296,339

21 673,204,362
106,760,734

6 £41,687 024

? 130,029,533
2,121,404,265

23, Mote 23 1,662,270

e At brvddmity
2,142, 066,541

5,224 039
2.147,295,600
9,151,022,426
(104,435,158
11,193,880,270

Weighted average number of ahares used o

compuling gasnings Der share
Haszic
Diuted
Significant Accounting Pralicies
Notes to Accounts

23, Mata 17
4.09
4,09
5325.517,152
325,617,132
22 —_———e——
23

e et
2,138,445,13%

161,333,320

17.639.380
$3%,121,733
30,630,385}
890,670,336
148,133,357

1,309,5649,173
1,418,342,050

7,015,669
1,423,337,719
7,7%5,663,107

N
9,151,422,826
e

The Schedules referred 1o above and the MNotes 1o Accouds form an integral part of the Profit & Loss Account.

As per our repost of even date.

For 5.8, BATLIBOT & ASS0OCIATES
Chartered Accountants

per Prashant Singhal
frartneer
\ewmbership Mo, 3283

Place : Curgaom
{iate ; June 30, 2004

for ATUT KULSHRESTHA & CL-
Chartered Accountanis

Mahendra Nahata
Drrectar

per Anil Xumat Aguarwal

Partnet

wembership to: 91720
Surendra Lunia

Clidef Frnculive CHficer

Place : Mew Delh
Date - [ene 30, 2009

Place @ Mew Llelhi
Date @ Tune M, 2009

&

Far and on behalf of the Baard

L . Shalkla
MHreclor

Vikash Agarwal

V1t - Flance

Kapil Bhalla
Company Secreirry



HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED

HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED
SCHPDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS As At As At

Mareh 31, 2009 March 31, 2008

SCHETULE 1: Share Capital {See Schedule 23, Note 71

Authorised:

1,306,000,000 (March 31, 2008 - 1,300,040,000) equity shares of

Rs 1f sach {March 31, 2008 « Rs 16 each} 13,000,000,000 13,000,000,0100

20,000,000 March 31, 2008 - 20,000,000) 2 per cent preference

shares of Ra 100 each {March 31, 2008 - R= 100 pach) 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000

15,000,000,000 15,000,000,2G0

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up —————

525,317,152 (Martch 31, 2008 - 525,317,152) equity shares of

Bs 10 each (March 31, 2098 - Rs 10 each) fully paid. 3,255,171,520 5,235,171,520

6,500,100 (March 31, 2008 - 4,500,008 fully paid 2 per cent

rumulative redeemable preference shares {"CRTP3Y of ®s 100 each 650,000,000 30,000,000
. 5,905,171,520 5,903,171,520

{a) Of the above

(b

{c}

(i) 490,730 {March 31, 2008 - 490,750} equity shares of Rs 10 each, were allotted as fully paid bomus shares in the
varlier years by way of capitalisation of reserves.

{if) 323,705,000 (March 31, 2008 - 323,705,000 equity shares are held by Himachal Fuiurislic Communicatinns
Limited {Ifolding Company). -

(i) 83.070,088 equity shares of Rs 10 each were allatted on October 16, 1004, pursuant to the Corporale lisbt
Restructuring {‘'CDR’) Schemme. [See Schedule 72, Note 1 {c)] Cut of these, 63,373,110 equily shares of R 10 each
were issued by the Company lo Industrial Development Bank of India ("IDBI), at par and the balance of
12,171,778 and 7,525,200 equity shares of Rs 10 each to Qriental Bank of Commerce (OBC) anct NG Vysya Back
Eimited (‘INGR, respectively, al a premium of Re 0.50 per equity share as per provisions of applicable law,

As more fully discussed in Schedule 22, Note 1al, the Company in accordance with the scherme of amagamaiion
approved by ihe High Court of the State of Punjab and Haryana and the State of Tamil Nade on March A, 2003 and
March 20, 2003, tespectively under section 391 and 394 of the Companies Act, 1935, the erstwhile HFCL Infotel
Limited (name eartier atlotted to the transferor company), amalgamated with HECL infotal Limited ("FITL or “the
Company”), (formerdy the Investment Trust of India Limited). Subsequent to the approved amalgamation:

(i} 432,000,250 equity shares uf Rs 1) each were allotted to the shareholders of erstwhile RECL infotel Limited on
June 17,2003

{ii} 1,730,814 equity shares of s 10 gach were allotted on Cretober 13, 2003, on conversion of wareznts issue to the
shareholder of the Invesiment Trust of India Fimited prier to June 11, 2003

£,500,000 {March 31, 2008 - 6,500,000} 7.3 per cent CRPS were atlotted to Himachal Futuristic Comnupications
Limited HPCLY (Holding Company) an Octobor 16, 2004, pursuant (o the CDR Scheme [See Sehedule 22, Note 1{ch],
the specified part of the ameunt due 1o HFCL by the Company was converted into 7.3 per cent CRPS redeemable
after the repaymenl of Rupee Term Loan (ie. juty 1, 2013). Trior approval of the lenders is require] Lo declace
dividend on 7.5 per cent CRPS and all the voting rights attached to the CRPS to be assigned in favour of the term
lenders. On June 24, 2005 as per revised UDR Scheme, the dividend percentage is recuced to 2 per cent from 7.3 per
cent with effect from date of issuance of TPRS. Due to accumulated fusses provision for dividend is not required.
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HECE, INFOTEL LIMITED

SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCEAL S TATEMENTS

PARTICULARS

Ag At
March 31, 2009

As At
Niarch 31, 2008

SCHEDULE 2: Advance Against Share Application Money {Se¢ Schedule 23, Note 8]

Advance sgainst Bquity Share Application Momne}y

SCHEDULE 3: Reserves and Surplus

Canital Reserve

Sacurities Premium [See Notc fa), (b} & {2 below]
Ealance, beginning of the year
Adjusted during the year
Less: Uliiised during the year

Sratutary Reserve {See Nota [d} below]
Cenetal Reserve {See Note (€) below]
Less: Transterrad to Profit & Loss Agcotink

Schedule 1, Note [a) (g
During
premiws on
that extent.
Curing the year 2007-08, the Company based on
13,110,387

Zero par cent Optionally Fuily

1995, Turther, as more fully
Bank of India ['REI). Asa condition

the year 2006, in accordance with the CDR Scheme See Schedule
Corvestible Debentures (OECTs)

A3 more fully discussed in Schedube 23, Note La), the Company {erstachile The
Non-Banking Financial Corporatinn {'MEFCY under the Ceetificate of Registration (ol Ne
discussed in Schedule 23, Mate 21, the Company has surrendered is CoR
far the concellation of the CoR, the RBI has advised the Company to follow sertain

467,431,181
g67, 451,181
W

867,431,181
867,431,181
wmw

34,032,776 34,032,776
22,633,732 9,523,145 o
. 13,110,387 ¢
22,635,732 27,633,732
11,200,000 11,500,000
104,438,156 104,438,136 #
{104,438.136) - oy
- -

68, 566,508 173,004,664

r——t e eer— T

There are nn share allotments during the year, Securities premium inciudes an amaunt of Ha 948,143 received oo
allobment of 12,696,978 equity shares of Rs 10 each on (ctober 16, U4 ab a premium of &z 0.50

per equity share [see

22, Note 1(c)], the Company had provided for the
and has utilised the securities premium @

‘he lenders confirmation has wrilten back the secarities premium of Rs

nvestment Trust of [ndia Fimniled) was 4
U7.00232 dated Aptil 13,
with the Reseove

strictures tilt the balance in the escrow account is setted .

e} General Resprve represents the

dismassed in Schedute 22, Note 1{a) This reserve

amomt carried forward W arcnrdanes with the Scheme of Amalgamation as mare fedly
has been bransferred to Profit & Loss Acgount during the Year.

SCHEDULE 4 Secured Loans [See Schedule 23, Note 9§

Term Loans
From Financial lnskitution
From Banks
1% Funded Fnicrest Teem Loan
¥ram Financial Institution
Froan Banks
interest acerued & due on term loans
Vehicle loans
Bank overdraft

Ampunts repayable within a year
Yahicke Loan
- Financial Institutions
- Banks

16,250,000

7 730,000,000
3,273,300,008 30 S

5, 300,000,000

326,543,273 :
46,251,704 -
- 61,387,079
£,673,308 11,340,067

106,489,357

6,566,009,737

167,790,083
6,790,487,739

6,415,390

SCHEDULE 5 Unsecured Loaus [5ee Sehedule 23, Note 10]

Zoro per cont Non Convertible Debentures

Buyess Credit Facility (Loan from, foreign bank]
Buyers Credit larility (Loan frem Infotel Fusiness
Solutinns Limited) Repayable on demand

Short term loan from [nfolet

Amounts repayable within # yeat -
(Luan from loreign bank)

(‘N(_‘l)s’}l:erstwh'.'le OFC Ths)(others)
rterast accrued apd due on other Vendor Finance Facilities

Digicom (F} Limited Rzpavable

Kuyer Credit Facility

5,344,253
13,000,000 13,730,000
126,000,000 97,166,667
166,776.100 166,776,100

3,037,742

311,440,519 493,252,347

414,740,832 110,740,832
on demend 505,499,586 499,499, 5340
1,386,457,337 1,484,2106,207

o

___.,_.....-—-v—~——__,,_.__-—-—---

207,627,012
]

©

161,551,219
— e
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HECL INFOTEL LIMITED

SCHEDULES ANNEXED Tty AND FORMING PART OF FINANCEAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULALS An At As At
Mareh 31, W09 Sarch 31, 2008

SCHEDULE 8 Investmients (Nan Teade - Long term} [See Schedule 23, Note 121
Subaldiary Company
Long Term {at cnst)
Unquoted
NI [March 31, 2008 - 4,050,0001 equliy shares of
s 10 each futly paid in
CHSL Cable Networks Limnited (eestwhile - o3, 800,000
Contect Aroadband Sorvides
Limited (CHSLY
4 080 (Mareh 31, 2008 - Nil | equity shares of 94, 8010
fs 10 each fully paid o
infobat Tower infpastruchire Private Limited
Adaoulabe Company
Long Term (at cast]
Unquoted
MU {March 31, 3008 - 1,750,000 equlty sharpd of
s 10 each fully paid i
“The fnvestment Teust of ndia Limnited ('TT1Y - 18,000,000
Nil [Mareh 31, 2008 6,396,709] Optionally Fully Convertible
Debentures (OFCDE’) of Re 100 gach fuily paid in

The Investment Trust of fadin Lintited ('TV) . §99,670,900
-..-.-l‘-‘---"'-_- “-;_I-W-‘-'"‘-.'.-‘
9‘]58[}{1 418,170,900

TR

(3} The Company had incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary named CBSL Cable Netwarks Limited (erstwhlle
Coonect Bepadband Services Limited ) FCBSL) to carry on the business of disttibution of Cable Taleviston Metwork
1nd all other connectad services , The Comparny hetd 9,050,000 shares of Rs 10 each at par in CB5L, During the vear

snded tarch 31, 2008 the Comparty had entered inio a share purchase agreement with Digicable Networks (indla)
Private Ltd “ONPL’ on March 26, 2008 for sale of shares of CBSL. The teanaber of shares has been comypleted on April

16, 2008, During the year 9,050,000 shares of Rs 10 each at par have been sold by the Company.

{by The Company acquiired the entire shaveholding in The lovestment Trust of trutla Lid (TTE7 terstwhily Rajam Finance
ané Investments Company lndia Linited, an unlisted registered NBEC) frotn the erdivhile promoters [Ser Schedule
12 Note 1{a)}, Consequently [T1 Became 2 wholly owned subsidiary of the Company with effect from August 19,

1002, Subsequent to September 30, 2003, with infusiod of fresht oquity, (1T became an assoclate company.

f¢]  The Company has acquired OFCDs in [T i the vear 2002-03. Terme and conditions associated with debentures afe

{i) The OFCDs of Rs 100 each are convertible into 10 equity shares {with pari passu right with the existing equity
shares int terms of the present Articles of Association ef the Company) of Rs 10 wach after three yeats at the

optlon of the holder. The Comtpany has not exercised this option as on March 31, 2K

(i) The OFCDs are redepmable after 10 years at a premium of Rs 50 per OFCD,

(i) The lssuing company shail have an option to redeem the OFCDs anytime after 2 period of one yeat ai

aproportianate premium as mentioned in condition (i} above

(iv) During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company has weitten off the irvestment of Bs 18,000,000 in Bquity
Share Capital and Rs 699,670,900 in OFCTY's in [Tlas [Tt has negative netwarth and the Company believes that

IT1 would not be able to arrange funds as per theic business plans and the recavery of their inveshments.

(d) Duiing the yeat ended March 31, 2009, the Company has incorparated one wholly awned Subsidiary Company.

Intotel Tower Infrastructute Private Limited with an [nvestment of Re 99,800 [See Senedute 23, Note 12 (o)}

€

B
i
o
L



HYCL INFOTEL LIMITED

HFCL INFOTEL LIMITRD
SCHEDULES ANNEXED TQO AND FORMING FART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS Ag At As Al
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
SCHELTULE 9 tnventory [See Schudule 23, Nuate 14]
invantary held for installation and malatenance of network 19,395,678 13,667,818
14,895,676 20,667,816
Fpnrnermarrr i T [ s o e

SCHEDULE 10: Sundry Debtors
Dabis outatanding for a pesind exceeding six manths:

Seeurad and Considered Goad 7078855 2,110,374
Unaccured and Cotsidared Doubtful 115,208,921 118,017,178
Drebta vutstanding- Others
Sapttrad and Constdared Cood 9,266,310 23,513,385
Ungaewrad and Consldered Good 321,733,064 375,714,259
Unaecured and Consldered Daubifal 13,880,977 22,279,934
4A7 B6K,157 344,933,110
Legs Proviston for Doubiiul Deltts 128,589,899 138,297,110
338,978,258 406,638,000
NO'{E‘.S: L AR LT

a)  Debrors are secured o the extent of doposit recelved from the subscribers,

b)  Includes Rs 91,979,858 (March 31, 2008 - Ra 111,541,969) af unbilled vevenues, the invoices for which have been ralsed
subsaquent to Mareh 31, 2009 [See Scheduls 22, Note 2.11]

d) Debtors includes amaunt due from HECL Satellite Cammunication Limited, as per erstwhile Sec. 370 (1B) of the
Companies Act, 1936, the company under the same management, amounting to Rs 10,123,047 (March 31, 2008 - Rs
7 838,591), Maxlmuth amount sutstanding during the year Rs 10,123,047 (March 31, 2008 - Rs 9,330,064).

SCHEDULE $1: Cash and Bank Halandes

Cash in [and 2,426,702 1,437.0158

Cheques in Hard 7,964 046 9,750,726

Balances with Schadubed Banks

In Cutrent Account 40,466,719 26,992 545

In Fixed Devosit [Receipts ptedgoed with Banks as margin meney for

guatanteed and LCs issued Ke 85,428,836 (March 31, 2004 - Ra. 73,390,354} 65,428 956 73,390,534

I Bserow Accont [See note belowd 1,663,818 1,843,370
117,950,221 113,414,210

The balance with scheduted banks in Bscrow accoutt is towards pubtic deposits payable by the Company [See Schedule
23, Mote 21]

SCHEDULE 12: Other Current Assets

interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits 13,359,325 8,664,139
13,359,325 8,884,139
AT TN, SR T
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HECL INFOTFL LEMITED

HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED
SCHEDULES ANNIXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS as AL As At
March 31, 2009 March 21, 2008
SCHEDILE 13: Loans and Advances
{Unsecured , considered good except otherwise stated)
Advances Recoverable in cash or in kind or {or value to be received
Considered Good R3.573,140 78,170,263
Considerad Doubtfud [See Schedule 23, Nate 1k} 7ED, 668 134,853,208
Dise from CHSL Cable Networks Ltd - Wholly owned Subsidiary - 46,610,850
{Maximum outskanding balance during the year Fs 46,610,850,
March 31, 2008 Rs 456,796,845)
Due from ITIPL Limited - Whoily owned Subsidiary 32,821,607 -
(Maximum outstanding balance during the year Rs 32,621,607,
March 31, 2008 - Rs Ni}
Dye from The Investment Trust of India fimited - Associate 1,149,599 1,149,909
(Maximum outstanding balance during the year Rs 1,149,999,
Mareh 3T, 2006 - Rs 1,14%,999)
Duc from T, Limited - Company under the same management - 119,784
(Maximum outstanding balance during the vear Rs 119,784,
March 31, 2008 - Rs 119,784}
Security Deposits
Considered Good 26,0030, 348 22,511,027
Considered Doubtiul 1,211,263 1,211,263
Tax deducted, at source racoverable 11,402,874 4,812,923
Balance with Customs, Excise and Service Tax 77,271,897 anuz1.772
~ 06,250,798 320,347,791

Less: Pravision for Doubtful Advances 2,003,533
[V,
204,249,865
mﬁw
NWuotes:
Advance recoverable includes dues fram Chief Execubive QFicer as under
Interest fres Housing Loan (Maximum amount vutstanding during
the vear Rs 350,00t March 31, 2008 - Rs 500,000) 210,000

Other Advances (Maximum amount outstanding during
the vear Rs 403,134, March 31, 2008 - Rs 8A2,935}

136,071,173
184,296,618
L NI

350,000

33158
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HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED

SCHEDULES ANNTXED TCO AND FORMING FART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HFCL [NFOTEL LIMITED

PARTFICULARS

As Al

March 31, 2000

Az At
March 31, 2008

SCHEDUELE 14: Current Liabililies and Provisinns

Current Liabilities

Sunedry Creditors®

Capital Goods 732,269,035 98 468,070
Expenses 230,433,745 188,685,421
Interconmection Usage Charges {1UC’) pavable to other pperators 137,717,010 97,550,269
Expenses Payabls 132,309,442 197,192,213
Book Owerdraft 3,545,836 8,515,118
Advance Against Baoking 53035 325,525
Advance From Customers and Unacerued Income** 291,480 400 424, 30% 265
Advance against Investment in CBES1. Cable Networks Limited - 70,500,000

Advance for GSM Ticenee Entry Fee {See Schedule 23, Note 16 (b)Y

Security Deposits

1.628.300,000

1.517,500,000

Trom Subscribers A.R31,0m5 89,545,721

From (Jihers 27,178,235 33,079,133
Investor Education and Protection Fund***

Unclaimed Dividends 441,003 320779

Unclaimed Deposits from Pubiiz 483,953 700,963

Interest accrued and due on Pubic Deposiks 46,116 AE) E3 )
Cther Liabilities 117,655,312 95,143.858
Provision for inferegkt L0200 069 830G Qo7 704,128

4,053,47¢,207

3.835,124,772

*  Includes Rs 709,716 {Marck 31, 2008 Rs Nil) amount payable te Micro, smail and wedium Enterprises. [See Schedule
23, Note 16 fa}]

** Includes Rs 337467,701 (March 31, 2008 Rs 277,783,003) pertaining to infrastructure income in advance which is
recognized en a straight line basis upon the terms of agreement which ranges from year 2005 to 2023

*** To be transferred to Investor Eduration and Protection Fund (as and when due)

“HlIncludes interest acecusd on secured foan as difference beiween the interest paid and interest accrued on yisld basis
ameunting o Ks 1.025,346,225 (ddarch 31, 2008 - Bs 962,496,986) bo be adjusted over a period from yoar 2005 to 2013 as
per the CDR Scheme, lnterest acerued but not due on secured foan amounting to Rs Nit (March 31, 2008 - R5 31,724,541 ) and

inferest acorued but not due on unsecured loan amnounting 4o Rs 3,253,531 (March 31, 2008 - Bs 3,572,601}

Provisions [See Schedule 25, Note 21]

Wealth Tax 24,597 31,123
Leave Encashment / Avaidmant 1,038,359 12,750,914
Gratuiky 12,655 446 10,459,252
28, 718432 23,271,649
4,082,192,530 3,858,396,471

Notes:

(a) Book overdratt has been settled subsequent to the Year end.

b} Sundry creditors include cheques ouistanding bevond six months of Rs 523,618 (March 31, 2008 - 323.618) towards
repayment of public deposils under the NBFEC COR. [See Schedule 23, Note 214




HECL INFOTEL LIMITED

HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED
SCHEDLLES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PARY OF FEINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended
March 31, 2008

PARTICULARS Far the year ended

March 31, 2009

SCHYDULE 15: Scrvice Revenue

Revenue

Teom Unified Access Sarvices 1,507,945, 285 1,828,963,887
From Interconnection Usage Charge 136,092,288 140,444,750
Trom Infrastructure Services 51,608,925 51,281,795
From Intermet Services 339,160,868 468,137,537

SCHEDULE 16: Other [ncome

—
4,235,707,374
ﬁsﬁﬁ:ﬂ

s ——————
2 448,827,969
ﬁ:ﬂ_—.—ssm

[mterest Incomne (Tax deduction at saurce B Nil, March 31, 2008 Ks Mil) 6,032,398 5,040,303
Fxcess Provision written back 3,937,741 -
MisceHlanesus fnoome 3,884,322 34912000
13,854,802 10,952,505
SCHEDHULE 17: Network (peratien Expenditure
Interconnect Usage Charges 461 458,183 534,668,724
Oiter Value Added Service charues %.942,490 T NEE
Port Charges 30,711, v8d 24,818,550
Testing and Tachnical Survey Expenses 1,610,000 2,225,080
Licence Fees on Revenue Share Hasis - 104,064,784 113,368,154
Rovalty and licence fees =0 Wireless Planning Cernmission 12,753,554 10,038,030
Stores and Spares Consumed 43,442,476 79,735,183
Rent Node site 36,190,141 39,877,340
infrastructuce Sharing Rent 143,008,186 77277 ABE
Electrivity and Water 75,175,130 40 564,373
Security Charges FUG, A 1,909,683
Repair & Malntenance - Network 89,504,811 32,713,132
Bandwidth Charges 114,03%,0490 144,574,544

SCHEDULE 18: Persanne! Expenditure

Galarics, Wages and Bonus {Sec Sehedule 23, Note 24
Employer's Contribution o Providenl and Other Funds
[See Schedule 25, Nole 243

e
1,135,672,179
—em

5091847

20,776,245

— e —
1,135,467.401
ﬂ#‘

135,597,418
21,163,162

Staff Welfare Exponazes 101,793,203 12,085,100
Recruitiment & Training Expenses 4,500,853 10,689,058
e R —

432 162,106 474,529,738
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HFCL INFOTEL LEMITED
SCHEDULES ANNEXTED TC AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended
' March 31, 2009 March 33, 2008

SCHEDCLE 19: Sales and Marketing Expenditure

Sales and Business Promotion 2,447 663 13,569,200
Advertisement Expenses 33,623,403 77.956,606
Customers Acquisition Costs 116,925,636 103,602,134
T 154,996,762 TT198,127,940
SCHEDULE 20: Administrative and Other Expendifure AR
Legal and Professional Expenses 32,323,229 27,381,585
Travelling and Conveyance o, 973,104 69,263,114
Communication Expenses 2,694 357 & 454, 316
b Rent 22,955,155 28,641,374
el Security Charges 4,590,871 5,133,260
Repairs and Maintenance - Building 229488 35604
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 12,592,951 13,337,504
Eloctrictty and Water 15,492,502 12,215,521
nsurance 6,937,705 7095 285
Rates and Taxes 20,131,004 1,954 5240
Freight & Cartage 53.473,920 8,667,433
Printing and Stationary 3,980,296 Fan0,028
Billing and Collection Expenses TRTETI 5 495,293
Software Expenses - 37001
Dhzectors” Fees 253,441} 233,440
Provision for Doubtfu! Advances (134,070,240} ’
Less: Utilised to Doubtful Advances Writien off 68,370,240 {65,700,800)
Bad Debts Written off T 63,826,550 153,382,407
Provision for Doubtful Tebts J2.002,691
: Less: Utilised e Bad Debb Writken oif (20,704 %313 11,297,740 12,769,574
Wealth Tax - 24,597 31,123
Miscellaneois Expenses 3,316,403 3559553
257,011,809 425,320,075

SCHEDULE 21: Finance Charges

Interest on Term Loans® 553,433,570 AT ALE
[nterest to Oithers &13,780,544 43,200,795
Banl Guarankee Commuission B.¥83,614 ORI sk
Trustees Fee 27,163 1,008,000
ther Firance Charges 4,869,312 2883, L2

678,294,562 655,121,753

* Includes interest accrued on secured loan as difference between the inferest paid and interest accrued on vield basis
amounting ko Rs £3,349,218 (Wlarch 31, 2008 - Rs 200,196,980} a5 per CDR Scheme,

()

sty ey e — — - - - e L T B T AT TR
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HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF

[AN amauiis bt

SCHEDULL 22

BACKGROUND AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

1.
(a}

Backgruund
ature of business and ewnership

HFCL nfotel Limited ('the Company’ of AL}
Unified Access Services Licensee for Pumjab Circle
{including Chandigath and Panchkula), is providing
a full wamut of felocommunication scrvices, which
includes voice telephony, both wireline and Fixpd
wireless, COMA based mnbile, inlemet s IVICES,
broadband data services and a wide range of value
added service viz., centrex, leased lines, VNS, vk
mali, video conferencing ete. Vhe services wese
commercially launched in Getober 2000 and as on
warch 31, 209, the Company has an achive
subseribor base of over 350,302

‘Phe Compagy is a subsidiary company af Hirnachal
Fuluristic Communications Limited {"the [Tolding
Company’ ot "HFCL'. The Company wad
incorporated on August 2, 1046 with the name of
The mvestment Trust of India timited (1TH which
was subsequently changed to H HCL Infoiel Limited
an Maw 12, 2003, This was done pursuaul o 2
Scheme of amalgamaltion {the Scheme), aporoved
tyy the Hon' able High Court of the Staze of Punjab
and Haryvana and the State of Tamil Nadu on
arch 6, 2003 and March 20, 2005, raspectively,
whereby the sratahile MFCL Inforst Linited (name
sarlier allotted to the transierus Company}
{"erstahile HFCL Infokel’} was merged witn the
Company with effect. from Septembper 1, 2002, As
per the Scheme envisaged, the Company’s then
existing Dusiness of hire purchase, ‘easing and
securities trading wag transicrred by way of stump
sales to its wholly owned subsidiary, Rajar Financ:
i fovestments Company (Indial Timtted ["Rajam
finance’) with effect from September 1, 20U Ratam
Finance was renamed as The [nvesiment Trust of
India Eimited with effect from fupe 17, 2005 and it
ceased to be the subsidiary of the Corpan® with
cifoct from September 30, 2003, due e ailotment of
fresh equity by Rajam Finanze o ather investors.

The Compary, during lhe vear ended warch 31,
200M, surrendered ils license granted by Resprve
Bank of India (BB ka carry il 2{BFC busmess.
R contirmed the cancellation of the NRFC License
as pre Lheir letter dated May 21, 200=.

On July 2, 2004, the Company incorpnteied A
subsidiary company in the name ot Connert
Broadband Services Limiled. wirich has been
changed w CBSL Cable Networks Limited UCBSE
or "Subsidiary”) with effect from Felyruary 5, 2003,

BALANCE SHEEI AND PROFIT
T1E YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

Intdian Wupees, excepl chare dain ichieding

&

AND LOSS ACCOUNT AS AT AND FOR

share price, unless oferise staivd]

The main object of the Company iv to carry on the
business as service provider and operater for
distibution of cable television network. Truring
the previous year, the Company launched the
integrated service to provide tor viice, video and
Jata services through caile television network,
CBST. being the vidao service provider through cable
television network. CBSL has launched ihe vwideo
sepvices in Dotober 2005.

{3y March 26, 2008, the Conmpany has entered into
an agreement with CBSL and has sold its entire
share holding in the Company o Digicable
Nptwacks {india} Trd for a consideration af Rs.
90,500,000, The zctual sale was exeruted on April
15, Hi08.

O August 13, 2608, she Company has incorpmeated
one wholly owned Subsidiary Company [nfatek
Towar [nfrastructure Private Limdtect (TTHPLY with
an Investment of Bs 29,800, The principal usiness
of the company s building, pstablishing, sething-
i, ACCTUINE, developing, advising oo, manasing,
providing, operating and/opr maintaining
facilitasing conduct ol fully or partially
infrastructure facilities and services thereol for all
Kinds of value added services including Broadband
Towers for telecorn nperations /services. payment
zateway sarvices and infernational gateway
aupvices.

[icense Fees

'[te Company obtained licenee for Basic Telephony
Servrice for the Punjab circle {inciuding Chandigarl
and Panchkula) by way of amalgamaiion of ke
erstkile HECL Infotel with the Company. Erstwhile
HECT Infotel had obfained this ficence under [ixed
license fee regime under MNational Telecom Pelicy
{INTP'} 16, valid for a period of 20 years from the
sffective date, and subsequently migrated yeom the
fixad leerse fes regime o revenue shanng regime
nporn implementation of MTI* 1999, Further to the
Telecom Regulatory Authority of India’s {'TRAI'}
recnmmendations of October 27, 2003 and the
1Jepartment af Telecommunications (130T}
suidelines on Unified Access (Basic & Czlivlar)
Zopvices Licence (TUASL) dated MNoveenber 11,2003,
the Company migrated ils licence ko the UaSL
regime with effect from November 14, 2003. A fresh
Ticenge Agreement was signed on May 31, 20
Pursuant lo this migeation. the Company became
addilionally catitled to provide full moebility
anrvices. FITCL Infotel also entered into a Livence
Apreement dated juoe 28, 2000, and amendments
theetn, with DoT to establish maintain and vperate
internol sarvice in Funjab eircle {including
Chandigarh and Panchkula).



gt

Fixed license fees of Rs 1,775,632,329 paid under
the old license fee regime from inception tilt
July 31, 1894, were consideved as the Liconse Bndry
Faes of the Tunjab circe [including Chandigarh and
Panchkula} as part of the migration package to
NTP 1999

¥With effect from August 1, 1995, the Company is
requited 0 pay revenue share license fees as a
fraction of Adiusted Gross Revenue ["AGR"), which
is defired as total income including service
revenues, finance income and non-gperating
incomme, reduced by intercovnection costs, service
tax and/or sales tax, if applicable. The revenue
share fraction was set ab 10 per cent of AGR with
effect from Acgust 1, 199% and was reduced to 8 per
cent of AGR with effect from April 1, 2004, In
addibon, spectrum charges calewlated ab 2 per cent
of the AGR earned through the wireless technology
is payable under the license agreement. [ncome
from internet services is excluded from the service
revenwe for tie purpose of the caleulation of AGR.

During the vear ended March 31, 2008, the Company
has deposited the entry fee of Rs £,517,500,008 with
The Departteent of Telecommunication (OO for
the use of GEM Technelogy in addition o CEWA
techmology being used under Lhe existing Unified
Access Services Licence {'UASL'} for the Punjab
Service Area. The LEASL has since been amended tn
incorporate the license for use of G5M technolugy
on January 13, 2008 vide DOYs letter number
FE.N0.10-15/2004 /BS. II/FUITL/ Punjab/ 17 dated
January 15, 2008, 120T had provided the allocation
of radio spactrum on trial basis for a period of three
months il December Y, 2008 vide their letier
number £14047,/20/2006-NTG (Tt} dated September
5, 2008. The Company has applied for extension of
the same with DOT. reply o which is still awalted.

{'roject Financing

The Company’s project was mitially appraised by
industrial Development Bank of India {"IDEI"]
doring the year ended March 31, 2000 for an
estimated vpeak fund requirement of
Rs 11,800,000,000. The appraised means of linance
for the project was to be funded by way of equity
capital of Rs 3,240,000,000 and debi of
Rs 8,560,000,0600.

Pursnant to the migration to UASL regime, the
consortian of leaders, led by TDBI through the
Corporate Debt Restructuring ("D} mechanism
approwed an overal] reslructuring of the Habilities
of the Company and thereby revised the peak
funding requirerments {roim Rs 11,800,000,00 to
Es 13,450,000,000 vp to March 3L, 2006, with peak
funding gap of Ks 1,650,000,000,

Further, the CDR Empovered Group has approved
the proposal of the Company for expansion of
services, change in the scope of the project, cost of
project and means of finance and restructuring of
debt as per the letter daied fune 24, 2005. As per the
said propesal, the peak funding requirement has
been further revised to Bs 13,4£70,000,G00 and the
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principat repavment of existing term loan was
reschedoled and the same will be repald betwesn
wlay 1, 2008 and April 1, 2616, Mureover, lhe raie
of interest on existing lerm loan, secured QFCDs
and working capital shall be 9.3 per cont per annum
monthly compounding. The secured OFCDD were
o be converted iifo equity shares at par subject to
applicakle provisioms of SEBI guidelines and other
retevant Acts during financial year ended March
3L 06

Further, the project cost is to be funded by way of
Equity share capital of Rs 6,020,000,000, preference
share capital of Rs 653,000,000, term Loan of Rs
7000000800, Buyer's credit  facility  of
Rs 1.630,000,000 and Unsecured OFCD of Rs
0 1000,

During the year, the Company has incurred logses
of Ry 2,147,295 600 resuliing inte accumulated toss
of Bs 11,193,880,270 as at March 3%, 2609 which has
completely eroded its net worth and has a net
varrenk liabiliby of s 3,387,735,294 incinding capital
llability nf Ka 52,269,032 and subscriber and
dishibutors security deposits of Rs 57,007,273 (after
considering provision for interest amounting to
R 1,025,846,205 beinyg the differerice v Lhe amount
peid in comparizon o the amount accrued on yield
bazs as per the CDR Scheme) As at March 31, 2009,
the Company has arranged Rs 14,352,607,527 and
s in advanced stage of discussions for the
arrangrment of K5 1,116,3924073 by way of term
loans ¢ buyer crecit facility and expects to achieve
the complete financial closure in the finmediate
tuiuzse. The ability of the Company to continue a5 3
Toing voncern is substantially dependent on ity
ability lo successfully arrange the remaining
funding and achieve financial closure to fund its
pperating and capital lunding requirements and to
substantially increase its subscriber base. The
management is confident of generating cash flows
w2 fund the operatng and capital requirements ot
the Company in the event of any delay in lhe
areangement of the balance funding. Accordingly,
these statements have been preparcd on going
CORCCTT asis,

Summary of significant accounting poligies
Basizs of preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared to
comply in all material respects with the notified
accounring standards by Companies (Accounting
Slandards) Bules, 2006 (‘as amended’), and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1936,
The preparation of financial slatements in
roniormity  with  the Generally Accepted
Acvounting Principals, The financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention on an accrual basis of accounting. The
accourting policies have been consislently applied
by the Company and ace consistenk with those used
in the previous vear. The significant accounting
policies are as follows

B Eo n o
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2.3
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Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at vost (et of cenvat credieif
availed} less impairment loss, if any, and
accumulated depreciation. The Company
capitalises direct costs including taxes (excluding
cenvat}), duty, freight and incidental expenses
directly atiributable te the acguisition and
installation of fixed assets. Capital work-in-
progress 15 stated at cost

Telephone instruments lying with deactivated
custpmers for more than 90 days since
disconnection are written off.

[nventory

Inveniory is valued at cost or net realisable value
which ever is Iuw. Cost for the purchase is worked
put on FIFO basis

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided pro-rata to the periad of
use {except tor Telephone Instruments which ave
depreciated [rom the beginning of the yuonth,
following the month of purchase], on the straight
Une method bascd on the estimated useful life of
the assels, as follows:

Assot Useful life(in vears)

Leasehold Land Ower the primary peried of

the leasze

Buildings Oiffice Building

Others

30 vears
a1 years

Leaselwokd
Improvements:

10 years or over the
primary perind of the
lease, whichever i3 lower

Nelwork Equipment
(nther than batteries)
Batierics 3

B.67 years

YIS

Testing Equipments |3
{incladed in Network
Cquipmenis)

YCars

Uptical Fibre Cable |15 yemrs
and Copper Cable

Telephone 3 years
Instruments

Computers f.17 yoars
Software 5 vears

10 wears, except in case
issued o emyplovess,
whore assat is depreciated
in 5 years

Cifice Zquipments

10 years, except in cace
iasucd to employees,
where asset is deprociated
in 3 years

Furniture and Fixtire

Vehicles 4 years

Fixed Assets costing
jess than Es 5000
(other than Telephone

Fully depreciated when
ey arc ready for use,

[nstrurmenks}

(i)

(iii)

{iv)

{v)

2.b

[
]

28

Depreciation rates detived from the abeve are not
Jess (han the rates prescribed under Schedule XTIV
of the Companies Act, 1956.

Pruring the vear the Company has decreased the
average life of Batteries considered part of Netwark
equipmenis frora 9.67 years {o 5 years. Resultart
impact is not material, hence not disclosed.

Depreciation on the amount capitalized en up-
gradation of the existing assets is provided over
the balance life of the vrigivnal asset.

Depreciation on the amount capitalised Bl March
31, 2007 on account of foreign exchange fiuctuations
is provided over the balance life of the original
asset {refer Note 2.13, beiow)

Borrawing Cosis

Borrowing costs thal are ativibutable to the
acuisition and construction of a qualifying asset
arc capitalised as a part of the cost of the asset.
Cher borrowing costs are recognised as an expense
in the yzar In which they are incurred.

[mpairment

The carrying ameunts of assels are reviewed at each
balance shect date if there is any indication of
impairment based on infernal/ external factors. An
impzirment toss is recognized wherever the
carrying amounl o an asset exceeds its recovemble
amount. The recoverable amount i3 the greater of
the assets net selling price and value in use. in
agsgessing value [n use, the estimated future cash
ilows are discounted to their present value at the
waighled average cost of capital. After impairment,
depreciation is provided on the revised carrying
ampunt of the assets over ifs remaining useful life.

A previousty recognized impairment loss is
increased or reversed depending on changes in
circumstances. Flowever the careying value after
veversal is not increased beyond the carrying value
that would have prevailed by charging usual
deprecistion if there was no impairment.

Intangibles

A1l expenditure on intangible ltems are expensed
as incurred wnless it quatifies as an intangible assel
as defined i Avcounting Standard 26. The carrying
value ol intangible assets is assessed for
recoverabiliey by refersnce lo the estimated fulure
discounted net cash flows that are expecied to be
senerated by the asser. Where this assessmend
indicates a deficit, the assels arc written down {o
the markel value or fair value as cormnpuled above.

For accounting policy related to Licence Entry Fees,
refar note 2.8(1), below.

Licance Fees
Livestes Entry Fee

The Licence Entry Fee [See Note 1 {b)] has becn
recognised as an intangible asset and is amortised
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equally over the remainder of the licence period of
20 years from the date of commencement of
conmnaercial aperations [Refer Note 1 ()], Licance
entry fees inctudes interest on funding of licence
cntry fees, foreign exchange fluctuations on the oan
taken upte the date of commencement of
commercial operations.

The carrying value of license entry fees are assessed
for recoverability by reference to ihe estimated
future discounted net cash flows that are expected
to be generaled by the asset. Where this assessment
indicates a deficit, the assets are written down In
the market valuc or fair value as computed above,

Revennie Sharing Feo

Revenue Sharing Fee, currently computed at the
prescribed rate of Adjusted Gross Revenue ("AGRY)
is expensed in the Profit and Tass Account in the
gear In which the related income from providing
unified access services i3 recognised.

An addilional revenae share towards spectrum
charges is computed at the prescribed rate of ihe
servica revenue carned from the customers whe
ate provided services through the COMA and
CorDect vwireless techrnotogy, This is expensed in
the Frofitand Loss Account in the year in which the
related income is recognised.

Further, effective Fobruary 135th 2008, the TRAI has
issued an amendment to [UC Regulation 2006,
reguizring to pay additional 0.73 per cent of ACR
tawards access deficit charge. Further on
March 28, 2008, the same was abolished. These costs
are expensed in the 2rofit and Loss Account in Lhe
year in which the ralated revenues are vecognised.

Investmenis

invesiments that arce readily realisable and
intended to be held for not more than a year are
classified as current investments, Al other
investrnents  are classified as long-term
investments. Long term investments are stated at
cost. However, provisfon for diminution ie value
iz made to recognise a decline other than temporary
in the value of the investmenfs. Current
investments are carried al tower of cost and fair
value and determined on an individua! investment
basis.

Provisions

A provision i3 recognised when an enterprise has a
present obligation as a resnlt of past event; it is
proballe that an outflow of resources will be
required to setile the obligakion, in respeet of which
a reliable estimate can be made. Travisions are not
discounted to its present value and are determined
based on best estimate required to seitle the
obligation at the balance sheel date. These are
reviewed at vach balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the cureent best estimates.
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2.11 Revenue Recognition

Revenue from unified access services arc recognised
on services rendered and is net of reliates, discounts
and service tax. Unbilled revenues resulting from
unified access services provided from the billing
cycle date to the end of each month are cstimated
and recorded. Revenues from unified access services
rendered through prepaid cards are recognised based
on achiial usage by the rustomers. Billings made but
not expected bo be coltected, if any, are estirnated by
the management and not recognized as revenues in
accordance with Arcounting Standard on Revenue
Recognitiun {"A5 9.

Revenue on account of internet services and revenue
from infrastructure services are recognised as
services are rendered, in accordance with the ferms
af the rofated contracts.

Interconnertion Usage Revenue and Charges

Fhe TRAT issued laterconnection Usage Charges
Regulation 2003 (‘TUC regime’} effective May 1, 2002
and subsequently amended the same twice with
effect fzom February §, 2004 and February 1, 2003,
Under the IUC regime, with the objective of sharing
of call revenuey across different operators involved
in oagination, transit and termiralion of every cabl,
the Company pays interconnection charges
{prescsibed as Rs per minute of rall time) for all
outgoing calls vriginating in its network io other
operators. depending on the termination paint of
the call i.e mobiie, fixed line, and distance Le local,
national long distance and infernational long
distance.  The Company receives certain
interconnection ¢charges from other aperators for
all calls teeminating ia its network

Accordingly, interconnect revenue are recognised
on those calls griginating in another telecom
opcratnr network and termicating in the
Company's network.  Interconnect cost is
recognised as charges mcurred on lermination of
calls originaiing frem the Company’s network and
terminating on the network of other telecom
operatars. The interconnect revenue and costs are
recognised in the financial statement on a gross
basis and included in service revenue and network
operation sxpenditure, respechvely.

213 Porcign Currency Transactons

Initial Recognition

Foreigi currency transachions are recarded in the
reporting curcency. by applying to the foreign
curtency amount the exchange rate bebween the
reparting currency and the foreipn currency at the
tlate of the transaction.

Conveorsion

Foreign curvency wonetary items are reported
uzing thw closing rate. Nun-monetary items whick
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are carried in terms of historical cost denominated
in a foreign currency are reported using the
exchange rate af the date of the fransaction; and
non-monelary ilems which arve carried at fair value
or other similar valuabon denominated in a foreign
currency are reported usinyg the exchange rates Lhal
existed when the vatues were determined.

Exchange Dvifferences

214

Exchange differeaces arising on the settlement or
pn reparting Company’s marnetaty ttems at rates
different from these ab which they were initially
recorded during the vear, or reported in previous
financial statements, are recpgnisad 23 income or
a3 expenses in the year,

Employae Benefits

Effective Aprid 1, 2007, the Company bas adepted
the Revised Accounting Standard - 15 'Employee
Benefits'. The eelevant policies are:

SGhart Term Employze Baneflis

Short term employee benefits are recognised in the
petind duving which the services have been
renwdered,

Long Term Employee Benefifs

Provident Fund and employees’ state insurance schemes

All employees of the Company are antitled to
receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which
is a defined contribubion pian, Both the employee
and the employver make monthly contributions to
the plan at a predetermined rate {presently 12%) of
the emplovees” basic salary. These conbribubions
are made to the fund administered and manamed
by the Government of India. In addition, some
employees of the Company are covered under the
employees” staw insurance schemes, which are aiso
defined coniribution schemes recognized and
administered by the Government of India.

The Company s contribubions o bath these schemes
are expenged in the Profit and Loss Account. The
Company has no further obligations under these
plans beynnd ils monthly confributions.

Leave Encashment

The Company has provided for the liabitity at
period end on account of unavailed eamed leave as
per the actuarial valuation as per the Projected Unit
Credit Method.

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity obligations
Lhrough a defined benelit tetirement plan (the
‘Cratuity Plan’) covering all emplovees. The
Gratuity Plan provides 2 honp sum paymeid o
vested employees ab eetirernent or termination of
employment based on the respective emploves

G2

i)

b)
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salary and years of employ ment with the Company.
The Company provides fur the Gratuity Plan based
on actuarial valuation in accordance with
Accounting Standard 15 {revised), “Tmployee
Benelits * The Company makes annual
confributions to the LIC for the Gratuity Plan in
respect of employees. The present value of
obligation under pratuity is determined based on
actuarial vaiuation at period end wsing Project Unit
Credit Method, which recognizes each period of
service as giving rise to additional unit of employee
benefif entitlement and measures each wnit
separalely to build up the final obligation.

Short term conpensated absences are pravided for
on based on estimales.

Actuarial gains and losses are recopnized as and
when, incurrad

Income-Tax

Tax expensc comprises of current, deferred and
fringe benetit bex. {urrenl income tax and fringe
benefit tax is measured at the amount expected to
be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with
the Indian fncome Tax Acl Deferred income taxes
reflects the impace of current year Rming differences
bebwreen taxable income and accounting ineowe for
the year and reverzal of iming differences of earlier
YRALL.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and
the fax taws enacted or substanlively enacted at the
balance sheet date. Deaferced tax assets are
recogniszd unly to the extent that there is
reasonable cerninty that sufficient fubure taxable
income witi be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realised. If the company
has carry forward of unabsorbed depreciation and
tax losses, delerred tax assets are recognised only
if there is virhual certainty supparted by convincing
evidence that such deferred tax assets can be realised
against fuburs tusable profits. Unrecognised
defereed tax assels ol earlicr years are re-assessed
anc recognised to the exkent that it has bacome
rezzonably certain or virtually cerbain, as the casc
may be, that fuiure Laxabis income will be available
against which such deferved bax assets can be
realised. ’

Operating Leases

Where the Company is Hre lessee

Lesses of assels under which the lessor effectively
retains all the risks and rewards of uwnership are
classified as operaring lesses. Lease payments
under operating beases are recognized as an expense
on a slraighl-line sasis over the lease term.

N et e
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Where the Company is the lessar 2.18 Begment Reporting

Asseta subject fo operating leases are included In Identification of segments:

fixed assety. Lease incomae 18 recognised in the Profit
and Loss Acgount on a straight-line baris over the
lease term. Costs, including depreclation are
recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loas
Account. [nikal direct costs such as legal costs,
brokerage costs, etc. are recopnised immediately

The primary reporting of the Company has been
petformaed on the basis of business segments. The
analysis of geographical segments is based on the
areas in whicl the Company's preducts arve sold or
aervices arc rendered.

{n the Profit and Loas Account.
2.17 Loss Per Share

Basic loss per share is calcutated by dividing the
net loss for the year atiributable to cquity
shareholders by the weighted average number of
equily shares oulstanding during the year.

Allocation of conunon costs:

Common allocable costs are atlocated to each
segment according ta the relabive contiibution of
each segmenl Lo the total onmmon costs,

Unallozatad items:

For calowdating diluted loss per share, the number
of shares comprises the weighted average shares
ronsidered for deriving basic loss per share, and
also the weighted average number of shares, if any
which would have been used in the conversion of
alt cifutive potential equity shares, The number of
shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are
adjusted for the bonus shares and the sub-diviston
of shares, if any.

The Corperate and other segment include generaj
corporate income and expense items, which are not
allocated to any business segment.

e

2.19 Cash & Cash Lquivalents

Cash & cash equivalents in the Balanee Sheet
comyprise cash in hand and at bank.

TSR e T 4 inmlt
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCYE SHEET AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

FAN emounts in Indian Rupees, axcept share doia including shore prive, unless otherivise stafed)

SCHEDULE 23:
NOTES FORMING FART OF THE ACCOUNTS
1. Commitments and contingent liabilities not
provided for in respect ol
S. ) Drescriplion As At As At
Ma. March 31, Mareh 31,
9 2008
1. | Estimated Value of Coniracts
EEmaining
To be executed oz capilal
account and et provided
for net of capital advanges
Rs. 2,024,306 (Mareh 31,2008~
Ra 353,064} 22,901,234 1iNL259,971
iL. | Contingent Liabilitiea and
Commibments
Financial Bank Guarantees 2IL206,5314] 260349625
{refer Mote (2} betow)
Perfurmance Bank Cuarnnkeesf 33,864,972 55,653,922
{refer MNote (a) Below)
Counter guaranise given to
HFECL. the Holding Company §3,225,0600,0004 5,225.000.000
{refer Mot {(a) balow)
Lil. | Open Letters of Credit 12,620,144 47 /98,351
{Marzin depasit for above
Rs 1,262,014 (March 31, 2608
Bs 4, 730,6825)
IV.] Income-tax matters under
Appeal 10.346,5337]  24.356,429
frefor doote {h) batow)
V. |Claims againgt the Company
nvt acknuwledged as debls -
mainly represenbing varinus
miscetfaneous claims Hled
against the Company, which
are subject matter of litizaton MR 4,227,085
V1. | Others (pofor ot (o, de s, fand )
beioa) B39 837573 230,329,995
Total o407, 336,255 [ 5,995,490,325
{1) Financial bank guarantees as a¢ March 31, 2009 of
Rs 221,206,514 (March 3T, 2008 - Rs 260,349 ,628) and
performance bank guarantees of Rs 33,864,972
(Warch 31, 2008 - Rs 53,638,923} are secured. The
details of securily created are detailed ouk in nute
nue. 9 (a) below. Further, the financial bank
guarankee given by Punjab Nationat Bank ('PNE)
to The Export fmport Bank of China of Rs
108,425,514 is not secured by the Conselidale
Corporate Bank Guaranlee of Fs 3,225,000.000 by
HFCL, the Holding Company.
by The Cnmpany has certain income tax related

malters pending with Income Tax Appellate
Tribonal for the Assessment Year 2001-02
aggregating to Rs 10,300,957 {hlarch 31, 2008 -
Rs 2,316,234}

(e}

(d)

The Wireless Finance Division of Department of
Telecommunications has claimed an vutstanding
of Rs 24,585,211 towards the Spectrum Charges dues
trom vear 2001 to year 2005 vide their letter 1020/
48 /2005-WFD dated October 7, 2005, The Company
has submitted its reply to the department on
Ogtober 23, 2005 confirming the total due of Rs
29472 only and pald the said amount. The Wireless
finance Division of BDepartment of
Telerommunications has subseguently clatmed Rs
30,310,176 vide letter number 1920/ 48 /2003-WED
dated September 13, 2006 towards the Spectrum
Charges dues from year 2001 Lo year 2006. The
Company has submitted a detailed reply on
October 31, 2006. During the vear ended
March 21, 2008, out of the above demand, the
Company has deposited Rs 1,801,241 under protest
towards the interest due tll Aogust 31, 2006
Wireless Finance Division of Department of
Telecommunications has updated their claim o Rs
70,604,092 towards Spectrum Charges dues from
Jansary 1, 2000 fo Septernber 30, 2008 vide letter
number 1020/29/WR/07-08 dated October 24, 2008,
The Company has once again made a written
representation vide its letter dated Becember 8,
2008, Based on the legal opinion obtained, the
Company is confident that no lability would accrue
regarding the same in fulure.

During the vear ended Mareh 31, 2007, Bharat
Sanchar Nigam Limited ['BSNL) has raised
supplementary bill dated August 10, 2006 tor Ks
167,614,241 fowards Intee-cornect Usage Charges
('TUCT and Access Deficit Charges ("ADC) for the
period Novernber 14, 2004 to August 31, 2063 on
the Company in accordance with HQ Letter Ne.
460-1/2006-REGLN dated May 22, 2006, B5NL
further raised invoices to the tune of Rs 99,346,333
on stmilar grounds for the period Scptewmber 1, 2005
to February 28, 2006.These charges are on account
of unitateral dectaration of the Company's Fixed
Wireless ancd Wire line Phone serviees as Limited
Mobility Services by B3MNL. The Company has
submitted its reply lo BSNL on Auwgust 23, 2006
asking for the catculation/basis for the additional
amounl raised towards [UC and ADC by BENL far
Ks 167,614,241, Subsequently, BSINL issued a
disconnection natice on Augusl 26, 2006 which
required the payment of Rs 208,236,509 (including
Rs 167,614,247). The Company has subrnitted detaifs
to BSNL for payments atready made for Rs
40,622,325, The Company has approacivwd Hon'ble
TDSAT on the subjecl imatier and a stay order was
granted on our petition no 232 of 2006 against the
disconnertion nolice o0 Seplamber 21, 2006. BSNL
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Jatandhar Office subsequently raised a supplernentary
bill vide Letter No. Dy.GMM/NTR/JL/HICL/75
dated March 20, 2007 for Rs 3,206,780, to which the
Company has submitled its reply on March 23, 2007
intimating that the matter being subjudice and
pending decision by the Hon'ble TDSAT, no epercive
action be taken against the Company. The subsequent
hearing has been adjourmed to July 24, 2009, The
Company, based an expert leyzl opinion, believes that
there would be no fnancial lisbility against such bills
and accordingly, has not recorded any Babiliey towards
the IUC and ADC supplementary bills during the year
ended, March 31, 2009

The Company is in receipt of Show Cause Notice
dated June 4, 2007 from Department  of
Telecommunications {"TeT") for non fulfilment of
first year's roll-out obligations of Unitied Arress
Sarvice License ("UASL') Agreement for Punjab
Service Area, where in the licensee as per the terms
of the license agreement was required to ensure
thatatleast 10% of the District Headquarter / Towns
are covered in the first year of the date of migration
k> UASL which commences from the date of Test
Certificate {ssued by Telecom Engincering Centre
FTEC) As slated by DoT in the Show Cause Nobes
issued, the Company has violated the conditions
of UASL and accordingly Liquidated Damages of
Rs 70,000,000 has been imposed and DoT has also
sought explanation within 21 days as to why they
should not take action against. the Company under
the UASL Agreement to which the Company has
replicd on September 27, 2007 that the Company
has not violated the conditions of UASL and based
on expert legal advice, the Company believes that
theze would be no financial Hability ayrainst such
claims of DoT and arcordingly, has not recorded
any liability towards the Liquidated Damages
during vear ended March 31, 2005,

The Company is in receipt of a demand of Rs
4,157,718 froo Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limired
(‘'BSNL'} om February 2; 2002 on account of port
charges for the year 2008-09, passive link charges,

“dict cost for passive link.and active link charzes.

Out the above Rs 430,131 pértaining to port charges
tor the year 2008-09 and active link charges was
paid by the Company vide receipt number 159
dated February 18, 2009, The armount of Rs 3,727,387
towards the duct cost for passive link and passive
link charges was not acceptable by the Company
as the demand raised by BSNL was unilateral and
unjust. The Company filed a petition vide petition
nueinber 41(C) of 2009 with Telecom Dispule
Settlement and Appeliate Tribunal ("TDSATY Lo
which the Company was granted a stay order dated
March 25, 2009 staying BSNL from recovering the
dues from the Company and rnatter is further liziad
on July 20, 2009 for hearing on accordingly no
liability has been booked in the books of accounls
tor the year ended March 31,.2009.

(g) The Company is in receipt of a demand of Rs

(b}

433,158,340} from Bharat Sanchar Migam Limited
["BSNL‘) on December 20, 2008 on account of
unilateral revision of access charges vide its letter
dated Apeil 28, 2001 for the period from June 2001
to May 2003, in contravention of the Interconnect
Agreement and TRAI Regutations, The Company,
Assaciation of Unified Service Providers of India
‘AUSPI' (erstwhile Assadiation of Basic Telephane
Opcrators ‘ABTO"} and other Basic Service
Operators contested aforesaid revision in the rates
of access charges before Yelecam Dispute Settlernent
Appellate Tribunal {"TDSAT?), TDSAT vide its
reasonad and detailed judgement dated April 27,
2005 allowed the refund claims and struck down
the unilateral revision in the rates of access charges
by BSNL and held that Telecom Regulatory
Authority of India ('TRAL) is the final authority
kor fixing of access charges and aceess charges would
be payabie as rates oreseribed by the TRAL and as
per the Interconnect agreements, BSNL preferred
an appeal in Hon'ble Supreme Court against the
vrder of TDSAT and an interim stay was gramsed
on October 19, 2006 Therefore aggricved by such
unilakeral action on the part of BSNL by raising
atoresaid demand and disturbing the status-quo,
applications were moved by the Company, AUSPF]
and other operatars in the Hon'ble Supreme Court
vide C.A No.5834-5836 of 2005 that was listed for
hearing on February 9, 2002 and Hon'ble Supreme
Court passed an order clarifying ils previous order
of October 19, 2006 and stayed the refunds claim
againat the BSNL there by upholding the TDSAT
order dated April 27, 2005 where by BSNL is
refrained from raising the access charges demand.
The Company bused on the legal opinion believes
that there would be no financial Lability against
this demand and has accordingly not recorded any
liabilily towards access charges during the vear
ended March 31, 2009,

Loan and Advances of March 31, 2008 includes
amount recoverable from Bgsar Investmenis
Limifed (‘EIL") aggregating to Rs 134,070,220, The
Cowmpany had made payinents in eatlier vears to
EtL for takeover of certain accounted and
unarccounted liabilities for services that were to be
selited by EIL as per the agreement betwesn EIL
and erstwhile HTCL Infoiel. KTL has failed ko setile
the dues with the respective parties-and the
Company bas tiled a winding up petition 1/s 234
of the Companies Act, 1556 with Honourable Court
of Murnbai. This pelition has been dismissed vide
Orvder dated Barch 24, 2005. Subsequently, the
Company has filed an appeal before Fie division
bench of the Honourable High Court against the
order dated March 24, 2005 and also sent a notice Lo
Eil. invoking arbitration proceedings. ke
Hounourable High Court dispased aff the appral as
no case forinterfecence in the impugned order vide

HICL INFOTEL LIMITED —
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ils order dated November 1, 2008, However, the
Honourable High Court referred the dispute ta the
anbe Arbitrator of Justice My DK Dhanuka, The
Company has flled the staternent of clalm on May
13, 2006 before the sole arbitrator, Pending such
recovery, pravision for dewbiful advance is belng
carvied in the financial staternents for the year ended
March 31, 2008, On July 11, 2008 the Company has
reached a settlement with Essar [nvestments
Limited (‘EIL’) and EIL has agreed to pay HECL
sum of Rs 65,700,000 towards the final settlemeni
of dues, accordingly the provisions of equivalent
amount of Rs 65,700,800 have been adjuated and
the balance amount of Rs 68,370,240 has been
adjusted from Loans and Advances as amount not
recoverable and its provision of equivalent amount
of Rs 68,370,240 have been reversed and written
off.

Expenditure in forelgn currency (on accrual basis)

¥or the Far the

year endad | year ended

March 31, March 31,

as 20608

Travel oepenses 1,351,785 3,812,044
Finance charges 184344941 20,732,243
Othars 716,806 | 234,051,000
Total 20,503,084 237,586,287

Managerial remuneration

My. Surendra Lunia was desighated as manager of
the Company for a term of three years on September
28, 2007 with effect from July 25, 2087 under section
269 of the Companies Act 1956, in the Annual
General Meeling of shareholders. The Company
had apphied to Central Government for approval,
which Ias been granted, vide letter no 12 F BT 2007 -
1LV dated June 25, 2008, Mr. Surendra Lunia
subsequently resigned as a manager on January 31,
2009, Mr. Kapil Bhalla - Company Secretary has
been appointed as the manager of the Company
with effecl from January 31, 2009 since the annual
salary payable is less than the stipulated limit no
approval of Central Government is required.
Accordingly the managerial remuneration has been
as disclosed belos,

Kemurneration paid to Manager is as under:

For the For the

vear ended | year ended

March 31, Mazch ¥,

200 08

Salary 2,552,000 2,282,931

Emplevers conlribution bo

provident fund T, 240k 273955

Perguisites/ Allowangus 3542724 3,838.510
Fx-gratia/ Purfonnance |

Inkod incentive 377 RO0 1,387 380

Total 6,978,466 7,78),797

The above managerial remuneration does oot include
provision of gratuity of Ra 17,188 {March 31, 2008~
{3 287,241) and leave encashment nf R 30,839
(March a1, 2008 Rs 645,742}, as these proviglons are
computed on ihe basis of an actuarial valuation done
far the Company as a whale and are provided in the
financials (Refer Schedule 14,

Value of perquisites and other ailowances has been
determined: in accordance with the provision of the
fncome-tax Act, 1967,

Paymenis to auditors {excluding service tax)

For the Faor the
year ended | year ended
Mareh 34, Masch 31,

2004 2R

As Auditorn:
SAolib fees 2,000,000 2,000,000
Tax audil tes A0, 350,000
Crut-af-puckel expenses 281118 R HER RS
o other manner:
Certification charges 134180 100,000
[Tatal 2,931,118 2730852
CIF value of imports

Far the Far the

year ended]| year ended
March 31, Marrch 21,

2009 2008
Empuort of capizal eguipment 78,738,857 4u,5e3 533
[other than telephone
instrements)
Tmport of telephane £8,232,931| 9a510.977
instruments
Camponents & Spares 5,920,008 3,908,766
Total 152,391,796 201,942,294

Consumption of Skores & Spatres

For the year ended ] For the year ended

March 31, 2003 March 31, 2008
Value % Value o
Indigenowus 41,214,780 | 9494 | 25,445,562 RSET
Imported 2,197,467 306 4,302,021 1443
Toutal 43,443,476 1 10000 | 29.73E,183 | 100.00

Share Capital
Equity shares

fut of the total paid up equity share capital
comprising of 523,517,152 equity shares of Rs 10
cach, 515,070,338 of unlisted equity shares have
been listed at Bombay Stock Exchange {BSE) vide
it's letter nwmber 20090514-12 dated May 14, 2009
and letter number DOS/ PREE/DMN/ FIP/ 239/ 04-
10 dated Mav 25, 2009. As a pre-condition b the
listing of the aforesaid shares of the Company, B5E
divected the Company o undertake an offer for
sale in the domestic market as the non-promoter
holding in the Compauy was below the miniaum
stipulated level. Accordingly, the Company filed



thie dradt offur for sale doctiment with SEBE for sale
of 8,000,U00 equlty sharen held by promoter in the
Company. However, SEBL vide 13 order dated
Marvek 7, 3007 difectad the Company that
cotiittunicatlon of abservations on the deaft offer
fior aale dacument filed by the Company be
wirhigld HI{ the peocesdags under Saction 118 of
the SEBI Act ayatnst the Company ase dispoaad off,
The Company filed an appeal In SAT challenging
tha SEAFY oedor dated Mareh 7, 2007, The Hon'ble
sAL direetee SEEL ta praceed with Hhe lather of offer
praseniad by the sampany, in asdardances with law,
st [sste 4 [8keer of obivevitlons in tedns of the
grildelines within elght weeks from the data of
filing of vavised deaft affer for ale docunwent by
ihe Compatly. In paeallel, puisuant to the
peatfucturing packajs approved under COR
mwehlanlazsy, the Company had been n the pinecss
of issuance af fresh equity shared to Banks /
Floanciat nsittutions on converalon of optionally
fully convertible debantures (OPCEs), Conaldering
that poat [3suanee of freab aquity on eonversion of
OFCDs, the non=promater holding in the Company
woutld exceed the milndwum stipulated thresivald,
the Company requested BSE to grant Usting of
unlisted, shates without stipulating the condition
of ofter of sale. BSE, vide s letter DCS / AMAL /
RCG/ GEN /1108 / 2008-09 dated Pebruary 13, 2009
has, {nteralia, agrecd to cxempt the condlfion
imposed an the Company to comply with
tagulrement of making an offer for sale in the
domestic maricet, subject o compliande of certadn
procedural reguirements lncludiog heae yeara
lock-in periad of 15% of newly isdued squlty shares
purauant to the merger L, 28% of 433,000,230 sharos
{1,080,00,063 squlfy shares} The Company in
rompiande with candlons atiftilated by BSE haa
placed under lock it 108,000,063 equity sharas on
May L4, 2009 for 4 period of J years ending May L5,
214 The Campany has alao eomplied with allother
Hugeatary requiratnenta pursiank io the letier from
BSE dated Febrary 13, 2009 celated 1o 83,070,084
aqulty shores lssusd puruant b corpotite debit
testructuring scheme, BAL has alsn agreed t grant
ineprinelple approval for allobnent of B, 743,114
aquity sharos to be issued to Banks and flnanclal
ingtitutlons on sonvaraien wpon Aling of necessary
llating agplieation, whick tha Company has filsd,
vide e lettar m, HITL /S8 /8-/069/473 and 473
dated Marech (17, 2009, H8E vide thelr uotice
2090914412 dated May 14, 3009 hodted on it's
webslte haa granted Hating and trading permission
for 433,000,250 aquity shares {ssued purdnant o
sehene af wwalgamation, BSE bag granted lating
approval fov 83,070,088 equlty ahdares vide Hely
latter mumber DC8/PRBE/DMN/FIR/ 239 /08.10
dated May 28, 2000 and the shares have boon Hated
vide BAL notoe numbor 20900603-20 dated Juny 3,
2009,

El

On Mareh 31, 2004, the Company oblained the
approval from the sharcholbduts for de-llsting the
shares llsted {n the Caleutts Stock Bxchange
Aasdefatlon Limited {CSEY apnd complied with all
the nucdssary regulrements for dellating and
subirltted 1ts application In CSE Desplte repeated
remitidars, the Conipany has ast yet recelved TS0
appravat o iy regard,

Adlvanee Againat Share Appllcativa Maney

As por the restructuring package approved under
CDR mechaniaim, on Octabar 16, 2004, the Company
had [sauad 7,351,178 Zera provent Optionelly Pully
Copverible Dubenifures (OPFCDE) of Rs 100 cach
It Hau of ininrgat dccrvad on bem loans from
foanclal Inantuton and banky from January 1, 2004
to March 31, 2005, Pursuant to the revised CDR
scheme dated June 24, 2008, and lender's
confrmation regarding conversion af Zero percent
Optlonally Fully Converttble Debenture {'OFCD)
itcludlng promiun acerued Hll March 3, 2006, the
Company transferred OFCDs of Rs 755,117,800 and
QFCDy premium of Re 119,873,594 Into equicy
shares, However, pending elarifications on the
cotrvarslon price, the Company, with the consent
of the lendery, copverted the convertible amount
inta Advance against Equity Share Application
Money an March 31, 2006. Durlng the year ended
Maieh 31, 2007, the Cumpany had further
tranuferred Ra 3,550,374 to Advande Against Bquity
Shate Application Money, which gertained to
differential intorest dug to monthly vis-d-via
quarterly compounding in respect of terme Inan
frofa & scheduled Bank, Durltg the year ended
Macch 31, 2008, the Company obtained additiona!
confirmations from lendors regarding conversion
of Zevo pareont Optionally Fully Convertible
Digbentura ('OBCDY Ingluding premium accruwd
Hil Mareh 31, 2006, The Company hae dcordingly
reduded wn aniount of Re 131,110,587 From the QFCD
pamium and taken baclk the equivalent amount t
sgéuritios premium aegnunt. Pending clarificaton
en corvaraiog price af auch QFCI doeluding
presbum) from SERBI the Company, an tha Daxsis of
ditactions of Flnanclal Insttutlon and Banks have
reuested Borabay Stack Bxchange ('BOE'} o grant
inspeineiple’ appraval for sllobment of shares at
par. The BEE hay agreed vide ks fetter no DS/
AMAL/RCO/GEN/TI0R/2I0E-UI0E dated Pabruary
13, 2009 to geant in-peineiple appeoval faraliolmant
of 86,743,116 equity sharss to be laaued to Bapnks
ang financial lastitutions an conversion of DFCDs
upan compistlon of necessary formallties, The
Company has filed the requisite listlng application
in peewcribed farmat vide (3 letter no, HITL/88&L/
S0L/09/472 and 47 dated March 07, 2009 recaipled
by U4E on Mareh 13, 2009 and responss from BSE is
stitl awaitad,

HFEGL INFOTHL LIMITED —-——
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e

Secured Loans

As per the CDR Scheme apptoved on March 19,
2004 and subsequently approved on June 4, 2005,
the Lenders have signed Master Restructuring
Agreement ('MRA") for restructuring of their Debts
and Security Trusteeship Agreement, whereby the
Lenders have entered inta an agreement and
appuinted [DBI Trusteeship Services Limited
therein after referred as “ITSL”) as their custodian
of security. On November 11, 2005, the charges were
registered in favour of the ITSL for Rupee Term
Loans, for providing Specific Credit Facility, for
Working Capital Assistance and Zero percent
Secured OFCDs. The same are secured by first pari
passu charge on immovable properties of the
Company situated at Kandivail (East), Mumbai an<l
properties sithated at Mohali & Jalandhar under
gquitable mortgage, first pari passu charge of
hypothecation of movable properties of the
Company including movable plant & machinery,
machinery spares, tools & accessories and other
movables including book debts by way of
hypothecation, both present and future, Further,
the same are also secured by assignment of all
rights, title, benefits, ciaims and interast i, under
the project documents, insurance policies, all
statutory, government and regulatory approvals,
permissions, exemptions and waivers on pari passu
basis, These arrangements/loans are further
secured by cansolidated corporate guarantee given
by HECL, the Holding Company, to the tune of
Rs 5.225.000,000. Subsequently, pursvant to the
zeworked restructuring scheme approved ander
DR mechanism on Tune 24, 2005, the Comnypany
has entered tnlo amendatory Master Restructuring
Agreement and amendatory Security Trusteeship
Agreement ["STA’) on March 9, 2006, whereby
Cenlurion Bank of Punjab bas also joined as one of
the tenders and has agreed to appoint ITSL as their
custodian for security and signed the STA in line
with other fenders in consertivm.

O the request of the Company, Corporate Debt
Restructuring Cell (‘'CDR’) vide their letter no CIOR
(JCI) Mo 138 / 2009-10 dated May 20, 2009 has
approved a revised restrucluring packame. The
revised restructuring packayge interalia includss
funding of interest from Juby 1, 2008 to October 31,
2009 on simple interest basis, Funded I[nterest on
Term Lean ['FITL) would not carry any interest
and the TITL shall be repaid in 16 equal monthly
installiments commencing from Decernber 1, 2003,
and reschedulement of principle installments from
Angust 1, 2008 to Novernber 1, 2009 so as fo b
repayabie from Dacember 1, 2009 ta March 1, 2011
In accordance with the aforesaid revision in the
restructuring scheme, the Company has disclosed

(b}

©
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(b]

(c)

(d}

W

the Lnterest acerued but not due to the lenders
amounting to Rs 373,097,077 from July 1, 2008 ko
March 31, 2009 as 0% FITL which shall be repaid
from Diecember 1, 2009 in 16 monthly installments.
Furtther, in Hne with the aforesaid scheme, no
installment of principle repayinent is becorning due
till November 1, 2009 and as such thers is Nil
amount due as on March 31, 2009. Condirmation
from the lenders is awalked.

The above mentioned security has been further
extended to the amount of loans, wovking capital
assistance, specific facility and OFCDs together
with the inierest, compound interest, additional
interest, default interest, costs, charges, axpenses
and any other monies payable by the Company in
relation thereto and in terms with MREA and STA
entered into between the lenders and [T5L,

Vehicle Loans of Bs 6,673,308 (March 31, 20018 - Bs
11,310,067) are secured by way of exclusive
hypothecation charge in favour of bank on the

© specific assets acquired out of the loan proceeds of

the Company. These loans are repayable in
monthty instalments and shall be repaid by

.2011, Vehicte loans repayable within one-year
lamounts to Bs 5,046,454, Interest rates on vehicke

‘pans vary from 8.09 per cent per anmuun ta 14.33
Percent per annurm. The tenure of loanis 36 months.

secuted Loans

in Octaber 16, 2004, the Company issued 1607751
.al:gro percent Non Convertible Debentures 'NCDs")
ok Rs 100 each ir liew of interest accrued on term
lodns frum a financial instifution and a bank for

the perivd April L, 2003 Lo December 31, 2003, The

NCD% earlier redecmable at par an March 31, 2014,
arenow redeemable at par on March 31, 2016 afker
repayment of the term loans as per revised CDR
Scheme cffective from April 1, 2005.

[nterest pdyabte on vendor finance facilities
amounting o ks Nil as at March 31, 2008
{darch 31, 2‘08 — Rs 3,937,742},

L]

On Februacy 3, 2005, the Company has entered inta
a buyer's credit loan agreement with The Export
Impert Bank of China to facilifate payment o one
of its equipment supplier for a tatal ameunt of
Bs 544,131,662 (LS5 12,134,861). As on March 31,
2009, the Cornpany has utilized Rs 527,470,587 (LS5
12,061,585} of this facility. The facility is secured by
financial Bank guarantee of Rs 108,825,514 and by a
Corporate Cuakankee of Rs 444,131,602 given by
HECL, the Flolding Company, on partt passu basis
with other lenders.

The Cempany in ierms of the agreement dated May

1, 2(KI7 has taken convertible loan to facilitate
expansion and development of businesses
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{a)

)

amounting to Rs 499,499,886 {cutstanding at
March 31, 2006 —~ Rs 499,499,886, March 31, 2008 -
Rs 499,498 886} from [nfotel Bigicomm Private
Limited. The convertible loan is inferest free and is
repavable on demand, Infotel Digicomm Privaie
Limited shall have sn option to convert the Loan
into Equity Shares, subject to getting necessary
approvals subject to applicable pricing guidelines
as per SEBI and other laws and regulations.

The Company in terms of the agrecment dated May
1, 2007 has taken buyer’s credit facility to facilitate
funding of the telecom project amounting to Rs
410,740,832 {putstanding at March 31, 2009 - Rs
410,740,832, March 31, 2008 - Rs 410,740,832) from
[mfotel Business Solutions Limited. The loan carries
[2% interest and is repayable on demand. Infotel
Business Solutions Limited has the option to convert
the loan including interest accrued into equity
shares, subject to applicable pricing guidelines as
per SEB! and other laws and regulations.

Tixed Assets and Capital woerk-in-progress

Capital Wark in Progress inciudes Goods in Transit
of Rs 92,177 (March 31, 2008 ~ Rs 23,818,282).

As on barch 31, 2009, teiephone instruments
appregating to a net book value of Rs 219,610,995
{March 31, 2008 - Bs 227,894,157} and other assets
aggregating to net book value of Rs 280,717,435
{March 31, 2008 - Bs 190,672,090} are located at
customer premises, ather parties and at other
operater’s sites, respectively.

O July 30, 2008, the Company has entered inta an
agreement with Tower Vision India (I Limited to
sell 150 ready netwaork sites to including 26 Corlect
sites and 124 tower sibes, Ouk of 124 tower sites, 99
ready Wwer sites were included in the Company's
ret flixed assets at written down value of Rs
52,964,541 and the batance 25 towers were vet ko be
constructad. The total consideration of the
aforesaid apreement asgregates to Rs 6536,000,000.
The terms of the asset purchase agreement expires
o Decernber 31, 2005 anel by then, the Company
had handed over 83 ready tower sites for
Ks 382,276,637 with aross book value of Rs
117,435,184 and accumuiated depreciation of
Rs 70,393,388, the net book value being Rs
47,041,798 and accordingly, recurded a profit of
Rs 337,234,841 which has been disclosed under gain
on Sold Fixed Assels in the Profit and Loss Account
{Refer schedale 16). With the expizy of the agset
purchase agreement there is oo binding uponr the
Company b execute the handing over the balance
67 sites. The profit includes Rs 40,836,000 as
premium, out of which ®s 38,936,333 has been
deferred over the term of the master infrastructure
provisioning agrecment

{d)

(e}
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During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company
has written off Corlect switch and telephones sets
with gross book value of Rs 292,609,292 and
accumulated depreciation of Rs 194,824,721, the net
book value being Rs 97,784,571 and accordingly,
recorded a loss of Rs 97,784,571 which has been
disclosed under Loss on Discarded Fixed Assets in
the Profit and Lods Account,

During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company
has alag written off Lucent switch and it accessories
with gross book value of Rs 189,659,578 and
accumulated depreciation of Rs 289,113,367, the net
book value being Rs 346,011 and accordingly,
recorded a loss of Rs 546,011 which has been
dsclosed under Loss on Discarded Fixed Aszsets in
the Profit and Loss Account.

Investmenis

As more fully discussed in note 1{a} of schedule 22,
balance sheet of the Company includes investmettts
of Rs 717,670,900 (Rs 18,000,000 as equity and Rs
639,670,900 as unsecured, OFCD redeemable in 10
years from the year 2002-03) in an associate
company, The Investment Trust of India Limited
(“ITI'}. ITL, a non-banking finance company,
incurred a net loss of Rs 93,807,921 for the year
ended March 31, 2009, accemulated lasses of Rs
212,864,072 and has a negabive et worth of Rs
173,364,072 as on March 31, 2809, The Company
believes that ITT would not be able to arrange funds
aa per their business plans and the recovery of theix
investments and accordingly has written off the
investment of Rs 717,670,500 and has disclosed asz
Thriinution in value of investments” in the Profit
and Loss Account,

The Company held 2,050,006 equity shares of Rs 10
cach amounting fo K= 90,500,000 (99.9994 %) of
ettlire paid up capital of subsidiary CBS5l Cable
Networks Limited. During the vear ended March
31, 2008 the Company nad entered into a share
purchase agreement wilth Digicable Networks
{India} Private Ltd on March 26, 2008 fov sale of
shares of CBSL ab par. The transfer of shares has
been completed on April 16, 2008

Druring the year ended March 31, 2009 the Company
has incorporated one wholly owned Subsidiary
Company [nfotel Towar [nfrastructure Private
Limited with an Investment of s 99,800, The
principal business of the company is building,
astablishing, sethng-up. aceruing, developing,
advising on, managing, providing, eperating and/
or maintaining, facilitating conduct of, fully or
partially infrastructure facilities and services
thereof fer all kinds of value added services
including Broadband Towers for telecom
operations/services, paymeant pateway services
arl infemational gateway services,
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Licensing Feey

During the year cided March 31, 2008, the Company
has deposited the entey fee of ¥ 1,517,500,000 with
The Department of Telocommunication FRQT" fur
the use of GEM Teclnology L additlan to CTDMA
technology being used under the existlng Lini{led
Avceds Services Licence (UASLY) for the Punjab
Sarvice Ared, The UASL has slnce been amended to
incorporate the ligense for wse uf GSM techaology
on January 15, 2008 vide DOTY letter number
E.No. t0-13/2004 /08,1 / LIITL/ Punfab /17 dated
favoary 15, 2008, DOT had grovided the allocation
of ractlo spectrum on trial buals for a perlod of three
menthy £l December 9, 2008 vides their lekay
number L14047 420,/ 4006-NTC (P1) dated September
g, 2008. The Company hias appled for extenalon of
the same with DOT, teply to whigh (3 stll] awalted,

Inventory

The Company helds inventary of network
maintenance consumables and RUIM cards
amourting to Rs 19,895,676 {March 31, 2005 -
20,667,816). The quacntity and valuation of
inventory 18 taken ad verifled, valued and cartified
by the management,

Deferrad Taxes

Druring the vear, the Company hay incurred losses
af Bs 2,147,295,A00 {accumulated losses of
Ra 11,193,880,27M resulting into a tax loss carry
forward situation. The Company is eligible for a
tax holiday under section 01A of the Incame-tax
Act, 1961, Though the management la canfldent of
generating profits in the future, there Is currently
ne conviacing evidence of virtual certalnty that
the Company would reverse the tax loss carry
forwards beyond the tax holiday period,
Accordingly, the Company has not recognized any
defarved tax assets resulting from the carcy forward
tax logses. Purther, no deferred tax liablitles on
account of temporeary timing differances have been
recogiized sincy they are expacted (o roverse In
the tax hallday periad,

Current {abilitias and Provisiaony

Sundey Creditors lnelude amaount payable to Micra
and Small Bnterprises as at March 31, 2009 of
Rs 709,716 (March 31, 2008 = Ra Nil), The
infanimatln as requized {0 be diselosed under the
Micre, Smal! and Medlum Enterprisoas
Devalopmant Act, 2006 has beyn determined fo the
extent such parties have boon idontified on the basis
uf information and reeards avallabla with the
Company.

Information for the auppller covered under the
Micra, Small and Medium Enterprine Dovelopmant
Act, B4, as at March 31, 2009 is as vnder =

b}
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Particwlaes Fur the For the
penc anded | year endud
March 3, | Mach 31,
o Jdas
Pride{pal amomnt 00718

Iitarent due thatoon renalning
unpatd i aey sdapplive as o tha
sl of vagh dccountley yeds

Tho ameeint af iteraat paid by
Hue Bliyer in tonms of Sectiin 14
uf Micry, diwalt] ard Wil
Hoatetpifae Daveliyinsh Ay,
8, aluag wich thwr amounts
af the paysient made b

Hie auppltar Beynid the
Appatiited day duelig sach
Aot yadr

The amaunt of intetedt dug and
gayable fur the perlod of delay
i maRINg payment (which
agve baen pakd but beyond
thir appolided day duclig the
yearh Dut without sdding

the interedr dpocified under
Wilevo, Small & Mudium
Enterprise Developmant

ft, 2006,

The amot af ierest acerued ' - -
and remaining unpaid at the
end of accauating vaar.

During the year cnded March 31, 2008, the Company
had obtained advance of Ry 1,317,3500,000 to fund
the antry fae far using GSM Technology under the
exiating Unifiad Access Services License (UASL) for
Punjah Service Area, Durlug the year ended March
at, W09 the Company took additlanal advance of
Rs 111,000,000, The amount of aforesald advancs ia
adjustable or tefundable an such terms and
condltlons az may ba mutually agreed,

Loss parshats

The calculation of toas par shaes s based on the
loas for the yoar and number of shares is shown
betow.

Far thy
year ended
Marah 31,
008

Far the
yaar ended
March 31,
0

2,147, 193,600
A14.417,143

1,435,387 719
834,517,142

bags Eoe kb year (in Ka )

Weighted aveeapa number
o ehagoy

Beupmunal value por eqully It w
share (in Ky
14

Lioss per shigee - hasie and 37

dl[l-lh‘d' [in Nat

*The hnact of dlfution on account of ad vaace ghare
capital, OPCD has not een consldered sa [k 15 antl-
dilubive,



Operating leanes
Company s d Losios

Tha Compary Rds entarad i varjous catwaliable
feuge dgresrdonta for lodsed promises, Grond rental
expenses for the yoar onded Margk 31, 2009 1s Rs
62,145,290 (Mavch 31, 2008 = Ha 68,518,714),

The Company lad afttered lnto site sharlag
sgreamentd whth ofber eputators for sRattng of
thalr Tnfeaetrustuea sites. During the year, the
Cempany has [ncured Re 143,008,106 (Mareh 31,

HECL INFOTEGL LIMITED

(.'mnpnny wE a1 essar

The Company has entered into cancellable sito
sltaring agréemonts wilh otlier nperators for
shariing of b lnfraslucture sites. Durng the year,
the Company has acerued Rs 12,961,961
(hiarch 3, 200H= RBs 15,312,819 towdrds o
sharing revenie,

The Cowipaty has entared lnko g nog édnéellable
leasg agreament th provide approximately 732511
fibre pals kllomaters of davk {bea o [ndefemithla

40086 = B8 98,437 488) towaeds infrastruetura sharing Pight of wan (IRU} basls for a pevioad |13 vears, The
UXPRiEeY, lzase rental recebvabla propactinnate ta aciuel
Etloincters accapted By the dustantiera is creditad
by thie peofls aind Tosi accusine on abralglitaliine Vasis
ovar the lease ferwn. Due o the natuife of the

Furthar lvase payments under nonssancetlable
fperating leases are as foltows:

[ —

A al Ao al Iransgctions it {5 gob possthle g vompuie e gross
r Pariauidrs Mareh 3, | Maeh ), cabrying amauut, depreelaclon for the vear amd
i . 2064 2608 secumulated deproclation of tha asdet given on
i Payalile fat later Han vna yuar | 37,088,689 | #8,856,630 aperating ledse a4 2t Mareh 31, 3008 and accordingly
Payabie later than oe yess and | 143,633,608 | 48,950,034 disclosure requlred by AS-19 (s not provided.
mat latee thart flve yoars 19. Segmental Reporiing
Payabio pare thai five yoded ] 171,449,122 £ 10,359,505 .
Tolai 373,760,418 | 146,147,170 The primary reportng of the Company has been

performed on the basls of business segments. Tha
The cycalaton clavse Includes escalation at various Company has anly one business segment, which is
periadic level ranging from 0 o 30%, includes provision of unified telephony services.
optiony l‘l:’fi'-'l‘-’lfm:"‘_"‘al ﬁlﬂj‘ 1 to 9? yearn and there are Accordingly, the amounts appearing in these
ho resteictians impoted an the leased arrangements financial staternents relate to this primary business
segrment.  Parthiér, the Company srovides services
only in the 3tate of Punjab (includlng Chandigarh
andd Panchikuta) and, aecordingly, no disclosures are
requiredd under gecondary smonent repocting,

]

L]
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&1L Unclaimed deposit from public

During the vear ended March 31, 2004, the Corapany
surrendered its ficence granted by Hesevve Bank of
[ndia ("RBEY to carry out NBFC husiness,
Accordingly, the Campany foreclosed all the
unpaid / uneclaimed deposits as an Septentber 15,
2003 and the interest accruing thereon as on that
date, and the same have been transferred to the
Hscrow Account in February 2004, O May 24, 2604,
the RBI approved the cancellation of the
Company’s certificate of NBFC cegistration and
provided cerfain directives ta the Company to be
complied with, peading completion of which, the
Company would continue e be governed by the
relevant provisions of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 andd various directions,/ instructions issued
by RB! from thime to tme. [Refer Schedule 11 & 14
and Schedule 22, Note 1{a)jl. On August 10, 2004,
the Company has obtained the approval of the
sharcholders for the removal of NBFC ralated
objects from the Memorandum of Association,
Further, the Company submitted a letter dated July
7, 20 for compliance and RBI vide s letter dated
fuly 30, 200 gave some concessions from
compliance and hay advised the Company to follow
certain instructons i the balance in the escrow
account is settled. The Registrar of Companies,
falandhar, is yet to register the resolution of the
shareholders due to delay in filing of the
documents, for which the Company has moved an
applicasion to Central Governanent for condonation
of delay. Ministry of Company Affairs vide letter
no 17/23/2005-CLY dated 07th July, 2005 has
granted a condanation for fling of form 23, which
was submitted to Kegistrar of Companies,
Jalanghar vide tetter No. HIT1 /A& /5-31 /053 /347
dated July 13, 2005 and the registralion cerfifivats
iz vet to be oblained.

The accompanying financial statements include the
following account balances relating to the NBFC
business wiose licence granted by RBI was
surrendered during the yvear ended Marcl: 31, 2004:

Lnclaimed] Deposits From Public Bs 483,963

Interest acerued and due on public Rs 48,116

deposits upto Sepramber 13, 2003

Interest acerued and due oo s 539046

depuosits to be transferred to

InvestorBduzation and

Proteciion Fand

Cheques nuistanding beyond Es 573,614

& muonths

Others (Under reconciliation) Rs 19,0585
Rs 1,663,818

Balances with Scheduled banks Rs 1,683,818

in Escrow accouent

&

22

23.

24.
{a)

Debenture redemption reserve

Pursuant to the COR scheme on October 16, 2004,
the Cermpany has issued OFCDs agpregating to
Rs 166,776,100 repayable as ars March 31, 2016, As
per section T17C (1) of the Compunies Act, 1956, a
debenture redemption reserve (‘DRRY) is to be
created to widch adequate amounts are ta be
creditad out of the prafits of each year until such,
debentures are redeemed.

During the year, the Company has incurred lass of
Ry 2,147,295,600. Hence, in accordance with the
clarification received from the Department of
Company Alfairs vide circular o /3/2001-CLY
datad Aprit |8, 202, the Company has not erealod
Debenture redemplion reserve,

Prior periad expenditure (net}

Prescription For the!  For the
year ended ! vear ended
Macch 31, | March 31,
2009 2003

Revoetue
Bevenue Toum Hedfiod Acves Servioes = [ £1.345,150
Eevenue from [nternel Sepvices LSCG7 E0F | (918 586)
Raverue From Irurastrucaure Services - 61,214,033}
Suh Total 1,507,187 {{3,678,250)

Expenses
[nterconnect Lisage Charges 232,986 | 14,541,245
Infrastouctuze Shasing et 3,143,785 -
Other Finanee Charzes -| 2,286,040
Fort Chasges 2,069,621 ] 2,995,012
Inderast o Qithers 1,255,744 F 1,670,333
Traveling and Convevance 313,734 1,254
Lezal d Professional Chatyes 115,653 303,029
Staff Welfare Fipenses 138,206 9,490
Repair 4 Muintenance - Mebwork 20195,320 234,573
Rent F00h243 AT
Insuarance - A7742h
Electcicily and Waier 491,373 23,218
ivliscellaneous Expenses 44,250 -
YA n Hale ot Assets 7.025,988 -
Sub Total 19,133,169 | 12,371, 134
Grand Total 2GR 2T 18,692,577

Employee Benefits

During the yea:, the Company has recognized the
following 2mounts in the Profit and Loss Account

Defined Conirtbution Plans

For the| For the
yetr enched |year ended
berch 21, |Macch 31,

2009 2005

Fasticulacs

Smplover's Coalribelion b

Trovidend sumsl < 14, A%3, 9] 116,010.073

Finpiover’s Coiciubion o EST T 121,929) 355,855

*Encluded in Employer’s Contribulion Lo Pravident
and Other Fuads. Keler Schedole 18

HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED ———
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*Fin

Defined Benellt Flans

The eniployes’s gratuity fund seheme managed by
Life [usarance Corporalon of Iadia and HCICT
Lombard General Inaurariee Company Limited 1s a
deflned benefit plan. The predent value af
abligation s detormined based un actuucial
valuatton uging Crofat Uit Credte Metho, whick
recognizea cach period of setvice ad givieg risa Lo
il cHEl el anlt of @aployves beoe T antl et dnd
friedsiives each (nlt sepaiately o bubld dp s il
oblgtion. The obllgatlon for leave oneashivont Ls
riddognlsed in the dama manter aa graiuity:
Hepervlence adustmeigs ace NI aod have nok b
dizclosed as reqUilved under gara 120 of Aceainting
stanlard 15 relating ta emplayes benalis.

i

Partlediacs Gratuity & Laave

Encashmmant 4

Eiieronl st roat “EESTTTITRRT

o Erabent coat I WIRR] FI7.33%
Expiuated Reduiis i plait aseefa | (63108

Actudiial (gain] S lnss [&4AA 1443070
Pk aprvi vost : -
Curtailiment and
Sallemant soat /jecedll) | F 2 :

| Nat cuat 2.%&,3&1’

¥ incluced inthe Sl.lhisli_'il.‘.:i, W'a-géamﬂpml Boarus

P RRPRN

(by The assumptiona used fo determing the banefit

obligationy are as folloves:

Particulars Laratyity Legve
Encayivnent

Discount Rata 7 50% AN

Expucted Rate af increase in

Compensution levels 3.00%. RV

Expectad Rate af Retum an

Man Sadaars T AN

Expiovtnl Averapge remaining

wirshng livies of

s oy {yoara) 2l Yaard | 1, Tadry

Ruconciliation of gpentinyg and cloding balances of
hanafit abllationg aid plan aysets,

Leave
Bocashmgi!

Fartivulars Cirabuity

Change 1o Projeetad Depofld
Obligatlon (PBCH :
Prajected benedt obligation i
at Degloning of year TARe, 161 AN S
Careent aepvion vemt R 3 | A 106,46
Intrpent pet i LEERINE 753

Henalits paic MEREIE -
Mast sursiee onat B B
Aviararist dyaiin) £ bosa (EAT. 439

- 14,071,001

Profected bensfit abligaiion
& yearond
CRAfge [0 Hyg
“Balr valtte oF nlan apsnis

af baginning of year 1 i, B%% .
Fapeclod reburn o plag aseels 45, 6
Artyarial il £ (|oss) i, 142

Emploger coptbntian
Coatylldien by plac parkcipait
Bt Hlagvent cost :
Bomnsitila gaaind

Wik L

(4,260 424}

C e ] [ LR

LALG, 214

ab yedr end
Net Fupded siaiuy of ihe plan 113,058, 145)

TN P A

Mot amaunt engnleed  Judassad [ (9,771

AR B

3!

v}

f

i3

16,

The expreteid eate of fetlitn on plan desets wils Baaed
ot He average longterm rate of felurn expected
to prevall over the text 15 o 20 yearts on the
investients made by the LIC. This was based on
the historical returns suitably adjusted for
movements i loag-tetem povernment bond
liakervst vakes. The discoiiit tala Is based on the
averdge yleld on governmont boids vl 20 yoits,

The Coldpithy made attual conkributons to the
LIT of an amount adviced by the LI The
Company was not [ifarmed by LIC of the
tnvistinonts made by the LIC of the break-down
af plan adsuta by nveinient ype,

The eatitudtus of rate of esgalation In saldey
consldered in actuarlal valuaten |, BBken e
agesunt [nflation, saniority, prorotion and other
refevant factord neluding dethand and supply in
the amployment markes, The above information
18 vertifled by the actuary, This belng the tlest year
af implementation, previnus vear figures have not
beelt glven,

The Campany is primarily angaged tn tha business
af providing tefecommuanieablon servives, The
production and sale of such aetvices Is not capable
of being exprased i any generie uitil. Hence, othar
information pursuant to the provisions of the
paragragh 3, 40 and 413 of Fard 1l Sehedule Vol the
Companles Act, 1936 are nat applicable to the
Company

Ptior period comparatlves

Previouy year figures have beon regrouped whese
nectasary fo confitth (o this year classification,

Ax per aur ezt of aven date

e 8.8, BATTIRCH & ASSOLEATRY

Fur ATUL KULSTIREATHA & &0,

Charemd Avdouitents Chantegad Addtiantants
ey Mashani Syl duy Al Bitlar Aggarivai
Parinar Hartner

Aoy l\],,‘lﬂ'!hil_J [y, ORTE N

Tlarai Ganrgan:
Taale : Jupewe iz, e

Mupnlpeebds Mo 31220

Pam ) Kew Trethl
Diake § [oe ¥, Ay

Barand nn kabals of the Brard

Makendva Mahata AL D Shudda Suipeade Ly
[Hpslor Dhiresbg Chugf Erma s (I rer
Yikanh Agarwal wapl Bhalia

Y1 -Finapee Lompagy Secustipy

Pl - Ny Tl
Lhale : ue M), 2000
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HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDELR MARCH 31, 2004

(Unless angd otherwlse staled, all amouants are in cupoes)

NECE, INBOTRL LIMITED ——

PARTICULARS

As At

March 34, 2009

Ag At

March 31, 2008

CASHFLOW FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES

Prafitieds} {ae the year before Price Year Expenditure sl Tax
Adiustrients for

(2,181 404,065

1,300,044, 123)

Drepraziation and Amortiaation 94,738,535 1.0+35,833,.733
Farelan eschange Toswd [(Gain} 133375234 (3,670,303
Exceds Praviuon Writien Back (1,337,742 .
Diglourlan in value of hwaatmenty 717,070,901 -
Loesd [Galad on Suigh / Dlacardad Fixed Adseia L F.ABa9 A8
Bad Debiz Wrirten O 154,382,407

PFravisian far DQuusttul Acdvances

Fzaylsion (e Dogkiful Thehis

Flranre Expenam *

Joterest Incarme

Uperating profit bhefare working capital ehanges
Aubustment [or dhanges in working capital:

iIncroase) / Becrepae o dvbiors .

flncrease} £ Decrease in Leara and advances

{locreasedd Decrinse in Inventary .

Increasz 7 (Pecrpase) o Curenl Lubilities aaa pr:wisiuns
Cash penecaled from operakions

Drirees Taxes paid [Wek)

Peinr Partod Expends £ locomnel (Ber

WET CAARH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Adpuzkowsul T .'.‘h.il‘-geﬁ in:

Puccnase of fised agiuts

S TTNTRETY

£7, 464,548}

33.330,704

LA, 234,631
IR N

12,004,574
635,121,753
§5,1407,505]

e W L S—_— p———
137 46,801
|;16‘J,}'?"J,J(3‘J}
(111,356,296}
0647, B 5}

1.VE,33E 176

1,907,3%4,802
[ A2H O

(13,692,877}

1,A82,263,576

(2,314,304 526)

Pr: A5 from sale o Fived aaselz 703118385
Sabe wf Byuity Share Capitai of Subsidiacy (Reter Schadule T3, Nute | L -
[tarchase 2 Equigy Share Capital ot Sllbs].ﬁ:ir:; {Refor Schedube I3, Motz 1 a3 -
Fixad depasits 3,673,212
Wealth Lix 1,§21
intereat Reeeived 1,574,307

HET CASH USED M INVESTING ACTIVITIES (H)
CaSH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

12,235,309, 249)

Troceads from Secured loan 3,735,000 7,851,578
Agpayemuent of Secused Loan (3 U2, 490 [9,074,322]
Aepayment of Publje Duposits (271500 IAEEAE ]

frocesds from Unsecured ioan
Repavment b Unsecnred Loan

IS, U4}
31334155

845,240,717
(A0,473, 2303

Tnterast ?aid (412,338 007
Dividend paid {789,771 -
MET CASH GEMERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (534,415,264} 353,820,502
SET TNCREASES IDICREASE ] IN CASH AND CASH RQUTVALENTS LA +FL) 12,137 62% 12,825,011
Cash and Cash Fguivalents at the beginnlng of the year 023,635 42,399,437
{ash and Cash Equivaleats at the end of the year 52,321,243 440,013,658
Cash and Bank Balances e e — —————
Casn in Hand 24240702 T ATS A3
e in | {and T 064,028 9.730,728
Balances wiih Scheduled Ganks
In Cuerrent Account 413,000, 13 75 992 515
In Fixed Depasit |Boceipts pledged with Banks as margin money fo:
uvarantioes ol TEOs isgued Ra 25,420,935 {March 21, Fog - s’ 73,390,534 5,418,335 739,554
P EZicTow Accoucak 1.663.3158 1,843,350
117,950,221 113,414,210
1ess @ Margin Money pledged far Lanarankees anid Tk issued B3 x5 950 73,330,354
Cash % Cash Cguivalents 52,521,285 10,023,650

Nates:

7. The cash How statement bas been preparnd woder the indirect methand 32 et out in the Accourting Stanidard 3 ua Cash Fle Stasement notfed cndec

Companies [Accaunting Standard) Ruies 2006, (a5 amencied )
Pigures i brackeis fuficate pash outilow,

a

a

(ST 5

This is the Cash Flow referred to in our ceport of even date

S.R. BATLIBO! & ASSOCIATES

Charteted Accountants Chartered Accountants

per Prashant Singhal
ariner

Membership Mo, 93283

par Anil Kumar Aggarwal
Partner
Memberahip MNo: 91720

Maliendra Mahata

Divector

For AL KEULSHRESTHA & C0O. For and an behalf of the Board

ML Shekl
Eirertor

' Ireludes mierest accrued buat oot die on secured ioan 23 amornting to Rs 933492008 {Macch 31, 2006 - B3 200,190,930 as per COR Scherve.
Frovious year figures have bean regrouped and revast swherever necossasy T canfici o cureans year classification,
Dividand paid during the year 82 %77 (haseh 31, 3006, Rs Nilp as more ruliv disclosed in Schecule 14

a

Vikash Agarwal
YI* - Finance

Surendra Lustia
Chief Executive Of(eer

Place : New Delbu
Dlate ; Juwawe 36, 2009

Place 1 New Delhi
Date : June 54, 2009

Kapil Bhalla
Company Secrekary

Place - Gurgaon
Ldata : June 30, 2009




e HFCL INFOTEL LIMITER

HECL INFOTEL LIMITED
STATEMENT PURSUANT YO PART - 1V OF SCHEDULE VI OF THE COMPANIES ALT, 1956
BALANCE SHETT ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

[

v

REGISTRATICON DETAILS
Repistrazion Nao.

State Code
Balance Shzetl

CAPITAL RATSED DURING THE YEAR (RUPEES)

Public Issue
Bonus Shares
Rights [ssue

Prvate lacement

26718
16

tavch 31, 2009

NIL
NI
MNIL
NIL

POSITION OF MOBILISATION AND DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS (RUPEES)

‘Total Liabilities
Taotal Aszats

SOURCE OF TUNDS
Shareholders” Funds
Reserves & Surplus

Serured Loans

Unsecoured Loans

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Met Fived Asscts

(Tacluding Intangible Asset)
Accumulated Tosses

Investments

Net Current Trabilitcs

PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY (RUFEES)

Turnover

Total Experulituse
Profit /(Loss) Before Tax
Progfit /(Loss; Adler Tax
Earnisty Par Share

Crwickend

CENERIC ¥ AMES OF THREE PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS /SERVICES OF THE COMPANY
Trem Code NofITC Code;
Product Bescriphon

7.053,5948,633
7,683,548,653

8,772,602,701

68,366,508
6,53660,009,737
1,386,437 337

B,9589,415,307
11,193,880.270
48,300

3,387 739,264

2,249.502,0306
£,391,628,577
(2,142,066,341}
(2,147,295,600;
(.69

il

MLA,

Unified Accoss Services

Place : Sew Dell
Blate : [une 30, 2008

For and an behaff of the Board of Direclors

Mahendra Nahata
Thrector

Surendra Lunia
Chinf Execuiive Officor

n. P Shukla
Directar

Vikash Agarwal

W' - Flaanes

Kapil Bhalia

Company Sacrotary
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HFCL INFOTEL LEMITED

Auditors’ Report

Fhe Board of Directors of HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED

1.

I~a

We have audited the altached consolidated Balance
Sheet of HECL INFOTEL LIMITED (“the Company”),
its subsidiary Infotel Tower Infrastruckure Privage
Limited and its associate The Investment Trust of
Irclia Limited (together referred as ‘the Croup’) as
described o schedule 22, Note 1{u}, as at
March 31, 2009, and also the cansolidated Prafit ang
Loss Accountand consolidated Cash Flow Staterment
for the year ended on lhat date annexed thereto.
These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Group’s management, Cur reaponsibility s to
express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We have conducted our audit in accordance with
the auditing standards generally accepted in India.
Those Standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obfain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material
rmisstaternent.  An audit includes exa mining, on a
test basis, avidence suppurting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
alse includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial stafement peesentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our

OpLnion.

We did nut audit Lhe financial statements of The
Investment Trost of [ndia Limited {'TELY {Associate
Company}, and Infotel Tower Infrastructure Private
Limited {"ITIPL") (Subsidiary Company). whose
financial statements reflect the total assels of Rs,
921,313,487 repraesents §.227%  of
consolidated assets) as at March 31, 2009 and the
loss far the year of Rs. 94,563,441 (which represenls

(wiich

4455 % of consolidated nel loss alter tax) for the
vear ended on that date as at March 31, 2009, Thews
Ithanctals slabements have been audited by another
auditor whose reports have been furnished to us

and our upinion insofar as it relates to the amount
included in respect of Ihe assodiate and subsidiary,
Is based salely on tie renort of other auditors.

Without qualifving nur upinion, we draw attention
to Wote el of Sehedule 22 to the Rnancial statements,
the Group has incurred a lnsses of Bs 1,857, 743,020
during the vear {accumulaled loss of Rs
11,194,623,538) resulting into erosian of its nat-
worlh, and has a net current liabiiity of
Rs 3.420,338,760 {alter censidering provision fnr
interest ameunting to RBs 7,025 844,205 being the
difierence in the amount paid in comparison o the
amount accrved on yield basis as per the CDR
scheme) as of March 31, 2009, The Group has
achieved profitability at the ‘Earnings before
interest and depreciation/amortisation’ level, and
is also able to generate cash from aperations dutring
previous financial year, Further the Comprany has
paid s 1,517,300,000 towards alternate technology,
which has been currently funded through an
sidvance. The ability of 1he Group to continue as a
going coneern (s significantly dependent on its
ability to successfully arrange the balance funding
in terms of the COR scheme and achieve financial
closure to fund its operating and capital funding
requircments and launch the alternate techrology
operations as well as increase subscriber growth.
The management is in the Process of arranging, funds
and it is confident ot generating cash Aows and to
Bund the operasing and capital requirements of the
Group in the event of any delay in the arrangement
of the balance funding, Accordingly, these
statements have been prepared on a going concern

hasis.
Abientian [y frdtod o

ai Mole 13B) of Scfisdute 23 af statements wlerein the
Canpuny s abbained adiance of Rs. 1,517.500,00t

from g o shareboldgy CoampunyPromoier tu fuid




HMECL INFOTEL LIMITLR

fhe enbry foe for waing alfernate techiology uttder
existing LInified Aeceas Servics Liconse (UASLI for
Punjab Service Aren during March 31, 208 and
Rs 117,000,000 far pperatians during the year, The
Larms ard condiHomy With respect 1o fenwre, lnlerest,
rights arad nbligntians eie.are yel to by finalised hence
we e unable 10 comment on e coreying vatue wnd
thereby its impact on be profit and loss for the yeer.
Our ausdit epurt an the financinf stalements for the
year waided March 31, 2008 was mraglifient, accordinghy;

b)Y Nete 3 (a}of Schedule 23 of the finunginl statements
whersin the Compoany hes given effect o
pestructuring of secured lutns pursiant fu the renised
restructuring package approved by Curporate Debt
Restricturing Celt ¢ COR’ Y pidhe their fatter no CIR
(ICP) No 138 1 2009-10 dated May 20, 2009°COR
fetter’s We e relivd upon the CDR Jetfer and the
confirmation fram the lenders is meaited.

G, We report that the conselidated [inancial statements
have been prepared by the Group in accordance with
the requirements of Accounting Standards (AS) 21,

S.R. BATLIBCT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accounkants

per Prashant 5inghal
Place ; Gurgaon Partner
Date : June 30, 2009 Membership No: 53253

Congolidated fnancinl atstements, Accouniing
Standarda (AS) 23, Accounding for Investments in
Associates in Consolidated Financial atatements, a3
notificd pursuant to the Companies {Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as Amended) and on the basis
of separate financlal statements af the T and [TIPL
included in the conslidated financial gtateineats.

Subjeck to matters atated in paragrapa 3 abotre,
consequential offect of wharsof i3 nat ascertainable, in
our opinion and to the bust of vur information and
according to the explanations given to us, the
consolidated financial stateiment give & true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles
penerally acceptod in Idia;

(a) in the case of the consolidated balance sheet, of
the state of affairs of the Group as af
March 31, 200%;

(b} in the case of the consolidated profit and loss
account, of the toss for the year ended on that
date; and

(¢} in the case of the ronsolidated cash flow
statement, of the cash Rows for the year ended
on that date.

ATUL KUJLSHRESTHA & CO.
Charlered Accountants

per Anil Kumar Aggarwal

Place : New Delhi Partner
Date : June 30, 2004 Membership MNo. 41720
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HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED

HECE INFOTEL LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2009

(Unless and otherwise stated, a¥ amauais are in ozpees)

PARTICULARS SCHEDMILE Az At As At
Na. March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
SOURCES QF FUNDS
Sharehalders’ Fund
Sharz Capital 1 2.80%7,171,520 2.905,171,520
Advance Against Share Appication Money 2 867,431,182 867,431,181
Reserves ang Surplus 3 68,566,508 173,004,664
6,3‘11[159,209 £,4945,607,165
Luan funds
Secured Loans 4 6,366,009 737 6,290,487 ,239
Unsecured Loans 3 L,388,457,317 Ld&4 2006 207
—lr Sl el it skl
7,954,467 074 7,774,694, 16
14,795 631,283 14,720,301,511
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fived Assets a

Cross Rlock

Less: accuwmulated BPepreciation

Net Block

Capital Work-In-Progress (Includes Capital Advances for

5,035,888,026
(4,839,362.053)

4,216,525,273
72,367,405

9,378,168.033
{4.395,416,202)

4,982,751,85
122,445,440

Rs 4,033,028) (Macch 31, 203 - [Ls 393,344)
4,282,002 478 3,305,197, 250
vl e g —_— :
Intangible Assets (Net) 7 2,731,903,111 2,846,792,281 i
Investmenis 8 - 702,214,500 :
Deferced Tax Assels 353,695 -
Current Assets, Loans and Advanres
Inventory q 25,629,455 20,667,816 i
Sundry Debtors 10 338,978,253 409,317,154
Cash and Bank Balances 11 118,229,086 113,730,513
Chther Currant Asseta 12 £3,359,373 3,884,159
Loans and Advances 13 E72,459 202 L 078,745
B72.635,527 MG, 878,351
Levs: Current Liabilities and Pruvizions 14 .
Current Liabilities 4,063,251,031 3,948,832,345
Provisions 28,741,050 23,171,649 iy
4,092,992 087 972,103,955 .2
e ——— ———— k)
Mel Current Liabilities 3,428,336,740 3,273,225, 644
-~ er=tedab, sal L LA N i
Profit and Loss Account 11,194,613,55% 9,341,313, 604
ol gt
14,795 635,283 14,720,301,511
Significant Accounting Policies iz ——m—a TS ———
Notes Lo Accounts 13

The Schedules referred to above and the Notes o Accounfs form an integral part of the Balance Shaot.

As per our report of even date.
For S.R. BATLIBOI & ABSOCIATES  For ATUL KULSHRESTHA & CO.

s b

For and on behalf of the Baard

Chartered Accountants
pet Prashant Singhal

Partaer

Membership Mo, 93253

Place - Gurgaon
Date : lune 30, 2009

TR TR B

Chartered Accountants
pet Anil Kumar Aggarwval

Parkngr

tlembership No: 91720

Place : New Delhi
Bate : Jupe 30, 2009

Mahendra Nahaia
Director

Surendra Lunia
Chiel Executive Officer

Tace : New Dol
Date  June 30, 2009

M. I Shukla
Director

Vikash Agarwal
VT' - Fitunce

Kzpil Bhalla
Company Secretary
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HFECL ENFOTEL LIMITED

CONSOLIDATEDR PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

{(Unless and stherwise stated, atl amounts are in rupees)

PARTICULARS SCHEDILE As At As At
Mo, March 31, 2009 Maech 31, 2008
Income
Service Revenur 15 2,235,707 374 2. 464,813,706
Other Income - 13,854,662 11,082,794
2,219 562,036 2,475 8%6,500
Expenditure —_————— —_—
Mekwork Operation Expenditura 17 1,133,672,179 1,150,464, 770
Perzonnct Bxpendifure 13 481,779,020 493,178,204
Sales and Marketing Expenditure 19 154,996,762 195,127 940
Administrative and Other Expenditare 20 280,076,164 431,122,380

Operating Profit for the Yeac betare Finance Charges, Depreciation,
Amottization and Loss / (Gain) on Sold / Discarded Fived Assels
Chnunution in vibie of Investments 23, Note § (2}

{Gain) on sale of Fixed Assets
Losa on Eliscarded Flxed Acsets
Finance Charges

Forcign exchange Lass £ (Gain}
Dreprociation

Agpprkisation

23, Note 7 1)
21

4
7

Loss / (Profit) for the ¥ear befare Prior Year Expendilure and Tax

Priar Period Expenditure (Nehy
Lass / {Profit) for the Year before Tax
Provisian for Taxation

23, Note 20

Deferced Tax Liability ¢ {Assets)

Fringe Benefit Tax

Loss 7 (Profit} for the Year before Irofit on Disposal of Invesbment
Share of Loss / (Profit) uf Assaciate’s Company 23, Note 3al
Less Profit on Disposal of Invesiment in Subsidiary
Company (TBSL Cable Networks Limited}

Loss £ 4Frofit) for the year

Lass { (Frofit), brought forward from previous year

Less Transfer from General Resorve

Loss carried to Hte Balance Sheet
Lass / {F'rofit} per share

23, ot 14

fequily shares, par valuc of R 17 sach)

Baslc (in ®s)
Dhlueked (in Bs)

Weighted average number of shares used in computing earnings per share

2,039,524,131

180,037,905
649,670,900
(337,234,841)
155,296,539
678,254,812
106,760,734
R41,657.026
150,049,533
2,104,486,798
13,430,688
2,117,937,486
(353.696)
5,243,511
2,122,827,30

(163,081,281
1,957,743,020
9,341,318,694
104,238,156

11,154,623,558

ES s — e

.04
1.04

_— . ———

2,259,893,306

186,003,154

24,946,549
535,121,733
(50,630,383)
B91,326,617

1,482,894,729

18.692.877

1,501,587, 606

7.141.333
1,508,728 989

1,508,728,959
7,832,589.705

4,341,318,694
L e

Basic 525,517,152 315,517,132
Diluted 523,517,152 523,317,152
Significant Accounting Policies z2 TS ————
Notes to Accounts 23
The Schedules referrad in above and the Notes (o Accounts form an integral part of the Paofit & loss Account.
As per our report of even date.
For 5.R BATLLECH & ASSDCIANES  Tor ATUL KULSERESTHA & T, For and on behall of the Roard
Chartered Accountants Chartered Arcountants
per 'rashani Singhal per Anil Kumar Aggarwal Mahkendra Mahala n. F. Shukla
l'artner Partner Director Director

Membership No. $5183

Place : Gurgaon
Date : June 38, 20069

dembership Now 91724

Place :+ Mew Delhd
Date @ june 30, HU$

Sucendra Lunia

Chief Evecutive Officer

Plase : WNew Delhi

Dete : Junc 30, X009

vikash Agarwal

VP - Finance

Kapil Bhalla
Company Secreary
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HFCL INEDTLEL LIMIEETY

HFCL INFOTEL LIMITET}
SCHEDULES ANMEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS As At As At

March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008

Schedule i: Share Capital [See Schedule 23, Note 3]

Authorised:

1,300,000,000 (March 31, 2008 - L300,0H060,00H03 equily shares of 13, 000,000,008 13,000,000,000
s 10 each (March 31, 2008 - Ks 1) each)

20,000,000 {March 31, 2008 - 20,000.000) 2 per cent preference 2,008,000,000 2 800.0080,000

shares of Rs 100 each {March 31, 2008 - Rs 100 cach}

15,000,000,000 15,010,000,D00

Issued, Subscribed and Faid up

525,317,152 (March 31, 200 - 523,317,132 equity shares of 3,230,171, 5,253,171.520
Es 10 each (March 31, 2008 - K= 1€ each) fully paid.
4,500,000 (March 31, 2008 - 6,500,000) fuliy paid 2 percent 650,000,000 630,000,000

cumulfative redeemable preference shares ('URI'S") of Rs 100 each

5,805,171,520 5,905,171,520

{a) Of the above

(i) 490,730 {March 31, 2008 - 460,750) equity shares of Ks 10 cach, were allotied as fully paid bonus shares in the
earlier years by way of capitailsation of reserves.

(i} 325,705,000 (March 31, 2005 - 325,705,000} equity shares are held by Himacha! Futuristic Communiratiors
Limited {Holding Cempany}.

{iity  B3,070,085 equity stares of Rs 10 each were allotted vo Ociober 16, 2004, pursuant te the Corporate Debt
Restruchiring {{CDR) Schermne. [See Schedule 22, Noke 1 (¢} Out of these, 63,373,110 equity shazes of Bs 10 each
were ssued by the Company fo Industrial Development Bank of Tndia (TR, at par and the balance of
12171778 and 7,525,200 equity shares of Rs 10 each to Oviental Barnk of Commeree (OB and NG Vvsya Bank
Limited ["TNG), respectively, af 3 premivm of Be 0.30 per eguity share as per provisions ol applicable faw.

As more fully disovssed in Schedule 22, Note 1(R), the Company in accordance with the scherne of amalgamation
approved by the High Cowrt of B Stae of Puniab 200 Harvana and the State of Tamil Nadu on March &, 2003 and
Mlarch 20, 2003, respeciively under section 391 and 394 of the Companies Act, 1956, the erstwhile HECL infotal
Limited (name eavlier allodled to the transferor company), amaigamated with HFCL Intotel Limited ("HIL" or ‘Lhe
Company’), (formerly The Investment Trust of India Linited), Subsequent to the approved amalgamation:

(i) 432,000,250 aquity sharzs of Kz 10 each were allotied to the shareholders of ershwhile HEPCL Infotel Limited on
June 17,2003,

(i) 1,730,814 cquity shares of Bs 1 cach were allotied va Oetober 13, 2003, ont conversion of the warrants issued fo
the shareholders of The nvestment Trust of India Limited prior to june 11, 3003

{c; 6,500,000 {(darch 31, 2008 - 6,300,000) 7.3 per cent CRI'S were allotted to Himachal Fuhuristic Communications
Limited (HFCL" {Holding Company} un October 16, 2004, pursuant to the CDR Scheme |See Schedule 22, Note
1{cH, the specified part of the amount due to HFCL by the Company was converted inte 7.5 per cent CRPS
redeemable after the repayment of Rupee Term Loan (L. July 1, 2013}, Prior approval of tiw lenders s
required to declare dividerd on 7.5 per cent CRPS and all the voting rights attached to the CRPS o be assigne:d

in favour of the term leaders. On June 24, 2005 as per revised COW Scheme, the dividend percentage is reduced

to 2 per cent frim 7.3 per cent with effect from date of issuance of CPRS, Due ta accumulated lnsses provision

for dividend is not required.

Schaedule 2: Advance Against Share Application Money {See Schedula 23, Note 4]

Advance Apainst Equity Share Apnlication Money 867,451,181 867,431,181

567,431,131 567,431,182
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HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED
SCHEDWLES ANNEXTD 1O AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS As Al AsAd
Mareh 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
Schedule 3: Reserves and Surplus
Capilal Neserve 34032776 34,082,776
Srecudities Premium [See Note (a), (b & (¢} below]
Balance, beginning of the vear 22,633,732 9,523,145
Adjusted during the vear - 13,118,387
Lese: Utitized during the year - -
22,633,752 22,633,732
Statutory Reserve [See Note () below| 11,300,008 14,500,000
Genarat Reserve [See Mote (&) bolow) 104,438,155 104,438,156
Less: Transferred ta Profit & Loss Account (TE,438,156) -
68,546,303 173,004,604
P ] P e

There are no share aliotments during the Year. Securities premiem includes an amount of Rs 9,843,459 received on allotment
of 14,695,978 equity shaves of Rs 10 eack on October 16, 2004 at a preminm of Ra 0,50 per equily shace [See Schedule 1, Note
{al [iii}]

Durityg the year 2008, in accordance with lhe CDR Scheme {See Schedufe 22, Note (o)L, the Company had provided for the
premium on Zero per cenl Optlonally Fully Convertible Debenrures {OFUDs) and has utilised the securitics premium Lo that
exteat.

Craving the year 200G7-08, the Conypany based on the fenders confirmation has written back the securities premium of Rs
13,110,387 .

s more (ully discussed in Schedule 22, Note 1(2), the Cotnpany (erstiviile The Investment Frust of India [ imited) was a Non-
#an«ing Firancial Corporation {("™NBFC') under the Certificate of Registration ('CoRY No 07.00222 dated April 18, 1998,
Further, as more fully discussed in Sehedule 23, Mote 18, ihe Company has surrendered its Coll with the Reserve Bank of India
(RBVL As acondifion for lhe cancellation of the CoR, the REI hay advised {he Company to follow certain shrictuces till the
balance i the escrnw account is settled.

(e) Ceneral Reserve rapresents the amount catried forward in aucordance with the Sheme of Apalgamation as more [ully discussed

i Schadule 22, MNode Lia) This reserve has been transferred bo Profit & Doss Account during the Year

Schedule 4: Secuved Loans [See Schedule 23, Note 5]
Tarm Eoans

From Financial Inskitution

Feam Banks
% Interest Funded Term Loan

From Financial Fnstitotion

From Banks

interest accrued & Jue on teem loans

Yehicle loang

Bank overdrafl!

Amounis repayable within a vear
- Yohicte Loan
- Financial Insdhutions
- Banks

Schecule 3 Unsecured Loans [See Schedule 23, Nate 6]
Zero per cent Nen Convertible Debentures (' NCDs (arstwhile OFCDs) (ollers)

{nterast accrued and due on ollwer Vender Binance Facilities

Buyers Credil Facility (Toan from foreign bank)

Buyers Credil Facility (Toen from Infotel Business Solutions Litnited )
Repayahle on demand

Short term loan [rom Infotel igicom (P} Limited Repayable on demand

Arioumns repavable within a year - Buyer Credir Facility
{Loan irom forelen bank)

746,250,000
5,273,500,0{0

326,545,373
46,251,704

6,673,308
166,489,357
4,556,009,737

6,415,539
15,000,005
1006, 0013, 100

166,776,140
EEEETr———

311,440,519
410,740,532

490,494 BiG
1,388,457,337
Bt s
207,m27,012

750,000,800
3,300,.000,000

£1,387.079
11,310,067
167,790,093

5,200,487,23%
e = ]
6,344,285
13,750,000
97,164,667

164,776,100
ET—————p——

3,857,742
4013,252,347
410,740,532

449,499 886
1484,206,507
161,550,219

ESeS i e |
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HEFCL INFOTEEL LIMITED
HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED
SCHEDULES ANNEXED TC AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS . Ag At As Al
Wiarch 31, 2002 March 31, 2008

Schedule 8: 1Investmenis (Mon Trade - Long term) [See Schedule 23, Note 4]

Subsidiary Company of CB5L Cable Networks Limited {"{CBSL"}

CR51L Cily Metwork lndia () Lid (254,800 shares & Ra. 10 cacl) - 2,548 000
Nt [March 31, 2008- 6,996,709] Optienally Fully Converlible
Debenlures (OFCLES'Y of s 100 each fully paid in

The [nvestmeot Trust of Frodia Limited (TTE} - 699,670,800
- 702,218,500
e ———— =3 e y—
Nota:

{a) the Company had incorporated a whoily owned subsidiary named CBSL Cabie Networks Limited (erstwhile
Connect Broadband Services Limited ) {{CBSL") o carry on the business of distribution of Cable Television Nebwork
and all other connected services . The Company held 2,050,060 shares of Rs 10 each at par in CBSL.

During the year ended March 31, 2008 the Company had entericd infoe a share parchase agreoment with Digicable
Metworks (India) Private Ltd "DNPL on Mardh: 26, 20308 for saie of shares of CBSL. The transter of shares has been
completed on Aprit 16, 2G08. During the year %,052000 shares of Rs 16 each at par have been sold by the Company.

(&) The Company acquired the entire shareholding in The Tovestment Trosi of India Lid {7117 {ersfovide Rajam Finance
and nvestments Companty Incdia Limited, an unlisted regisierad NBEC) from the erstwhile promoters [See Schedule
22, Nute l{a)l Consequently [TT became & wholly owped subsidiazy of the Company with effect from Aogust 19,
2002, Subsequent to Septernber 33, 2003, with infusion of [resh equily, 171 became an associate company.

{3 The Company has acquired DFCDs In 11T in the year 2082-03, Terms and conditions associated with debentures are:

(it The OFCTs of Rs 100 cach are convertible into 10 equity shares {with pari passu right with the existing equity
shares in terms of the present Asticles of Association of the Compary) of Rs 10 vach after three vears at the
option of the helder. The Company has not exercised this option as on March 31, 2009,

{iiy The OFCDs are redeemable after 10 years at a pretmium of Ry 60 per QFCLE

(iif) The issuing company shall have an option to redeein the OFCDs anytime after a period of one year at

aproporfionate premium as mentioned in conditden {if) above.

fivy During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company has wridlen off Rs 099,670,900 in OFCD's in 1Tl as ITi has
negative networth and the Company believes that [T3 would not be able bo arrange funds as per their business
plans and the recovery of thwir invesknents.

id) During the vear ended March 31, 2009, the Company has incorporaked oneg wholly owned Subsidiary Cormapany,
Inlotel Tower Infrasiructure Privaie Limited with an Invesimoent of Bs 99,800 [See Schedule 23, Note 8 ()]

Schedule 9: Inventory [See Scheduie 23, Note 10]

Ieventory held for nstallation and maintenance of network 20,629,456 20,667,516
29,629,456 20,667,316
- . ___] Po———— e,
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HFCL INVOTEL LIMITED

HFCE INFOTEL LIMITED
SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS As AL As Af
March 31, 20069 March 31, 2008

Schedule 19: Sundry Debtors

Debis euntstanding for o period exceeding six wonths:

Secured and Considered Good 7.578,854 3ATL376
Unsecured and Considered Good - -
Unsecured and Considered Doubtful 115,208,921 116,017,176
Debts outstanding- Others
Secured and Considered Good 9,266,210 28,692,514
Unsecured and Considersd Good 320733064 375,714,239
Lnsecured and Considered Doubtfud 13,680,977 22 275,934
467 868,157 547,814,244
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts 128,869,509 138,297,110
338,978,255 409,517,134
————— ey e
Nates:

a)  Debtors are secured tu the extent of deposit received from the subscribers.

by Includes Rs 91,979,858 (Mareh 31, 2008 - Rs 111,541,965} of unbilled revenues, the invoices far which hiave been raised
subsequent to March 31, 2009 [See Schedule 22, Note 2.11]

Deblors includes amount due from HFCL Satellite Communication Limited.as per Sec. 370 {18) of the Companies
Aci, 1958, the Company under the same management, amounting to Rs 10,123,047 (March 31, 2008 -
Rs 7 438,391, Maximum amount oatstanding during the year Hs 13,123,047 (March 3T, 2008 - s 9,330,004).

3
ire

Schedule 11: Cash and Bank Batances

Cash in Hand 2,428,254 1,444,917

Chequ{.‘s in Hanl 7064 040 9,750,726

Balances with Scheduled Banks

In Current Jccount 403,744,032 27167008

In Fixed eposit {Receipts pledged with Banks as margin maney for

grtaranters and LCs issued Rs 61,347,034, (March 31, 2008 - Rs. 73,390,534)] 3,428 934 73,524,494,

In Escrow Account [See note below] 1,663,818 i,843.370
118,22%,086 $13,730,515

Miskes:

Lne balance with scheduled banks in Escrow account is kowards public deposits payable by the Company [See Schedule
23, Note 18]

Schadule 12: her Current Assets

Interest Acorved on Fixed Deposits 13,359,325 8,884,139
13,359,325 8,834,139



HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED

HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED

SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS As Al As At
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2028
Schedule 13: Loans and Advances
(Unsecured , considered good except ntherwise stated)
Advances Recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
Considered Good 36,057,723 84,360,349
Considersd Toubtful [See Schedule 23, Note 1{h)] 789,668 134,854,508
Dae from The Investment Trust of dia Timited - Associate 1,149,949 1,149,592
(Maximum outstanding balance during the year Rs 1,149,999,
wiarch 31, 2008 - Rs 1,149,599)
Dhue from HTL Limited - Company under the same managsment - 119,784
(Maximum outstanding balance during the year Rs 119,784,
March 31, 2008 - Bs 119,784)
Security Deposits
Considered Good 26,030,348 22 511,027
Considered Dowbtful 1,211,265 1,211,265
Tax deducted at spurce recovesable 11,549,236 5015516
Balance with Customs, Excise and Service Tax 77271807 30,921,772
174,460,135 280,149,920
Less: Provision for Doubhtfuf Advances Q000,933 136,001,173
172,459,202 144,078,747
dotes:
Advance reeoverable includes dues from Chief Execulive Officer as under
Interest free Housing Loan (Maximum amount outstanding during
the vear Bs 350,000, March 31, 2008 - Rs SU0,000H 200,800 334,000
Other Advances (Maximum amount outstanding during the year
P 493,134, March 31, 2008 - Rs 862,933) - 33,158
et g
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HECL INFOTEL LIMITED

SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HFCL [NEOTEL TIMITED

PARTICULARS As At As Al
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
Schedule 14: Current Liabilities and Provisions
Current Liabilities
Sundry Creditors*
Capital {Goods B2,269,032 9,408,070
Expenses 232,376,558 413,086,759
Intercormection Usage Charges ['TUC") payable to other operators 137,717,010 87,030,269
Expenses Payable 137,573,056 197,092,213
Book Overdraft 5,945,834 8.515,114
Advance Against Booking 63,0133 325,325
Advance From Customers and Unaccrued income®® 591,480,600 329,285,130
Advance agains! investment in C8S1. Cable Networks Limited - 79,900,000
Advanee for GSM Licenee Entry Fee [See Scheduie 23, Note 13 (b)) EH2E,200,000 1,517, 300,800
Security Deposits
From Subscribers 69,831,038 99 143,721

From Crhers

[nvestor BEducation and Protechion Fung*
Unclaimer] Dividends
Linctaimed Deposits From Public
Interest accrued and due en Public Deposits
Minc:ity Interest

Qther Liakilities

Provision for interesp*es

7,176,235

Hi s
145,963
46,114

120,243,680

1,025,090, 876
4,063,251, 031
e

3642, 785

320,779
0,963
01,611

00
73,102,647
Q97,794 124

* Includes Rs 704,715 (March 31, 2008 Rs Nil) amount payable to Micro, small and medium Enterprises. [Sen Schadule

23, Note 13 {a)]

** Includes Rs 337 467,701 (March 31, 2008 3= 277.733,003) pertaining o infrastriciuse

recognized on a straight line basis upon the terms of agreament which ran

1o be transferred to Ihwestor Education and Protection Fund (@& and when due}

ecoine in advance which is
225 from vear 2005 to 2023,

= Includes interest acored on secured foan as difference between tho nterest paict and incerest accrued on vield basis
amounting {o B3 1,025,%46,205 (March: 31, 2009 - By 962,496,986 ta be adjusted pver 2 oeriod from year 2005 to 2013

as per the TR Scheme, interest acerued but not due on secure

Rs 31,724,541} and intergst accrued bui not due on unsecured loan ameunting o Rs 3

d lean ameunting Lo Rs Nil (March 31 2008 -
223,621 (Mareh 31, 2008 -

Ks 3,372.601)

Provisions {See Schedule 23, Note 21]

Wealth Tax 24,5397 31,125

Leave Bncashment / Availment 15,8:L2.850 12,750,044

Gratuity 12,773,403 10,489,552

26,741,056 23,271,649

4,007,992, 87 3,972,103,995

ates: — I

(a) bBook overdraft has heen seilied subsequent to the Year end.

(b} Sundry ereditors include cheques outstandiog beyond six menths of Re 323,618 (varch 11, 2008 -
repayment of public deposits under the NBFC CoR [See Schedule 23, Note 1d]

@

523,618) towards
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HPECL INFOTEL LIMITED

SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS

For the year ended

For the year endad

_ March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
Schedule 15 Service Hevanue
Havenue
Fresm Unified Acces Setvicss 1,507,943,284 1,783,281,134
Fraim likerconneetion Usage Charge 138,952, 246 140,444,750
Froem Infzasteucturs: Serviced 31,608,529 51,281,793
Froot {nbernut Services 539,180,868 468,137,537
Revenue froimn Cable Television Operationd i - 21,688,491
2,238,707,374 2,484, 813,700
Sehedide 16 Other Tncome
Interest Incotme (Tax deductions at source Re NI, March 31, 2008 Rs Nil) 6,032,398 5,840,303
Baaes Prowiaion written back 3,937,742
Milsrzlizneouy Tneome 3 add 523 6,042,289
13,884 662 11.082,794
Schedule 17: Network Operation Expenditure
Intereoninect Lisage Charges 464,938,183 504,688,724
(Other Yalue Added Service chazyes #9042, 450 673,793
Port Charges 30,711,984 24,818,530
Tusting and Techrical Survey Experties 1,610,000 2,223,080
Licence Fees on Reverue Sharce Bagis 10d 0164, 7d4 113,368,134
Royalty and livence fees to Wireless Planning Commission 13,733,539 10,038,020
Stores and Sparcs Consuimed 43,442,476 29,734,153
Rent Node site 35,190,144 39 877,340
irfragtructire Sharing Rent - 143,008,106 88 437 483
Electricity and Water 78,175,180 3n,404,273
Security Charges 34,733 1.504,603
Repair & Maintenanee - Mutwork 89,304,841 §2.713,132
Bandwidth Charges 119,939 539 144,374,944
Subscription and Cartiage opercating cost _ - 11,397,369
1E1335672,1?9 1,15!3{_4&4;?70
Schedule 18: Personnel Expenditure
Salariey, Wages and Honus [See Schedule 23, Mote 21} 442,829,126 448,376,328
Fraployer's Contribution ko Provident 2ud Other Pundy 23,651,328 21,974,367
[See Schedule 23, Mote 21
Staff Welfare Bxpenses 10,781,173 12,134,433
Rucruitment & Traininy Expecses 4,517,393 10,689,058
481,779,020 493 178,206
Schedule 19: Sales and Marketing Expendituve
Sales and Business Froriotion 2,447,663 3,509,200
Advertisemient Expenses 35,623,403 77,956,006
Custatniers Acquisition Costs 116,925,630 103,662,134
154,945,762 195,127,240

e



HEFCL INFOTEIL LIMITED

SCHELULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HWFCL INFOTEL LIMITER s

PARTICULARS Yor tie yaar ended For the year ended
March 31, 2009 tarvch 3, 2008
Schedule 20: Adminlatrative and Other Expenditure
Lagat and Professional Expenses 33,467,729 41,804,371
Travelllng and Convevanee 63,249,724 69,163,457
Conunurdeation Expensey A6u9 257 4,603,304
Rent 25,958,195 28,900,894
Security Charges 4,500,871 3,648,863
Repaies and Maintenance - Building 29,454 A30 004
Kepalrs and Maintopance » Others 13,5499 931 14,041,582
Blectrleity and Water 15.492,502 17,142,314
Insuranes: 0,456,947 7,361,552
Rakes angd Taxes 29,1609 013,429
Ereight & Cartage 3.496,174 5,667,831
Drinking and Stationaey 3,980,294 7,001,207
Billing and Callection Expanses 67975731 &, 495 295
Software Expensed - 3700
Diracturs’ Feey 284440 233,440
Provision for Doubtful Advances 134,070,240 4 s
Eatayr Ubidlsed to Doubeiul Advancos Weltten off (68,370,240 (6:3,200,000% .
Bad Debity Written off T 63,826,550 133,763,401
Frovision for Doubtful Debis 32,007,691
Less: Utilised to Bad Debts Written off (20,704,451} 11,297, 744) 12,793 5344
Wealth Tax e 24.397 31,123
Miscellanesus Expenses 5,516,203 6,678,310
239,078,109 451,122,39¢
Schedule 21: Finance Charges
Intterest on Term Loangt 383,433,674 598,344,125
Interest to (hhers 80,280,594 41,414,087
Bank Guarantee Carmmission B733,814 9,280,093
Trugtees Fag 927 1a] 1,000, 00
ke Hlitance Charges 4,805 F52 4 863,442
] &73:294,312 655:121,753

* Incluces intarest accrued on seeured toan as difference be

amaunting to Rs 63,349,218 (March 31, 208 - Ry 200,196,936} as per CDR Scheme.

tween the interest paid and intecest accrued on yield basiy
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CONSOLIDATED HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONSOLINDATED BALANCE SHEET AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AS
AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

[all arounts in Indian Rupees, except shove duty incliuding shove price, unless otherwise stalad]

SCHEDILE 22: RACKGROUND AND SIGINIFICANT
ACCOUNTING FOLICIES

1.
(at

Backpround
Nature of business and ownership

HFCL Infotei Limited ('the Company’ or ‘HIL',
Unified Access Services Licensee fur Punjab Cirele
{including Clandigarh and Panchkula), is providing
a fuil gamut of remecommunication services, which
includes voice telephony, both wireline and fixed
wirgless, CDVIA based maebile, internst services,
broadhand datz sarvices and a wide range of value
added service vic, cenirex, lessed Hnes, VENS, voice
mail, video conferancing erte. The services were
commersially launched in October 2000 and as on
March 31, 2009, the Company has an active
subacriber base of over 530,502

The Company is a subsidiary company of Hirmachal
Futuristic Communications Limited {the Helding
Company’ or ‘HFCLYS. The Company was

incorporated on August 2, 1946 with the name of -

The Investment Trust of India Limited §ITT) which
was subsequently changed to HFCL Infotet Limited
ors May 12, 2003, This was done pursuant to a
Scheme of analgamation (the Scheme), approvad
by the Hon' able High Court of the State of Punjab
and Marvana and the State of Tamil Nadu on
March 4, 2003 and March 20, 2003, respectively,
whoerehy the ersiwhite HECL Infotel Limited {name
eactier allotted to the transferor Comgpany)
("weatrwbile HFUL infolel”) was merged with the
Compeny with zffect from Septemcber 1, 2002, As
per e Scheme envisaged, the Company’s then
existing business uf hire purchase, leasing and
securities frading was transferred by way ol slump
sales to its whiolly owned subsidiary, Rajem Finance
& {nvesimenis Company (India} Limited {Rajam
Finanwe’} with effect from September 1, 2002,
Rajam Finance was repamed a3 The Investmont
Trustof India Limited with affect from June 17, 2003
and it ceased to be the subsidiary of the Company
with offect from September 30, 2003, due o
allotment of fresh eqaeity By Rajam Finance to other
VeSS,

The Company, during the year cnded March 3L,
2004, surrendered ks license granled by Reserve
Bank of India {"HEU} o carry out NEPFL business.
KB confirmed the cancellation of the NHFL licerise
a3 per their letter dated May 24, 2004,

On July 2, 2004, the Company ircorporated a
subsidiary company in the name of {lonnecl

(b}

EBroadband Services Limited, which has been
changed to CBSL Cable Nerworks Limited {"CBSL
or “Subsidiary’l with effect from February 5, 2008,
The main abject of the Company is to carry o the
business as secvice provider and operator for
distribution af cable television petwotk. During
the previous year, the Company launched the
integrated sorvice to provide for voice, video and
data services through cable television network,
CB5L being the video service provider through
cable television nebworle CBSL has launched the
video services in October 2005,

On Mareh 28, 2008, the Company has entered inko
an agveement with CBSL and has sold its enbre
share holding in the Cowmpany to Digicable
MNetworks ([ndia) Ltd for a consideration of Ra.
0,300,080, The actual sale was executed on April
16, 2.

On August 15, 2008, the Company has incorporaled
one wholly owned Subsidiary Company [nfotel
Tower [nfrastructire private limited (TTIPL') with
an [nvestment of Ry 93,800, The principal business
of the company is building, establishing, setting-
up, accruing, developing, advising on, managing,
oroviding, operating and/or maintaining,
facilitating conduct of, fully or pactially
infrasiructure facilities and services thereof For all
xinds of value added services including Broadband
Towers for telecom operations/services, payment
gateway services and infernational gateway
services.

HIL, together with its subsidiaries CRSL, [TIPL andd
assnciate company ITL 45 hereinafter collectively
referved to as ‘the Group'.

Licensoe Fees

1he Company obtained licence for Basic Telepheny
Service for the Punjab circle (inctuding Chandigarh
and Panchkula) by way of amalgamation of the
srstivhile HFCL Infotel wilh the Company. Crstwhile
HECL Infatel had obtained this licence under fixed
licenss fee regime under National Telecom Pelicy
{NTP} 1994, valid for a period of 20 vears from the
effective date, and subsequently mdgrated from the
fixed license fee regime (o revenuc sharing regime
upon implementation of NTF 1999, Further fo the
Tzlecom Regulatory Aathority of Tndia’s {"URAIL}
recommendations of October 27, 2003 and the
Uepartment of Telecommunications {"DaT’)
guidelines on Unified Access (Basic & Cellular)
Services Liconce (" UASL”) dated November 11, 2003,

O 1 Sy
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the Company migraled its licence to the TASL
regime with effect {rom November 14, 2003, A fresh
License Agreemnent was signed on May 31, 2004,
Pursuant to this migration, the Company became
additionally entitled Lo provide full mebility
services. HPCL Infotel atso entered info a Licence
Agreement daled June 28, 2000, and amendments
thereto, with DoT to establish maintain and operate
internet service in Punjab circle (including
Chandigarh and Panchikuia).

Fixed license fees of Rs [,775,852,32% paid under
the old license fee regime from inception till
July 31, 1993, were considerad as the License Fntry
Fees of the Punjab circle {including Chandigarh and
Panchkula) as part of the migration package to
NTE 1999,

With effect from August 1, 1995, the Company is
required to pay revemue share license fees as a
fraction of Adjsled Gross Revenne (*AGR, which
is defined as total income imcluding service
revenues, finance income and non-operating
income, redueed by interconnection costs, service
tax and/or sales tax, if applicable. The revenue
share fraction was set at 10 per cent of AGR with
effect from August 1, 1999 and was reduced to 8 per
cent of AGR with effect from April 1, 2004, In
addition, spectrum charges calculated at 2 per cent
of the AGR eamed through the wireless technolozy
is payable under the iicense agreement. Income
from internet services is excluded from the service
revenue for the purpuose of the calcubation of AGE.

During the year ended March 31, 2008, the Company
has deposited the entry fee of Bs 1,517,300,000 with
The Department of Telecommunication {DOTY) for
the use of GSM Technology in addition to CTMA
technology being used under the existing Unified
Access Services Licence {UASL') for the Punjab
Service Arca. The LIASI. has since been amended o
incorporzte the license for use of GSM lechnology
on [anuary 15, 2008 vide DOT's letter number
FN0L1G-157 2004/ BS I/ TINUL Y Punjab /17 dated

lanuary 15, 2008. DOT had provided the allocation

uf radio spectrum on Lrial basis for a period of three
maonths till Decomber 9, 2008 vide their letter
number L144347 /20,/2006-NTG (Pt} dated September
2, 2008, The Company has applied for extension of
thet same with DOT, weply to which is still awaitecl.

Froject Finarcing

The Company’s project was initially appraised by
Industrial Development Bank of India {'IDBT’)
during the year ended March 3%, 2000 for an
eslimated  peak  fund
s 11.300000,000. The appraised means of finance
for the project was 10 be funded by way of equity
capital of Rs5,240,000,000 and debt of
[fs G,560,000,000.

requirement  of

@

Pursuant to the migration lo UUASL regime, the
consortium of lenders, led by [DBE, through the
Corporate Debt Restrueturing {'CDHE) mechanism
approved an vverall restructuring of the Habilities
of the Company and thereby revised the peak
funding requircments from Rz 11,800,000,000 to
Rs 13,430,000,000 up to March 21, 2006, with peak
funding gap of Rs 1,650,000,000.

Further, the CDR Empowered Group has approved
the proposal of the Company for expansion of
services, change in the scope of the project, cost of
project and means of finance and restrucharing of
debt as per the letter dated June 24, 2005, As per the
said propasal, the peak funding vequirement has
Loen Turther revised to Ry 15,470,000,000 2nd the
principal repayment of axisting term lpan was
rescheduled and the same will be repaid between
May I 2008 and Apeil 1, 2016, Moreover, the rale
of interest on existing term [oan, secured QFCDs
and warking capital shall be 9.3 per cent per annum
manifly compounding, The secured OFCD were
to be converted into equily shares at par subject to
applicable provisions of SEB guidelines and other
relevant Acts during financial vear ended March
31, 2C06.

Further, the project rost is to be funded by way of
Bquity share capital of Rs §,020,000,000, preferenice
share canital of Rg 650,000,000, term loan of Bs
7,000,000.00C, Buyer's credit  facility of
Rs 1,430,000,000 and Unsecured OFCD of Rs
173 000,000

During the year, the Company has incurred losses
of [s 1.937,743,020 resulting into accumulated loss
of Rs 11,194,623,558 as at March 31, 2009 which bas
complotely eroded ifs net worth and has a net
TLITenE Ldb:l:h of Rs 3,420.336.760 ncluding capital
liability of s $2,259.032 and soebzaeribaor and
distributor securily depasits of Rs 37,007,273 (after
considering peovision for interest amounting to
Rs 1,023,846,205 teing the difference in the ameoun:
pald in comparison (o the ameunt acerued on vield
basis as per the COR Scheme) As at Maech 31, 2009,
the Company has artanged Ks 14,333,607,927 and
i i advanced stagr of discussions for the
areangement of Xs 1,116,392,073 by way of term
leans / buyer credit Tacility and expects bo achicve
the complete [inancial closure in the immediale
futurs. The abilily of the Company to continue as a
geing concern is substantially dependent on its
ability o successfully arrange the remaining
tunding and achisve financial closure o fund its
operating and capital funding requirements and Lo
substantially increase its subseriber base. The
management s confident of generating cash tows
o fund the operating and capilal requirerments of
ihe Company in the eveni of any delay in the
arrangement of the balarce funding. Accordingly,

HFCL INFOTEL LIMTTED —
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2.3

these statements have heen prepared on going
coneern bagis.

Summary of slgnificant accounting policise
Hasis of preparatlon of Flnancial Statemaents

The fAnancial statements have boen prepured to
gomply to afl material respocts with the notiffed
aceounting standard by Companies (Accounting
Standarcts) Rules, 2006 ('aa mnended”), and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
The preparation of flnaneial smtements in
conformily with the Generally Accented
Accounting Principals, The flrancial statements
have buen prepaved under the historical cost
convention on an accrual basis of accounting, The
accaunting policies have been consistently applied
by the Company and are consistent with those used
in the previous year. The significant accounting
policies are as follows:

Priaciples of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements of the
Group nave been prepared based on a line-by-line
comsolidabion of the halance shest, statement of
profit and loss and cash fows of HIL, CBSL and
ITTPL as at March 31, 2005, As explainad in Note
1{a), the Grouy wansrerred it business of hire
purchase, ieasing and securities trading to its
wholly vwned supsidiary, IT1, which became an
agsociate company with effect from September 3,
2063, and the respits of its operations since that
dabe have been accouniad under the equity method,
a5 an associate company.  All makerial inter-
company transactions and balances between the
entities included in the conselidated financial
statements have been eliminated.

Minority interest repoesents that part of the net
asseis of a subsidiary allribulabia o interests,
which are not owned divecthy or indirectly through
subsidiary, by HEE

The significant aconanling, solicies adopted by the
Croup in respact of the consolidated finaneial
slatements are demiled as follows:

fixoed Assets

Fixed asseis are stacil ab cost (net of cenvat credit if
availed) less impairment loss, i any, and
accumulated  depreciation. The Company
capitalises direct costz including taxes (excluding
cenvas), duty. Freight and incidental expenses
cirectly attributable ko the acquisition and
installation of fixed assets, Capital work-in-
progeess s stated at cost

Telephone instruments tying with deactivated

customers for more than 20 davs
deseonmection arce writtenn off.

sines

4

{ii)

{iii}

Inventoty

Inventory s valued at cost or net realisable value
which ever is low. Coal for the purchase ts workad
out or FIFO basis,

Drepreciation

Deprociation is provided prosrata o e period of
wse fexcept for Telephone Instruments which are
depreciated from the beginning of the manth,
following the month of purchase), on the stralght
line method based on the astimated useful life of
the assets, as follows:

Asset Useful life(in years)

Leaseheld Land Over the primary perigod

of the lease

Buildings Office Building 30 years
Others 81 years

Leasehold 10 years or over the

Improvements primary period of the
lease, whichever [s lower

Netwark Equipment | 967 years

{other than hakerieg)

Battarias 5 yoars

Testing Equiprnents

(included in Nebwork

LEquipments} 3 years

Optival Fibre Cabdle

and Copper Cable 15 years

Telephone B years

[netraments

Computers 0.7 years

Sultware > years

Office Equipments

1G years, except in case
issued to employees,
where asset s
depreciated in 5 years

Furnituree and Feeture

0 years, excevl in case
issucd o employees,
where asset is
depreciated in 3 years

Vehicles

4 yeoars

Fised Assebs costing

Fully depreciated when

less than Rs 5.000
(other than Telephone
Instruments}

they are ready {or use.

Depreciation rates derived from the above are not
less Lhan the rates prescribed under Schedule XTIV
of the Companies Act, 1956.

During the vear the Company has decreased the
average e of Batierics considered part of MNetwork
voiipments feom 967 vears to 5 years. Resultant
impact is not material, hence not disclnsed.
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gradation of the existing assets is provided over
the balance life of the original assel,

Depreciation on the amount capitalised an account
of forelgn exchange fluctuations is provided over
the balance life of the orlginal asset tll March 31,
008 (refer Nate 2.13, below}

impalrment

The carrying amounts of asasts are reviewed at each
balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairmient based on internal / external factors, An
impairment loss is recognized wherever the
carrving amount of an asset exceeds its recoverabie
ampunt. The recoverable amount ia the greater of
the assets net selling price and value {n use. In
asgesding value in use, the sstimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value at the
weighted average cost of capital. After impairment,
depreciation i3 provided on the revised carrying
arnount of the assets over its remaining useful life.

A previously recognized impairment loss is
increased o reversad depending on changes in
circumatances. However the carrving value after
veversal 15 not increased beyond, the carrying value
that would have prevailed by charging usuat
depreciation if there was no impairment.

Intangibles

Afl expenditure on ntangible jtems are expensed
as tncurred unless ic qualifies as an intangible assat
as defined in Accounting Standard 26. The carrying
value of intangible assets is assessed for
recoverability by relerence to the estimated future
discounted ael cash flows that are expected to be
generated by the asser. Where this assessment

- indicates a deficit, the assets are written down to

the market value or fair value as computed abnve.

For accounting policy relatad to Licence Entry Fees,
refer note 2.8(1), below.

Licence Fees
Licemer Entry Lee

The Licence Entrv Fee [See fNote 1 (b}] has beon
recognised as an intangible asset and is amostised
equally over the remainder of the lcence perioad
of 20 years from the date of commencement of
commercial operations [Refer Nete T (a)). Licence
entry fees includes interest on funding of Heence
entry fees, foreign exchange fluctuations on the
loar taken upto the date of commencement of
commercial operations.

The carrying value of license entry foes are assessed
for recoverability by reference o Lhe estimated
future discounted net cash tHows that are expected
to be goneraled by the asset. Where this assessment

()
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indicatey a deficit, the assets are waltton down
the market vatue or faly value az compted above,

Rewctine Sharing Feo

Revenue Sharing Fes, cuezently computed at the
prescribed rate of Adjusted Gross Revenue (" AGR?)
& expensed in the Profit and Loss Account in the
year in which the related fncome from providing
unified ncoess sarvicss i3 recognised,

An addittonal revenue shace towards spectrum
charges is ecomputed at the prescribed rate of the
service revenue earned from the customars who
are provided services through the ODMA and
CorDect wireless technology. This is expensnd in
tiw Froft and Loss Account in the year in which
the refatad income is recognised.

Further, effective February 15th 2008, the TRAT has
issued an amendment to IUC Regulation 2005,
recquiring to pay additional .75 per cent of AGR
towards access deficit charge. Further on
March 28, 2008, the same was abalished. These costs
are expensed in the Profit and Loss Account in the
vear in which the related revenues are recognised,

Investments

Investmenis that are readilv realisable and
inlended to be held for not more than a yzar are
classified as currant investments. All other
investments arz classified as  lang-tarm
inveskments. Long term investments are stated ab
cost. Iipwever. provision for diminution in value
is macle to recognise 2 decline other than lemporary
in the value of the investments. Current
investments are carvicd al lowsr of cost and Ffajr
value and determined o an ndividual investment
basis.

Provisions

A provision is recogrised when an enferprise has a
present obligation as a result of past evenk it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be
requidred Lo settle the uilization, in respect of which
a reliable estimabe can be made. Provisions are
ool discounted to its present value and are
determnined based on best estimate required Lo seitle
the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are
reviewsad at vach balance sheel date and adjusted
to reflect the current hest satimates.

Revenne Recognition

Fevenue from unified acvess services are
recognised on services rendered and is net of
rebates, discouns amd service tax. Unhbilled
revenuas resulting from unified access sorvices
provided from the billing cvele date to the end of
each month are estimated and recorded. Revenues
from unificd access services rendered through
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prepaid cards are recognised based on achual usage
by the customers. Billings mads but not expected
to be collected, if any, are cstimated by the
managemani and nolb recognized as revenues in
accordance with Accounting Standard on Revenue
Kecognition (“AS %).

Eevenue on arcount of internet services and revente
from infrasfructure services are recognised as

services are rendered, in accocdance with the erms
af the related contracs.

212 Interconnaction Usage Revenue and Charges

The TRAI issued Interconnection Usage Charges
Eegulation 2603 ("TUC regime’) effective May 1, 2003
and subsequently amended the same bwice with
effect from February 1, 3004 and February 1, 2005,
Under the [T regimea, with the oblective of sharing
of call revenues across different aperators invoived
in origination, fransit and fermination of every call,
the Company pays irkcrconnection charges
(prescribed as Ks per minute of call time) for all
vutpoing calls originating in s network Lo other
operators, depending on the tormination poeint of
the call i.e. mobhile, fixed line, and distance i.e. focal,
national long distance and international long
distance. The Cnmpany receives certain
interconnection charges {rom other operators for
all calls erminating in ks oeoeork

Arcordingty, intercornect revenus are recognised
on those calls ariginating in another telecom
vpriator netivock ard kerminating in the
Company’s notwork, Intercennect cost i3
recognised as chargss incurred on termination of
calls originating o e Omimpany’s retwork and
terminating on ithe cziwnek of other telecom
pperators. The interconnect revenie and costs are
recognised in the (inarcial statenent onea gross
basis and included moservice sovenue and network
operation expenditure. respectively.

2153 Foreign Cwrrency Transactions

finiticd Recogeiiion

Foreign curtency transactions are recorded in the
reporling currency. by apolying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the
reporting currency and the forsizo currency at the
date of the fransaction.

Conuersion

Foreigan currency monstary ibems are reported
using the ciosing rate, Non-monefary items which
are carriad in terms ol historical cost denominated
in a foreign currency are reporied using the
axchange rate at the date of the fransaction; and
non-monetary ilems which are carried at fair vatue
or other similar valuation denominated in a
Foreign curreney are reported usmng the exchange
raies Lhat existed when Lhe values were determined.

Exchange Differences

Exchange differences arising om Lhe settlerment or
on reporting Company's monetary ifems al rates
different from those at which they were initiaily :
recorded during the year, or reported in previous ’
financial stalements, are recognised as income or
as expenses in the year.

2.14 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the
acqguisition and construction of a qualifying asset
are capitalised as a part of the cost of the assel.
Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense
irt the year in which they are incusred.

2.15 Employee Benefils

Effective April 1, 2007, the Company has adapted
the Revised Accounting Standard - 15 ‘Tmployee
Benetits'. The relevant policies are:

Shert Term Employee Benefits

Shert term employee benefits are recognised in the
period during which the services have keen
renderad.

Long Term Emplover Benefits

Provident Fund and employees’ state insurance schemes

All employees of the Company are entitled to
receive benefits under the Trovident Fund, which
is a defined contribution plan. Both the employee
and the employer make moenthly contributions o
the plan at a predetermined rate (prosently 12%) of
the employvecs’ baste salary. These contributions
are made to the fund administered and managed
by Lhe Governmenl of India. In addition, some
employees of the Company are covered under the
employees’ state insurance schemes, which are also
defined contributicn schermes recognized and
administerad by the Covernment of India

The Company’s contributions o both these
schemes are expensed in the Profit and Loss
Account. The Company has no further ohligations
under these pians beyvond  its  monthly
contributions.

Leave Oncashment

The Company has provided for the liabillly at
pericd end on acconnt of unavailed earned leave
ag per the actuarial valuation as per the Projected
Unit Credit Method.

Gratuily

The Company provides for gratuity obligations
through a defined benefit reticement plan (the
‘Gratuily Man’) covering all empiovees. The
Gratuity Plae provides o lunyp sum payment to
vested employees at retiremnent or kerminalion of
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eraployment based on the respective CHlpisyee
salary and years of employment with the Unrapany,
The Company provides for the Cratutly Flan bascd
on acluarial valuation in accordance wilh
Accounting Standard 15 (revised), “limployee
Benefits ~ The Company makes annual
confributions Lo e LIC for the Creatuity Plan in
respect of employees. The present value of
obligation wuder gratuity is determined based on
actuarial valuation at period end using Project Unlt
Credit Method, which recognizes sach perind of
service as giving rise to addilional urit of em oloyes
benefit entitlement and measurss ecash unit
separately to build up the Bzl obligatics,

Short term compensated absences are provided for
on based on estimates.

Achuarial geins and losses are recoznized a3 and
when incurred

Income-Tax

fax expense comprises of current, deforred and
fringe benefit (ax. Current income tax and fringe
benefit tax is measurad at the amoun: experied o
be paid to e tax authocddes in aconnlance with
the Indian Ficome Tax Act. Deforred income hxes
reflects the impact of current yodr ining difforences
between faxable income and rceonniing meome for
the year and reversal of tirring differences of sarliep
VEATS,

Deferred tax is measured basacl on the tax rates snd
the tax laws enacted or subsls niively enaclad at the
balance shest date. Defarred lax assets are
recoghised only to the extent that there is
reasmuable certainty that suficient Arhurs axanle
income will be available against which such
deferred tax assels can be realised. 1f ihe company
has carry forward of unapsorbed dapreciation and
tax losses, deferred tax assets 1e recoenised only if
there ts virtual certajnty Suppurted by convincieg
evidence thatsuch deferrad tax assets can be realized
against futura {axable prodits. Unrecegnised
deferred tax assets of cacdier WBATS arz re-assassad
and recognised to the exten® that it has become
reasonably certain or virtually corviain, as the caze
may be, that future taxabia income wilt be available
against whizh such daforved tax assets van be
realised,

2.17 Qperating L.easas

Whers the Company s the lessa

Leases of aswets under which the lossor effachvely
retaing all the risks and rewards of gwn rship are
classified as operating leases. Lease mavments tnder
operating leases are recognized as an expease una
straight-line basis vver the lease toem,

FEECT, ENFOTET LIMEITED
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Assets subject to operating leases are included in
fixed ussets, Lease incomae is recopgnised i the Profit
and Loss Accountt on a stralght-line basis over the
tease term.  Costs, including depreciation are
recognised as an expense in the Profit sad Loss
Account. Initial direct costs such as legal costs,
brokerage cosks, ete. are recngnised imnmediatel v
in the Prefit and Foss Account.

Loss Per Share

Rasic loss pec share is calculated by dividing the
net inss for the vear atiributable to cqlity
shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the yodr.

For caiculating diluted oss per share, the number
of shares compeises the waizhted average shares
conzidered for derlving bazic logs per share, and
aisd the weighted average number of shares, if any
which would have been used in the conversion of
all diiutive potential equity shares. The number of
shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are
adjusted for the bonus shares and the sub-division
of shates, il any,

Segment Reporting

tdemtification of sepmenls:

The ptimary reporting of the Company has been
pecformed on the basis of business seoments. The
analysis of geographical segments is based on the
aveas @ which the Company's procucts are sold or
sTVICEs are rendered,

Allgsaiiun of common costs:

Common allocable eosts are altocaled to each
segment accarding to the relative contribaition of
each segrment to the lotal common costs,

Lhialtirontbed ffaps:

2.20

Tiwe Corporale and other sagment ncluce general
corporais income and expense items, whick are nol
allocated to any business sEgTent,

Pre-Qpcrative Expenditure

Expenditure incurred befure the com:nencement of
commerelal operations are considered as Pre
operative expenditure and are charged to profit
and loss arcount,

Cash & Cash Equivalenis

Cash 2 cash cquivalents in Lhs Balance Shaet
comprise cash in hand and ai bank.
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SCHEDULES BEORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AND PROFIT AMND AS AT AND FOR
THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2000

AN wmsunts in indian Rupees, zecept share dufa frchading share price, wiless otterinise shaled)

=
k2

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

1.

Commitments and contingent liabilities not
provided for in respect nf:

Description As o Asat
March 31, March 31,
20012 2008

v,

¥i

i

Estimuaied Valee of {Jontracty
remaining

Ter b exeutee] g eripital
gt snd not gresvided
pot af capital advaness

Ra, 2034307 idduech 51,
FOUE Rs B3A60

ZiMel.iid [l R e ;
Condingent Lmbilities and
nmmilmends i
Finanacial Benh, Guavdatess 221 EA14 Al 39,018
crefar el () helow)

Bedarraaeee Bank Guaraatees 53,864,072 J35A5%E22
rrur Mt i bnow ]

{inunlar Tuaranied Fiven W

#EFUL. the Holding Company §3,223.000,000 | 3223000000
frafae sinz i below)

{inen fetters of Credit 12,6201 144 47,438,551

e lurin Jopasit foe 2bave
®elXA20d4 fMarch 31
2TE— Ry 179,855

Encomiestax matters under
Appead
Ceaster More (1 belew)

10k Mo 237 24 5646.400

Claies against rhe Canipany
net scknowledged o debes —
¥ PEPRIETIING VALIGUS
Hansaus cBaims [zl
1linst te Compiay, which
are subject matzer of lledivn.

5118504 AT

Lathers (rafay Motz . d, 2

[and gy ielawh AN 63737 % JEEL 319956

Tatal YRS, 525

0, 401,826,254

(b

Timancial bank guarantees as at March 31, 2009 of
s 271,206,514 (March 31, 2008 - Ks 206,549.628) and
performance bank guarantees of Rs 33365972
idlarzh 31, 2008 — Rs 55.668,922) z2re secured. The
details of security created ave detailad out in noke
na. 3 {a) below. Further, the financial bank
guaranier given by Punjab National Sank (FMB)
to The Export Import Banlk ol Ching of Bs 108,625,511
is not secured by the Consolidate Corporabe Bank
Cuarantes of Rs 5,225,000,000 by HPFUL, the
Hoiding Cornpany.

The Company has certain income lax related
matiers pending with Incomye Tax Appatlate

e AT Sl S

)

Uribunal for the Assessment Year 2001-02
aggregaling Lo Ks 10,366,937 (darch 31, 2008 -
Rs 9,314,234},

Tlia Wirstess Finance Division of Department of
Telecommunications has claimed an ocubstanding
of Rs 20,585,211 rowards the Spectrum Charges dues
from year 2001 b0 vear 2005 vide their letter 1020/
48/ 2005-WFD dated October 7, 2005, Uhe Company
has submitted its reply to the depariment on

‘Chetober 25, 2003 confirming the total due ol RBs

29,472 only and paid the said amount. The Wireless
Finance Division of Department of
Telecommunications has subsequently claimed Rs
35,310.17@ vide tetter number 1020/48/2005-WED
dated Sepiember 13, 2006 towards the Spectium
Charges dues from year 2007 {o year 2006, The
Company has submitted a detailed reply on
October 31, 2006, During the year ended
March 31, 2808, out of the above demand, the
Company has deposited Rs 1,801,240 under protest
towards the interest dee Hl August 31, 2006,
Wireless Finance Division of Department of
Telecommunirations has updated their claim o Bs
70,604,097 towards Spectrum Charges dues Iram
laowary 1, 2000 to September 30, 2008 vide tetter
number 1020,/ 29/ W/ 07-08 dated October 24, 2008.
The Company has once again made 2 written
representation vide its letter dated December 8,
2068, Based or the legal opinion obrained, the
Company is confident that no liability would accrue
regarding the same in fulure,

Dhering the vear ended March 31, 2007, Hbharat
Sanchar Nigam Lirafled {"BSNL'} has raised
supplementary bill dated August 10, 2004 For Bs
167,611,241 towards [nter-connect Lsage Charges
CLECT) and Access Deficit Charges ["ADC for the
period Movember 14, 2004 f6 August 31, 26035 on
the Company in accordance with 11Q Letter do.
460-1/206-RRGLN dated bay 220 2006 BSNL
further raised mvoices W the tune of Ks 99,306,533

on similar grounds for the period Seplamber 1, 2003
io Pebruary 28, 2006 These charges are un sccouni
of unilateral declaration of the Company's Fixed
Wiraless and Wire line Phone services as Limited
Mobility Services by BSNL, The Company has
aubmitted itz reply to BSMNL on Ausust 23, 2006
asking for the calculation/basis for ihe additioral
amount raised towards TUC and ADC by BENT. for
Rs 167,614,241, Subsequently, BSNL issucd «
disconnection nolice on August 26, 2006 which
required the payment of X5 208,236,509 (inchuding
Ts 167,614,241} The Company has submiited details
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to B5MI. for pavments already made for Re
4,622,528, The Company has approsched Hon'ble
TDEAT on the subject maiter and a stay order was
granted on owr petilion no 232 of 2006 against the
disconnection nntice on September 21, 2006, BSNT
Jalandhar Miice subzequently ralsed a
supplementary bill vide Letter No. v GMAM/INTR/
JL/HECL/75 dated dMarch 20, 2007 for Rs 5,206,780,
fo which the Company has sabmitted its reply on
March 23, 2007 intiswabing that the matter being sub-
judice and peading decision by the [Honble [125AT,
no coercive action be taken against tha Company.
The subsequent hearing has been adjouwmad to july
24, 2003, The Company, based un export legal
opinion, believes that there would be no Snancial
Lability against such bills and accordingly, has not
recorded ang lability eowards the 1UC and aDC
supplementary Hills during the vear ended March
31, 2009.

The Company is in receipl of Show Cause Notiee
dated June 4, 2007 from Departmoent of
Telecomununications {TDoT" for non fulfilment ol
first year's roli-out U‘Jiw;tions of Lnilfied Acvcess
Service Licenss "UASL'S Azeeement for Ponjab
Service Area, where in #he licensse a3 s the B2rms
of the license agreemant was required to ensure
that at least 10% :uf the [ strict Headguarter ¢ Towns
are covered in the firsi ¢ ear of the date of migraiion
to UASL which rommences from the dale of Test
Certificate issued by Telecom Erngineering Centre
("TEC). As stated by DT in the S Cause Notics
issued, the Cump1m fis violaled the condifdons
of UASL and acrondiugly Licuidated Damages of
G000 has been imposed and Dot has afso
soughl explanation wichin 21 days as to why they
snould not take 2ction against the Compeny ander
the LIASL Agreemuoni .o which the Company has
replied on Septeriber 77, 2307 that the Company
has not violaled the corditions of UASL and based
nexpert tegal advice, the Zompany believes that
there would be ne financial Labiiity against such
claims of DoT and accerdingly, has not recorded
any Hability towards tha Liynidated Damagos
during year ended Macch 31, 2000,

The Company i3 in recmpt v demand of s
4,157,718 fromr Bharat Sapehar Nigam Limifted
CESNLY on Fabruary 2. 2009 op. account of frart
charges {or the vear 2008-09, passive link charges,
duct cost tor passive link and active link charges.
Qut the above Rs 450,13} pertainbiy ko :mrtchargds
for the year 2008-09 and aviive Luk charges wasz
piaid by the Campany vide :et‘.er_:-tnumber'lﬂ? Watedd
February 18, 22049 The amount of Rs 3,727,587
towards the duct cost for passiva fink and passive
link charges was not acceplabhe by the Company
as the demand raised oy PSNL was unilateral znd
unjust. The Comoany Elel a petition vide petition

(g

(ki

rmber 41{0) of 2069 with Telecom Dispute
Sctlemenl and Appellate Tribunal (' 1D3ATY) to
whick the Company was granterd o sty order dated
Warch 25, 2005 staying BSMNI. [ron recuvering the
slues from the Compaty and matter is fusther listed
on. fuly 20, 2008 fur hearing on accordingly no
iiaility has baea booked in thu_ books of acrounts
for the: year ended March 31, 2004,

The Company is in receipt of a demand of Rs
£33, 158,340 from Bhavat Sanchar Nipam Limited
(BENLY) on Decamber 20, 20608 un account of
unilateral revision of acress charges vide its letter
dated April 28, 2001 for the period from Tune 2000
to May 2003, in contravenbon of the Interconnect
Agmeement and TRAL Regulations. The Company,
Assaciation of Urified Service Providers of India
TAUETE ferstwhiie Assodation of Basic Telephone
Operators "ABTOY and other Basic Service
Operato:s contested aforesand revision o e rates
of access charges betore Tefecom Dispuis Seitlemnent
Appellate Tribunal (TDSATY. TDSAT vide ifs
reasoned and detailed juigrment cated April 27,
2605 aliowed the refund claims and strack down
the wndlateral revision in the rates of access charges
by 35NL and keid that Telecom Regulatory
Autharity of India {TRAL'} is Lhe final authority
for fixing of access charges and acewss charzes would
be payable as rates prescrived by the TRAL and as
per the Inferconnect agreements. BSNL proferred
an appeal in Hon'ble Supreme Court against the
arder of TDSAT and an interine stav was granted
on October 12, 2006 Therefoie aggriaved by such
wnilaterai action on the part of B.;\JL by raising
aforesaid demand and disturbing the status-qua,
apolications were moved by the Company, AUSPI
and other aperaters v the Hon'ble Supreme Court
vicle A NoSB34-55850 of 2005 that was listed for
hesving on Febeuary 9, 2009 und. Hor'ble Supreme
Court passed an onder clarifving its revious order
of Getober 149, 2006 and ntﬂ}-“d the refunds claim
againsl ke BENL there by upholding the TRSAT
order dated April 27, 2005 where by BSNL is
refrained from raising the acoess vhitrges dammnand,
1he Company based on the legal opinion belicves
that there wouldl be no financial liability against
tats demand and bias accordingiy not recorded any
lability towards aeccess chargss during the year
etrdecl March 31, 2609,

Loan and Adbvances of barch 31, 2008 includes
amauni reeoverable from Hszar Investments
Lunited {EILY apgresating o s 134,070,240, The
Company had made payments i carlioy years to
BIL for takeover of gertain accownted ancd
unaccounied labilities for sorvices that were to be
seifled by BIL as puer the agreement between DIL
anz erstwhile [THCL Laiolel. B1L hax failed to sottic
the dues with the respective parties and the
Company has filod a winding vp potition ©/s 434

-
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of the Companies Act, 1956 with Honourable Court
of Muwbai. This petition has been dismissed vide
Order dated March 24, 2005. Subsequently, the
Company has filed an appeal before the division
bench of the Honouralde High Court against Lhe
ovder dafed March 24, 2003 and also seal a nakice to
Ell. invoking arbitration proceedings. The
Honourable High Cowt disposed off the appeal as
nw case for interference in the fmgugned order vide
itz order dated November 1, 2005, However, the
Honourabie High Court referred the dispute Lo the
ante Arbitcator of Justice Mr DLK. Dhanvka, The
Company has filed the statement of vaim on May
15, 2005 before the sols arbitrator. Fending such
recovery, provision for doubtf] advance is being
carried ir: the finandial statements for the vear ended
March 31, 2008, On July 11, 2008 the Company has
reached a settlement with Essar lvestmments Limited,
{'EIL") and ZIL has agreed to pay HFCL sum of Rs
63,700,000 towards the final settlemant of dues,
accoraingly e provisions of equivalent sqoeat of
Es A3,700,000 have been adjustod and the batance
aranunt of Bs 68,370,240 has been adjusted from
Loans and Advances as amounl net recoveranks ang
its provision of equivalent amount of Rs &8.370.240
have been reversed and ivritten off.

Managerial remuneration

M. Surerddra Lunia was designated as manager of
the Company for a term of three years un Seprember
28, 2007 with effect from July 25, 3007 wndsre section
269 of the Companies Acl 1836, in the Annual General
Mzeting of sharciwolders. The Company nuud applied
Lo Uentral Government for approval, which bis been
granted, vide letter no 12/478/2007-CL.VEH dated
Mane 25, 2008. Mr. Surendrs Lunia subsequently
resigned as a manager oo fanuary 31, 2009, My, Kapil
Bhalla  Company Secretary has been appoinled as
the manager of the Company with eifect from
Jasseary 31, 2009 gince the annual salary pavable is
less thao the stipulated fimit no approval of Central
Gevernment is required. Accordingly  the
managerial remuneraiion has been as disclosad
below,

Femurncration paid o Manazyer i3 25 under

Yarliculars For the For the
Year ended | Year ended

Mlacclt 31, | March 31,

2009 2005

Salary 15520004 2253952

Fmployer's conkribution

to provident fend 206,240 373.u5

3
Perguisites/ allowances| 3,342,726 3839500
Ex-gratia/ Performance

linked incenktive 577,

6,978,466

o

Qo 13687330

T'obal

7,783,797

3.

The abuve managerial remuneration docs not
include provision of gratuity of Rs 17,188
{March 31, ZU0H- Ra 287,241} apwl leave encashument
of Rs 30,839 (March 31, 2008- Rs 645,742}, as these
pProvistons are computed on the basis of an actuarial
vaiuation done for the Company as a whele and
are provided in the financials {(Refer Schedule 14).

Value of perquisites and olher allowances has been
determined in accordance with the provision of the
Income-tax Act, 1961,

Share Capital

Cguify shmnres

Qul of the tutai paid up equity share capital
comprising of 525,517,152 equity shares of Rs 10
each, 313,070,338 of unlisted equity shares have
heen listedt at Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) vide
it's letter number 20090314-12 dated May 14, 2000
and leller nomber DCS/TREF/ DN/ FIP/ 236 £09-
10 dated May 25, 2009, As a pre-tondition to the
listingr of the aforesaid sharves of the Company, BSE
directed the Company to undertake an offer for
sale in the domestic marke: as the non-promoter
holding in the Company was below the minimum
stipulated level. Accordingly, the Company filed
the draft offer for sale document with SEBRI for sale
of 8,000,000 equity shares held by promoter in the
Company. However, SEBL, vide itz order dated
March 7, 2007 directed the Company thai
comununication of observations on the draft offer
for sale document fifed by the Company be
withheld il the proceedings under Section 115 of
the SEBI Act against the Company are disposed off.
The Company {iled an appeal in SAT challenging
the SEBLs order dated March 7, 2007, {he Hon'bie
SAT direcked SEBI to proceed with the ivtier of offer
presenied by the company, in acenrdance with law,
and issue a letler of observations in terms of the
guideiines within eight werks from the date of
filing of revised draft offer for sale document by
the Company. In parallel, pursuant to the
restructuring package approved under UDR
mechanism, the Company has been in the process
of issuance of fresh eguity shares to Banks /
Financial Institutions on conversion of opticnally
fally convertible debentures (OFCDS). Uonsidering
that pest issuanee of fresh equity on conversion of
QFCDs, the non-promoter holding in the Company
woild exceed the minimum stipulated threshoid,
the Company requested BSE to grant listing of
unlisted shares withoul stipulating the condition
of ofter of sale. BST. vide its felter D08 7 AMAL /
KOG/ GEN 7 LIG8 / 200809 daled February |3, 2009
has, interalia. agreed lo exempt the condition
imposed on the Company o comply with
requirement of making an offer for sale in the
domestic market, subject to compliance of certain

L
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procedural requirements including three years
lock-in period of 25% of newly Issued equity shares
pursuantto the mergeri.e. 25% of 432,000,230 shares
{1,080,00,063 equily shares). The Company in
compliance with conditions slipulated by BSE has
placed under lock in 108,000,063 cquity shares on
May 14, 2009 for 2 period of 3 years ending May 13,
2012 The Company has alse complied with all other
necessary requirements pursuant fo the letter from
BSE dated Pebruary 13, 2009 related Lo 83070088
equity shares issued pursuant o co Fporate debt
restruckuring scheme, BSE has alsg agreed to grant
in-principle approval for allotment of 86,743,110
equity shares to be issued o Banks and financial
inslitutions on conversion upon filing of necessary
listing application, which the Company has filed,
vide its letber no, HITL/S&F. /501 /09 472 and 473
dated March 007, 2009, BSE vide their notice
20090514-12 dated May 14, 2009 hosted on ft's
wiebsite has granted listing and trading permission
for 432,000,250 equity shares issued pursuant ta
scheme of amalgamation. BSE hag granted lisiing
approval for 83,070,088 eguity sharves vids their
fetter number DCSA’PREFIDMN_{'FI?,—‘IS‘JI-D‘)-'LG
dated May 23, 2009 and the shares have been listed
vide BSE nobtice nuwmnber 20090605-20 dated
Fune 5, 2009,

differential interest due tg manthly vis-a-vis
quarterly compounding in respect of term loan
from 2 scheduled bank. During the vear ended
March 31, 2608, the Comparry obtained additional
confitmations from lenders regarding conversion
of Zero percent Optienally Fully Convertible
Cebenture {"OFCD including premium acceced
il March 31, 2006, e Company has avcordingly
reduced an amount of Rs 131,110,587 from the OFCD
premium and taken back the equivalent amount o
securilizs premium aceount, Pending ¢larification
On conuversion price of sugh (OFCDs fincluding
premiumy from SEB, e Company, on ibe basis of
directions of Financial Inslitution am Banks have
requested Bombay Stock Exchange ("BST" 1o grant
in-principle’ approval for allotment of shares at
par. The BSK has agreed vide its Jetter ro DCS/
AMAL/RCGAGEN /1108 7 2008-2000 dated Febriary
13, 2009 tn grrant in-prineciple approval for allotmant
of 36,743,116 equity shares o be isswed to Banks
and {inancial institulions on conversion of OFCDs
Upon complelion of necessary [ormalities. The
Conipany has filed the requisile liskng apefeatkon
in prescribed format vide its Ietter n, HITL/S3L
5-01/09/472 and 473 dated March 07, 205 raceipte:d
b BSE on March 12, 2009 and rEspanse rom G5E s
still awaired,

On Mareh 51, 2004, tha Company obtained the 5. Secured Loans
approval from the sharehotders for de-listing the () As per the COR Scheme approved on March 10,

shares listed in the Calcutrs stock Exchange
Association Limited ("CSE") and coenplied with aj;
the necessary requirements for dalistiry and
submitted its application in CSE, Dospiie reseated
reminders, the Company has not vet reveived (5B
approval in this regard.

Advance Against Shaze Application Money

As per the Tesliuctuning package approved under
CDR mechanism, on October 16, 2004, the Company
had fssued 7,551,178 Zerg percent Optionally Fully
Convartible Debentures COPFCDR" of Bs 100 each
in lien of interest acerued on term loany from
tinancial institotion and banks from January 1. 2004
to March 31, 2005, Pursuant to the revised COR
scheme dated Jurne 24, 2003, ang fonader s
confirmation regarding conversion pf Zero percent
Optionally Fully Convertitile Debentuze (OFCDY
wluding premaium acersed 61 March 31, 2066, the
Company transferred OFCDs of Rs 735,117 800 anid
OFCDs premiurm of R 119,873,594 into equity
shares. Howewver, poending clarifications on the
vonversion price, the Cumpauy, with the consens
ol the lenders, converted the convertibla amuunt
inte Advance against Equity Share Application
Money on March 31, 2006, During the year ended
March 3{, 2007, the Company had further
franstferred #55,550,374 10 Hdvance Againgt Fopuity
Share Application Money, which pertained to

M and subsequenlly approved on june 4, 2005,
the Lenders have signed Mester Resiructuring
Agresment ("MRA’) for restructuri g of teir Pebts
and Security Trusteeship Agreement, wha reby the
Lenlers have entered into an agreement and
appointed [DB] Trusteeship Services Limizad
therein after roferred as “FESL") a3 their cugtodian
Of security. On November 1 1, 2008, the charuges were
registered in favour of the [TSL Fur Rupes Term
Loans, for providing Specific Credit Faritity, for
Working Capital Assistance and Lo percent
Secured OFCDs. The same are secured by first paci
PaEs5u charge on immovable properties of Lhe
Company situated at Kandivali (Easil, Mumbai and
properties siluated at Mohali ¢ Jalandhay under
equitabie mackgage, first Fari passu charge of
hypothecation of movable Froperries of tha
Company including movabla plant & machinery,
machingry spares, tuols & accessories and other
movables including book debls by way of
hypothecation, both present amd future. Furlher,
the same are also secured by assignimeat of 4l
rights, title, benefits, claims and interesi itt. under
the project documents, insarance sralicios, all
stabutory, savernment and tegulatary approvals,
permissions, exemptions and waivers op pari passy
basis. These arrangements/loans qre lurther
sechired by consolidated COrporate guaranice given
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by HFCL, the Halding Company, 1o the tune of
Ry 3,223.000.000. Subsequently, puzsuant to the
reworked restroetiring scheme zpproved under
COR mechanism on June 24, 2005, the Company
has entered infe amendatory Master Restructering
Agreement and amendatory Security Trustzeship
Agreement ('STA™} on March 9, 2006, whereby
Centurion Bank of Punjab has also foined as one of
the lenders and has agreed to appoint ITSL as Hheir
custodian for security and signed the 5TA in line
with pther lenders in consoriium,

Jrethe request of the Company, Corporate Debt
Reslructuring (el (CDRY vide their leiter no CHDR
(JP) Ne 138 /200910 dated May 20, 2009 has
approved a revised restructuring package. The
revieed restruchuring package interalia includes
fnnding of inteeest rom July 1, 2008 to Cotober 31,
200% on siznple intersst bagis. Funded Interagt on
Term Loan {(FITLY) would net carry any interest
and the FITL shalt be repaid in 16 equal monthly
installments coounencing from December I 2009,
and reschedulement of principle ingtallments fram,
August 1. 2068 to November 1, 2009 s0 as to 52
repayable from December §, 20009 o March 1, 2051,
in aecordance with the aforesaid revision in the
restructuring scheme, the Company has disclosed
the Interest accrued but pot due to the endees
arrounting o Bz 373,097,077 feom Joiv 1 2005 to
Wlarch 31, 2009 as 0% FITL which shall be repaid
from Becember 1, 2009 in 16 monthly instaliments.
Further, ir: lioe with the aforesaid scheme, oo
installment of principle repayment is becoming due
tHIE November 1, 200% and as such thers &5 Nil
anount due as on March 31, 2009, Confirmation
from the lenders is awalted,

The sbnve mentioned secutity bas been furthes
exiended o ke amount of loans, working capital
assistance, spevific facility and OFCDs tomether
with the nderest, compound interest, additionat
intetest, default interest, costs, charoes, expenses
and any ather rmonies payable by the Company in
refation thereto and in terms with MEA and 5TA
enterad into bebween the fenders and TSL

Vehicle Loans of Rs 8,673,308 (Macch 31, 20035 - Rs
T1L310,067) are secured by way of exclayive
bypothecation charge in Favowr of bank oo the
specific assels acquired out of the loan procesds of
the Uompeany. These leans are repayable in
monihly instaiments and shall be repaid by
2011.¥ehicle loans repavable within one-vear
amounls ko Hs 5,046,454 interest rates on vehivle
loams vary fron 5.09 per cont pey annum to 1433
percent per anvui. The tenuee of loan is 36 months.
Unsecured Loans

O October 16, 2004, the Company Issuad LaR7.7a1
zoero poreend Mon Convertible Debentures {7™M601287
of Rs 100 each in lcu of intorest accrued on waem
loans from a financial inshbution and a bank for

id:

!

Lhe: perioed April 1, 2003 to December 31, 2003, The
NCTrs carlier redeemable al par on Macch 51, 2014,
ar i redeemanla at par on Maxch 51, 2016 after
repaymeant of the teem loans as per revised CDR
Scheme effective from April 1 2005,

Interest payable vn vendor finance facilities
amounling to Bs Nil as at March 31, 2009
(wlazcly 31, 2008 — Rs 3,937,742}

1 Februagy 8, 2003, the Company has entered indo
a muyer's credit loan agreement with The Export
Impoct Bank of China to faciliiate paymant o one
of its equipmenl supplier for a okl awount of
Bs 544231602 {USH 12,134,961). As on March 31,
03, the Covepany has utilized Xs 527 470,587 (USS5
12,861,985) o Lis facility. The facility is secured by
firiancial Bank guzantee of Rs 108,825,514 and by a
Corporvaie Guaranies of Rs 544,131,662 given by
HFCL, e Holding Company, on parl passu basis
wilh mhzr ienders.
The Company in terms of the agreement dated May
t 2007 has taken convertible loan to facilitate
axpansipza and development of businesses
amounting io Hs 492,499,886 {outstanding at
March 31, 2005 - Rs £99.499,5586, March 3. 2005 -
Rs 194, 199 858) from Infotel Digicomm Private
Limited, The convertible loan {5 interest froe and is
repayabie on demand, Infotel Digicomm Private
Limited shalf have an option *o convert the Loan
into Equity Shares, subject to gehing necessary
approvais subject to applicable pricing guidelines
as per 5GB! and other faws and regulations.
Phe Company i terms of the agreement dated May
1, 2007 has taken buver's credit facilily ko facilitate
funding of the telecom project amounting to Rs
410,740,832 {outstanding at March 31, 2009 - Rs
410,740,832, March 31, 2008 - Rs 410,740,632) from
Infotel Businass Solutions Limited. The lpan carrsies
12% interest and is repayable on demand. Iniotel
Business Solutions Limited has the option to convert
the lyan including interest accrued inte equity
shares, subjact to anpiicable pricing guidetines as

mer SEB1 and other laws and regulations.

Fixed Assects and Capital work-in-progress

Capital Work in Progress includss GGoods in Fransit
oi B3 92,177 {March 31, 2008 — Rs 73,818,252).

A an March 31, 2009, {etephone instroments
aggregating 1o a net book valne of Ks 219,616,995
itvlarch 31, 2008 — Rz 227 894,157) and other assels
aggregating te net book value of Ks 281,717,433
{tiarch 31, 2008 - Ks 19,673,090) are tocated at
rustomr premises, obher parties and at other
operatur’s sites, respeciively.

O Jaely 30, 20408, the Company has enfered into an
agresnent with Tower Vision India {T) Limited to
seli 150 ready network sites o incliding 26 CorDect
siteg and 124 tower sitez. Cut of 124 tower sites, 99
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ready tower sites were included in the Company's
net fixed assets at written down value of Ks
39,964,151 and the balance 23 fowers wera vat o be
constructed. The total considecation of the
aforesaid agreement aggreaates to Rs 636,000,000,
The terms of the asset prachase agreemeant expires
on December 31, 2008 andt by then, the Company
had handed over 83 ready rower siles for
Bs 384,275,637 with gross book value of Hs
117,435,184 and accumulated depreciation of
Es 78,393,388, the net book value being Ks
47,041,796 and accordingly, recorded a profit of
Rs 337,234,841 which has been diselosed under gain
on Sold Fixed Assats in the Profitand Loss Account.
Wiih the expiry of the asset purchase agresment
there is no binding upen the Company to exacute
the handing over the balance 67 sites. The orofit
includes Rs 40,836,000 as pretium, out of which #s
38,936.333 has been deferred pver ihe term of the
master itfrastructure provisioning agreewment.

During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company
has writter off Coridect switch and telephones scts
with gross book value of Re 292,609,297 and
accurnuiated depreciation of Rs 194,824,731, the nat
book value being Rs 97,784,571 and Accordingly,
recorded a foss of Rs 97,784,571 which has been
disclosed under Loss on Discarded Fixed Assots in
the Profit and Loss Accoant,

During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company
has alse written off Locent switch and its ACCOESOries
with gross book value of Rs 289,559,573 and
accumulated depreciation of Rs 284,113,587, the not
book value being Rs 546,011 and accordingly,
tecorded a loss of Rs 526,011 which has been
disclosed under Loss on Discarded Fixed 5 ssets in
the FProfit and Loss Account

Invesiments

As more fully discassed in note 1{a) of sechedula 22,
balance sheet of the Company includes investments
of Rs 717,670,900 {Rs 18,000,008 as siquity and Hs
6,670,900 as unsecured OFCD redeprnable o 14
years [rom the year 2002-03) in an associate
company, The lavestment Trust of India Limited
{('TTI). ITL, a sun-banking finance COmMDANyY,
incurred a net loss of Rs 93,467.921 for the wear
ended March 31, 2009, acenmulatad insses pf Ms
212,864,072 and has a negative nel worth of Re
175,364,072 as on March 31, 2009, |'he Compary
believes that 171 would not be able to arranzae funds
as pet their business plans and 1w tecovery ai their
investments and accordingly hos written off the
westment of Bs 94 670,90 and has ilsciosad as
‘Diminution in valus of tvestnents’ in de Prolit
and Loss Account. Since the share of imsses of the
Company in ITUs losses exceed the Uonpanies
ivestment in equity there is Rs Nil share or Profit
from the Associate’s Company.

The Compaiy held 9,050,000 eGuity shares of Bg (0
each amounting to Rs 90,500,000 (99 Gt W) of

NFECL INFOTEL LIMITED

entire paid up capifal of subsidiary CBSI. Cable
Networks Limdted. During the year ended Match
31, 2008 Hre Company had entered into a share
purchase agreement with Digivable Networks
(Enddia) Private Etd on March 26, 2005 for sale of
shares of CBSL at par. The transfer of shares has
been completed on Aprif 16, 2008,

(e} During the year ended March 31, 2009 the Company
has incorporaled one wholly owned Subsidiary
Company Infotel Tawer Infeastructuce Privace
Limited with an Tnvesitment of Rs 99,800, The
principai busingss of he company s buiiding,
establishing, setiing-ugp, arceuing. developing,
advising on, managing, providing, operalieny ard./
or mamntaining, facilitating coaduct of, fuliy or
partially inlrastructure facililies and scrvices
thereot {or all kinds of value adeded services
including Broadband Tawoes for telzrom
operations/seevices, payment gateway services
and intemational gakeway servicas.

9.  Licensing Foes

During the year ended March 31, 2035, the Compang
has deposited the entry fee of Ry 1,317.500.600 with
Ihe Department of Telecommunicatica ("DOT for
the use of GEM Technology in addision to CDMA
technology heing used under the existing Unified
Access Services Licence ("UASLT for the Punjab
Service Arza, The UASL has since been amendect to
incorporate the license for tae of GSM technalogy
orl January 13, 2008 vide THD1's letter number
E.No. 18-85/ 2004/ BS.I HITL, Punjab/ 17 dated
January 15, 2008, DOT bad provided ihe allocation
of radio spectrum on Lrial basis for a perind of three
mouths B December 9, 2008 vide :heir lattar
numier L14047 £20/20068-NTG (P daiad September
9, 2008, The Company has applive for axtension of
the same with DOT, teply to which is s4ll awaited.

0. Inventury

The Company hoelds inventory of natwork
maintenance consumables, RUTM cazuls and mobile
handsets amoueding o Bs 22,629 436 (March 312008
~ s M0E67816). The quantity and vaination of
tnventary is taken as veddiied, valued and cerrified
by e munagement.

Cuantitalive Information- RUIM cards

Particulars in respect of Purchases, Salas 1nd Sracks
ol Finished goods purchased for resaie.

Ecrassoﬁ !Uﬁil Opaning | Purchases | Salesfher . Closing
 Goeds Siock | {Netaf Roturns) “of Rafusaz} SHrek :
Gy | Valwe | rn ) valle Oty | vaie Ot ! Vs
{Rs) 5] {Rz) 1 (Ra}
coms  iwos | . . B3 | 8180465 1 | 1.300| 6,242 5[, 1G6
ol E
Handsals : ' | |
1 [Py : : : H ;
Handsad | #og | - S0 12004 | 1545614 . N T
Aroeds : ! i | |
crigs ! ' I .
Total i 16,267 i 9755083 1 | 12007 1R265  aTI3TED
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Gooedwill

The Company has cntered inlo agreement dated
31st March 2009 for acquiring “the Handset
Business” from M /s Infulel Businwss Solutions
Limited for comnsiderzlion amounting to Rs
10,836,098, The value of acquired inventory of
handsets is Re 9,732,450 anc fixed assets is Bs 380,709
and taken over net current lizhilities amounting o
Es. 476,663, The cxeess of consideration over net
value of Assets and Lisbilities amounting o Rs.
JL229.573 has been recognized as Goodwill and
disclosed as intangible assets in the Balancs Shect,
Goodwill would be amortized over the peripd of 5
years on straighl-line method starbing from Aprii
1. 2005,

Deferred Taxcs

During the year, the Company has incurred |losses
aif Rs 1957743020 (accumulated Fosses of
Rs 11,194,623,558) resulting into a tax losa carry
lerward situation. The Company is eligible Ior a
lax hetiday under saction 80IA of the fncome-tax
Acl, 1961, Though the management is contident of
zenerating profits in the future, there iz cuveerdiy
no convincing evidence of viriual certainty that
the Company swould reverse the tax loss carrv
farwards beyond the tax holiday perind.
Aceoelingly, the Company has not recagnizad any
deferred tax assets resulting from the carry [orward
Eax lusses. Further, no deforred tax labifities on
aceount of temporary timing differcnces have bean
racognized since they are expected o reverse in
the tax holiday period.

Deferred Tax in the Subsidiary [TIPL has been
provided for in accordance with the Accounting
Starrdard 22 - Acconnting for taxes on Income issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of ndia,
MNet delerrd tax assets amounking to Rs, 333,696 /-
as on 315t March, 2009 comprises of the followings:-

Cartivelars Charge Au at
flredit | March 31,
duting pELIY

tha year

Meferred Tax Lialility - -

in Tatal (&)

Provizion for Sratuity 40,262 i, 162

Provision fur Teave encashment 307 428 307 .22

Prefiminary Expeuses .16 5,106

Deferred Tax Assets in Total (B} 333,695 | 333.4%6

Net Deferred Tax Liability/ 1333.6%6) ! (333,406}

(Asset) (A-B)

T3.

Curtent liahilities and Provisions

(a} Suncey Credilors inclurde smount pavable to Micro

and Small Enterprises as at March 31, 2009 of
fs 709,718 (March 3%, 2008 = Rs Nil}. The
information as requived v be disclosed under the

Micro, Small and Medium  FEnterprises
Vievelopment Act, 2006 has been determined to the
exient such parties have been Identified on the bagiz
of information and records available with the
Company,

informatian For the supplier covered under the
Micre, Small and Medium Enterprise Development
Ao, 2006, as at March 3§, 2009 is as under -

For the
Year ended
March 31,7 March 31,

2003 108

tor the
Year ended

Parficuiars .

FOOT 1 -

Principal amaust

Inaterest Jus thereon recuining
snpawd e ony suppliar o at
the snd of eavl acconntiey peir

[1ne armunt f tarerest paicl ey

T RMHE OF Haction
ey, Small and Madiom

Ertercise Devalopment Acr,

2H, abang wirh the nimaues

of e payment made ta

ihe suppiter Sweyand the

apesinted day darag

2ACH ACZCNPT Yer B -

The saniint of intecest dus anet
payable faribe period of delay
in irakang pavensat fwhich have
Been paid bul beyond the
appoited day during the year)
bz wiitwul wdding the intarest
specifiad under Micro, Snall

g Medbun Enterprize
Developirent Acr 2006, . -

Thez srmrent of inferesr acenrce
utel remainieg unpaid ar the
etul 0F deconnting year - -

Duning the year 2008, the Company had chtained
advance of Rs 1517500500 Lo fund the entry fee
for using GEM Technology under the existing
Unified Access Services License {HASL) for Punjab
Service Area. During the vear ended March 31, 29
the Company took additional advance of
= 111000000, The amount of aforesaid advanee is
adjustabie or refundable on such terms and
conditions as may be mulually agresd.

Loss pershaze

The calewtation of loss per share is based on the loss
for the year and mmber of shares is showi below,

For Lhe For the
vear ended) year ended

Marcch 31, March 31,
2009 20065
Tz For the year {in Ks | 1228375011 1,308, 728,989

WWeighied average nuembar 525517182 53235,5:i7.152

of shazes

Morninal vales per euity 10 10

zhare fin Fs)

Loss par share - basic and £

ciluted fin Tty)
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15,

{a)

{b)

“The impact of dilubien an account of advance share
capilal, OFCD has not been considered asitis  anti-
dilulive.

Operating leases
Company as a Lessee

The Company has entered into various cancelable
lease agreernents for leased premises. Gross rental
expenses {or the year ended March 31, 2009 is Rs
62,145,298 (March 31, 2008 — R 88,518,714).

The Company has entered inta site sharing
agreements with other operators for sharing of
their infrastructure sites. During the vaar, the
Company has incurred Rs 143,008,106 (March 31,
2008 -- Rs 83,437,485) fowards infrastructure sharing
expenses.

Further lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are as fallows:-

Particulars As at Asat

Marech 31, | March 31,
2009 2003

Payable not later than | 57,686,689 | 86,868,630

o year

Payable later than one 143,633,605 | 48,989,034

year and not later than

five years

Payable more than 171,449,122 1 10,289 506

five vears

Total 72,769,415 1146,147 170

The excalation clause includes escalation at varions
periodic levels ranging from G to 50%, includes
options of renewal from | to 99 vears aod there are
no restrictions imposed on the leased arrangements

HFCT. [NFOTEL LIMITED

B. Company as a Lessor

16.

The Company has entered into cancellable site
sharing agreements with other operators for
sharing of {ts infrasfructure sites. During the year,
the Company bhas accrued Rs 12,561,961
{March 31, 2008—- Rs 153,512,519 towards site
sharng revenua.

The Company has entered into a non cancellable
lease agrecment to provide approximately 7525.11
fibre pair kilometers of dark fibre of indefeasible
right of use {IRU} basiz for a peried of 15 years.
The lease rental receivable proporticnate to actual
kilometers accepied by the rustomers is cedited
ko the profit and loss aceount on straight-line basis
over the lease term. Due to the nature of the
transactions it is not possible to compute the gross
carrying amount, depreciation for the year and
accumulated depreciation of the asset given on
operating lease as at March 31, 2009 and accord ingly
disclosures required by AS-19 is not provided.

Segmeatal Repotting

The primary reporting of the Company has been
performed on the basis of business segments. The
Company has only one business segment, which iz
provision of wunified telephony services.
Accordingly, the amounts appearing in these
financial statements relate o this primary business
segment, Further, the Company provides services
enly in the State of Punjab (including Chandigarh
and Panchkula) and, accordingly, no discinsures are
required under secondary segment repocting.
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18.

Balances with Scheduled banks i

Unclaimed deposit from public

During the year ended March 31, 2004, the Company
aurrendered U5 licence granted by Reserve Bank of
India CRBI') to carry out NBFC business.
Accordingly, the Company foreclosed all the
unpaid / unclaimed deposits as on Sepiember 15,
2002 and the interest accruing thereon as on that
date, and the same have been transferred to the
Bscrow Aceount in February 2004. On May 24, 2004,
the RBI approved the cancellation of the
Company's certificate of NBFC registration and
provided cortain directives to the Company to be
complied with, pending completion of which, the
Company would continue to be governed by the
televant provisions of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 and various directions /instructions issusd
by RBI from time to time, [Refer Schedule 11 & 14
and Schedule 22, Note 1(a))]. On Aupust 10, 2004,
the Company has obtained the approval of the
shareholders for the removal of NBEC related
objects from the Memorandum of Association.
Further, the Company submitted a letter dated Jerly
7. 2004 for compliance and RBI vide its letter dated
July 32, 2004 gave some concessions from
compliance and has advised the Company o follow
certain instrictions till the balance in the escrow
Account is settled. The Registrar of Companies,
Jalandhar, is vet to register the resoluton of the
shareholders due to detay in filing of the
documents, for which the Company has moved an
application to Central Government for condonation
ol delay. Ministry of Company Affairs vide letter
no 17 /253/2005-CLYV dated 07th july, 2005 has
sranted a cundonation for filing of form 23, which
wag submitted to Registrar uf Companies,
Jalandhar vide latter MNo. HITL /T &L/S-31 /05,347
dated Tuly 13, 2005 and the registration cerlificate
is vet to be ubtained.

Fhe accompanving finacwial statements includo the
fotlowing account balanees relating to the NBEC
business whose licence granted bv RBI was
surrendered during the vear ended March 31, 2004
Ks 485,963
Es 46,116

Unclaimed Deposits From Public
Interest acorved and due on

publiz deposits upto September
13, 2603

Interest acrruad and due on
deposits to be transferred to
Investor Educabon and Protectinn
Fun:d Rs 559,086

Cheques ouistanding beyand Rs 523,618
6 montts

Others [(Under reconciliation) Es 19,055

__RBs 1663818

s 1663813

Escron accournl R
[Pl F il il
e e T

19,

A0,

2T,
{a}

HECL INFOTEL LIMITED

Drebenture redemplion resecve

Pirsuant to the CDR scheme on October 16, 2004,
the Company hag issued OFCDs agrregating io
Rs 166,776,100 repayable as on March 31, 2016, As
per section 117C (1) of the Companies Act, 1956, a
debenture redemption reserve 'DRR') is to be
creafed to which adeguate amounts are to be
credited out of the profits of each year until such
debentures are redeemed.

During the year, the Com pany has incurred loss of
Rs 1,957,743,020. Hence, In accordance with fhe
clarification received from the Depariment of
Company Affairs vide circutar No 6/3/2001-CL.V
dated Apriil 18, 2002, the Company has not created
Debenture redemption reserve,

Prior petiod expendihure (net)

Elescription Furthe foc the
Yezt énded | Yearended
March 31, | March 31,
00y 200/

Revenue

Beverue fom {Unutied Arress Survices - 11345, 60)

Revenue Erorm intermut Services LS7 197 | (918,986}
Revenwa From Infmysiacture erviee - 51,214,032}

Suh Tolal L507,107 |{3,676,254]

Expenaes B
Interenmnect sage Caarges 132,886 | 14,541,245
Infrasicucture Shuring Rent 3,143,783 -
Otker Firance Chares 2,285 40
Fort Charaes 206962 | 2,993,617

[rterest o e 1.235.744 | 1.670,153
Teavelling sud Conveyance 313,738 £,254

Lagul % Proteesionad Charges +13.453 303,024
Staff Walfare Zaponses 431,206 Y44

Fermalr & Mamtenance - Metwork 2,095,229 23-1,32
et 307,291 30,097
[nsuwrance - 277,423

Eiectriciby and Waker 451,573 22,18

Mizcellanenus Zxpenses B0, 250 -
YAT o0 Sahe of Azgits 713,400 -

Sub Total L1H4054T | 22,371.134

Crand Totaf L3 450,683 |13.692 877

Employee Benefils

During the vear, the Company has recognized the
fellowing amounts i the Profit and Loss Account

Defined Contribution Plans

Particulars For the Farthe
Yourended | Year ended

Murch 31, | March 31,

2009 Z0EE

Emplover's Contribiution o
Pl

Provident Fund * 14,488,900 16,010,073

lmpleyer’s Contribulion to BST 121,529] 335,855

included in Employer's Contribution to Provident
and Other Funds, Refer Schedule 15

LT S i B D T SRR E R,




BFCL INFOTEL LIMITED

Defined Benefit Plans

(k)

The employee's gramity fund scheme manamed by
Life Insurance Corporation of india and [CIC
Lombard General Insurance Company Limited is a
defined bhernefit plan. The present value of
obligation is determined based on actuarial
valuation uasing Project Unit Credit Method, which
recognizes each period of service as giving rise fo
acdditignal iinit of employee henefit entitlement and
measures each unit separately to build un the final
chlizgation. The gbiigation for leave encashment is
recognised in the same manner as gratuity.
Experience adjustments are Wil and have net been
disclosed as required under PPara 120 of Accounting
Standard 15 relating to  employee benifits,

The assumptions used to
obligations are as follows:

FParticulais Gratluity # Leave
tncashment #
Cureent serviee oost 330,727 306,098
[nbegest cost 985,033 707333
Expected Beturn on phu: assets £3.308) -
Actuarial {ga:n} 7 loss {575,425) JEHACIEY]
ast sarvice cost - -
Curtaiimrwent ad
Settlement cost 7 (crediiy - -
Net_cost BRA4R2Y | 5AT72, 528

~h Included in the Safaries, Wages and Bonus

determine the benefit

Partieulars Cratuaty Luave
L e oo, EMCBShMARY
Discount Ratz 7800 7.00h
lixpected Rate of incrzasa ia

Conpensation levels S.00% | 5.00%
Exprcted Rata nf Keturs an

Plag Msseis 7.50% 7504
Expectad Averaye remainung

working lives of

emplavess |yearsk-the company | 21 Years 21 Years
Bxpecred Awvarzge romaining

waorking hves of

cmployees {vears)

- e suhaidiary % Years B Years

Reconciiaiion of opening

d)

El

5.

The expected rate of return on pian assets was based
oh the average long-term rate of return expected
to prevail over the next L5 to 20 vears on the
investments made by the LIC. This was based on
the historical returns suitably adjusted for
movements in long-term government bond
interest rates. The discount rate is based on the
average yield on government bonds of 20 years,

The Company made annuzl contributians ko the
LIC of an amount advised by the LIC. The
Company was not informed by LIC of the
investments made by the LIC or the break-down
of plan assefs by investment type.

The eslimates nf rate of escatation in salary
considered in actuarial valuation , taken into
account inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors including demand and supply in
the emptoymenl smarket. The above information
is cortified by the actuary. This being the frst year
of implamenlalion, previous year figures have not
been given.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business
of providing telecommunication services. The
production and sale of such services is not capable
of being expressed in any generic unil. Hence, other
information pursuant to the provisions of the
paragraph 3, 3C and 40 of Part 1I Schedule ¥ of the
Companies Act, 19536 are not applicable to ke
Company

Prior period comparatives

Previous year figures have been regrouped where
necessary to confirm to this vear classification.

and clostngr balanees of

beneftt obligations and plan assets

Particulacs tr'ﬂlﬂllj" Leave
I Pacashiment

Change in Prajected Benefif

Obligation (PEROY

Projected berefit obligation

al begtandug ol veac 12,086, la1 7,803,185

Current sarvice cnat ST, 721 3,106,395

fouberest cost 935,033 707,335

Benefits nald (1,251,824 -

Past service cost - -

Actuarial (gaing 7 Toss I T - ]

Projecied benefit oligation 14,188,519 11,674,012

at year end

Change in plan assety -

Fair vafue of Az assets

at beginning of vear 1.596,579 -

Expectert rebarn an plan assets 62,308 -

Artuarial gain / (lussi 6, £53 -

Empiover contnbuticn - -

Canhibubon oy plan rartidpants| 4,000,004 -

Eottlement enat . -

Berefils pad {4,251, 224} .

Fair value of plan assels

at year end 1,414,2146] -

Net fundid statas of the plan 12;'?'?3.503; 11,676,052

MNet amount recigmiced 12,773,605 11,676,872

As per sur repart of even shate.

For 5.K. BATLIRDI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accounlants

per Prashant Singhal
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HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCEH 31, 20u9

{Unless and ctherwise stated, al¥ amounts are in Tupees)

HFCL INI'OTEL LIMITEI?

PARTICULARS As AL As At
March 21, 2009 Marchk 31, 2005
CASH FLOW FIROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Protit/(Lnss) for the year bafore Frigr Year Expenditere and Tax (2,304, 486 TU8) (1,482,5'04,724)
Adpustanants Hor
Lepreciation and Amorlisation 497,736 550 L3S, 460,004
Porcign exclange Loss/ [Gain) 11 8r3,309 (30,430,387
Envess Provision Wiiten Bael (3,937, 742) -
Dirnimariion in value of investments 699 573 000 -
Loesy {Gaing or Sold ¢ ThHecarded Bied Assets 135,295,379 21840, 545
Bud Blebts Writren £FF 03,826,550 185,763,091
Presvision for Eroubthi) Advances (63,700,004 -
Provision for Dkngdtful Delis 1,27 74 41,U%1,360
Firanes Knprnses - 678, 204,812 635,131,755
Itk Bnpcte (6,032,158 {5.040,503)
Operating profit befora working capital cleanges 323,841,495 ITTITA0AD
Adjustent for chang=s in warl ity capital:
!;Inc:rease} # Tracrense i dekines (4583414 (H0.667.31A)

kfuc-rp:aaej £ Pacreasi in Loans and advanpes

Adjustment for shavees tn:
Profil on Disposal of favestment in Subsidiary Company

A4, 252 Gdad

133,054,231

1193, 430, 6:65)

Increazed/ Decreasein fventure [#,201,640) (37,033,124

& Ineraase £ (Decrease) in Curcend fiabitilics and previsions 34,043 471 L5VE, 513,365
: o2 100

5 Cash senerated from opematians 645,590 574 1,983,188,773

Circct Taxes paid (Net) 12,205 3237y (6756633}

Prinr Period Expense / {ncomea) 5t [13,450,833% (13,692 8774

NFT LASH GREMERA'TED FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES fa) #E 038,664 1,957, 720,239
CASHFLOW EROM INVES TING ACTIVITIEY - B —

Purchase of bced assety 308,452 937 13,320,906,623;
Procveds from saleof Sxed assats 79454625 T33E73
Marchise of Equity Share Capitai af Subsidiary {Refar Schoedyle 22, Mate 1 {a) - (2, 548.000)
Sale of EquEr}'qSlum Capttal of Subsidiary (Reter Schedule 32, Moly | {ahy 2,544 06} -
Fixed deposiss 8,003,558 1.665,5 H)
Wealth tax 21,597 31,133
Interest Receivied 1.537,212 L.374.307
NET CASHUSED IN INVTSTENG ACTIVATIES (BY §31.928,716) {2,315.704,070)
CASH FLOW FROMN FINANCING ACTIVITIES [ — -
Froceeds trom Secuced toan 3,755 ANHD Fa31,373
Bepayment of Sucured Loar. {30,922 3007 {9,071,327)
Repayment of Public Depnaits 12130000 1139,680)

Uroceeds from Unsucuced ivan

Repaymentto Urserured | oan {156,398,945) {825,413, 350
Inbesogt paid (335,334.600) (412,333.007)
Drvidend oaid {75, 77} .
) R L 2
NET CASH SENEMATED FRON FINANCING A IVITIES (C) {558,415.6819) 333,820,833
MNEIINCREASE/ [LDECREASE ) (N CASI AND CASH CQINVALENTS {A+B+C} 12,594,129 {4,136,938)
_— e
Casluand Cash Dquivalents at the Beginning of fhe year 40,206,021 44,362,953
Cash and Cash £quivalents at the and af the year 32,800,154 30,206,021
Cash and Bank Balanees I — D —
Cash in Flarcl 2,475,254 1,441,597
Clwsguesin Tlamt F.wod 0di W7a0,7E5
Balariovs with Scheduled danks
i Current Avcount 174,032 X7 167 008
In Fixed Deprosit [Receipts sl ed with Tanks as marein nwney for
guazantees and ECy issued R5 05 108 335 (March 11, %008 - Ke, 73390.534)f 33,128,936 73,3244
[5 Seornee Acconnt 1,563,313 1.343370
22 AL AT
118,222.056 173,730,315
—_— IS
Less: haczin Money pledwed for Guarntees and LCa jssued E3.423.836 7,524,494
Cashid: Cash Fquivatents 32 5010, 130 40,795,021
Notes:
L Lhe cash ffuw statermen: bas beor repared under the 'ndirect method as setout o the Accaunting Standard 3 op Cask Pow Statement nedified ondar

Companies fAccounting Standard) Rules 208, ("as amended”
Figueas in beackess indicate cosk outidaw,

BAR215TLE

* Includes irtevest acorued bl st de on secured loan as amaunhag to Bs 39208 (March 31, 2008 - Ks 200.196,936) as pur CTHE Scheme,
Prevapus vear figures have been regrouped and recast wherever necessacy to conferm io curant frear classitication.
Dividerd pawd durng g vear Bz 79 574 (March 3, 203, Bz Nil) 25 more fully discinsed ic Schadule 14

SR WERY

This is the Cash Fluw raferred to in aar repaort of even dale

8. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATTS For ATLLKULSHRESTIA, & CO. Farand on bebualf of the Boand
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trer Prashant Singhal per Anil Kumar Aggarwal Mahendm Nahata il B Sluikd=
Tasiner Pariper Dirrrior Lrirertor

Membership Na 93283 Membershin Mo 51720

Surendra Lunja Vikash Apacval
Chief Exacutive Oilicer Y17 - Tinance

Piace : Nesw Delhi Kapi Bhaltla

Do - Jume 20, 7009 l‘._nmpunySechar}r

Place: Cinrgaoe
Chate ; [una 30, 200

Filace : Weww Delhi
Date : June 30, 2




HECL INFOTEL LIMITED

HFCL INFOTEL LIMITED
STATEMENT PURSUANT TG PART - IV OF SCHEDULE VI OF TIIE COMPANIES ACT, 1955
BALANCE SHELT ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S GENERAL RUSINESS PROFILE

1 REGISTRATICN DETALS

Registration No. 2718
State Code 16
Balance Sheet March 31, 2004
I CAPITAL BEAISED DURING TTE YEAR (RUPEES)
Public Issue MTI.
Bonus Shares MNIL
Rights Issue NIL
Private Placement NTL
I POSTITON OF MOBIEISATION AND DEPLOYNENT OF FUNDS (RUPEES)
Total Liabilities 7.h04 004812
Total Assets 7.694 004 81>
SOURCE OF FUNDS
Sharcholders” Finds 6,772,602, 701
Reserves & Surplus 68,565,508
Secured Loans £,566,00%,737
Unsecured Loans 1,388,457 337

APPLICATION OF bUNDS
Met Fixed Asscts

{Including Intangible Asset} 7.028,995, 780
Accurmnulated Losses 11,194 823,558
Invastments -
Net Current Liabilities 2,419,983 064

'Y PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY (RUPEES) -
Turnover 2209 562 030
Tolal Expenditure 4,367 499 527
Profit /{Loss) Before Tax {2.117,937 486}
Preofit /{T.os5) After Tax (1,9537,743,020
Eatning Per Stare 4.0
Dividend Nil

YV GENERIC NAMES OF THRFE PRINCIFAL PRODUCTS /SERVICES OF THE COMEANY
Htem Code Na(fTT Code) NAL
Product Description Unifted Access Services

LT ek e a2 s A SR

For and on behalf of the Board of Directoss

Mahendra Nahata M. P. Shukla
Director Director
Surendra Lunija Vilkash Aparwal
Chief Txecutive Qfficer YI1* - Finance

Flace : Mew Dedhi Kapil Bhaila

Date : June 30, 2009 Company Secretaty



